

USER GUIDE

MADCAP FLARE DESKTOP 2025

Skins

Copyright © 2025 MadCap Software. All rights reserved.

Information in this document is subject to change without notice. The software described in this document is furnished under a license agreement or nondisclosure agreement. The software may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of those agreements. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or any means electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and recording for any purpose other than the purchaser's personal use without the written permission of MadCap Software.

MadCap Software 1660 17th Street, Suite 201 Denver, Colorado 80202 858-320-0387 www.madcapsoftware.com

THIS PDF WAS CREATED USING MADCAP FLARE.

CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1

Introduction	6
--------------	---

CHAPTER 2

General Information for Skins	9
Types of Skins	10
Skin Components and Proxies	15
HTML5 Skinless Output	
Toolbars and Skins	52
Skin Features Per Output Type	55

CHAPTER 3

Process for Skins	60
Adding Skin Files	61
Opening Skins	63
Editing Skin Settings	64
Associating Skins With Targets	71

CHAPTER 4

HTML5 Skin Styles	72
Mediums	74
Enabling Responsive Output	76

Interactive Live Preview	77
Style Groups and Properties Sections	
Horizontal or Vertical Viewing	91
Default Values in Gray	
Medium-Specific Styles	
Activities for HTML5 Skins and Components	
eLearning Toolbar in HTML5 Skin Components	
Feedback in HTML5 Skins	146
Headers in HTML5 Skins	155
Main Page in HTML5 Skins	
Menus in HTML5 Skins	
Navigation in HTML5 Skins	201
Search Results in HTML5 Skins	217
Test Results in HTML5 Skin Components	
Topic Proxies in HTML5 Skins	
Topic Toolbars in HTML5 Skin Components	
Topics in HTML5 Skins	274

Standard Skin Styles	
Accordion Items	
Controls	
Dialogs	
Feedback User Profile Items	
Formats	
Frames	
Index Entries	
Index Entry Popups	
TOC Entries	
Toolbar Items	

Accordion Items in Standard Skins	
Controls in Standard Skins	
Dialogs in Standard Skins	
Feedback User Profile Items in Standard Skins	335
Formats in Standard Skins	
Frames in Standard Skins	356
Index Entries in Standard Skins	364
Index Entry Popups in Standard Skins	
TOC Entries in Standard Skins	373
Toolbar Items in Standard Skins	378

Other Activities for Skins	
Other Activities—General	
Other Activities—HTML Help	
Other Activities-HTML5	
Other Activities-Images	
Other Activities—Tables of Contents	
Other Activities—WebHelp	

APPENDIX

PDFs	
Tutorials	
Cheat Sheets	
User Guides	

Introduction

Supported In:



A skin is a file that contains information about the appearance of an online output window, including navigation elements.

madcap [.] FLARE	Here is an example of output using the HTML5 Side	👬 🔍 🛿 Account 🗸
Get Started What's New?	You are here: Get Started	
Key Concepts and Features	Get Started	PDF
Tutorials -	As a new Flare user, it's a good idea to familiarize yourself with some basic information.	: 🔆 <u>Getting Started Tutorial</u>
Interface and Files	> Key Concepts and Features	G <u>Getting Started User Guide</u>
Step 1: Starting Projects	> Workspace	Video
Step 2: Adding Content and Features	> Architecture	Octing Started August 2, 2021
Step 3: Designing 🔹	> Process	1:04:32
Step 4: Developing Targets		

^{madcap[,]} FLARE		Search	🙀 🔍 & Account 🗸
Get Started What's New? • Key Concepts and Features Tutorials • Interface and Files • Architecture	You are here: Get Started Get Started As a new Flare user, it's a good idea to Information: Skin > Key Concepts and Features	n some basic	PDF
Step 1: Starting Projects Step 2: Adding Content and Features Step 3: Designing Step 4: Developing	 > Workspace > Architecture > Process 		Video <u>Getting Started</u> August 2, 2021 1:04:32

General Information

- "Types of Skins" on page 10
- "Skin Components and Proxies" on page 15
- "HTML5 Skinless Output" on page 48
- "Toolbars and Skins" on page 52
- "Skin Features Per Output Type" on page 55

Process

- 1. "Adding Skin Files" on page 61
- 2. "Opening Skins" on page 63
- 3. "Editing Skin Settings" on page 64
- 4. "Associating Skins With Targets" on page 71

Skins Can Control...

- Main menu position
- Slide-out position
- Slide-out menu style
- Top menu depth levels
- User interface text
- Size and position of output
- Which navigation elements to include
- Other settings...

▶ NOTE If you are using branding or CSS variables in your project, you might see those elements in the skin. For example, if a CSS variable is defined in the Branding.css file, the variable might display in a Skin Editor field when you select a color or an image (since it points to the branding file).

General Information for Skins

There are various pieces of general information you should know if you plan to use this feature.

This chapter discusses the following:

Types of Skins	10
Skin Components and Proxies	15
HTML5 Skinless Output	48
Toolbars and Skins	52
Skin Features Per Output Type	55

I Types of Skins

Following are the skin types available in Flare Desktop.

Skin Type	Description
HTML5 Skins ¹	HTML5 skins control the look and behavior of the navigation elements surrounding your topic content in the output for HTML5 targets.
	There are three types of HTML5 skins: Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane.
Side Navigation	In Flare Desktop, Side Navigation is a type of HTML5 output that can be designed to look like a modern website, where the main navigation is positioned at the left or right. It lets you use a flexible, frameless output while continuing to have a more traditional configuration that looks like the Tripane format. This kind of output is possible with the Side Navigation skin type and other related features.
Top Navigation	In Flare Desktop, Top Navigation is a type of frameless, flexible HTML5 output that can be designed to look like a modern website, where the main navigation is positioned at the top. This kind of output is possible with the Top Navigation skin type and other related features.
Tripane	In Flare Desktop, Tripane is a type of HTML5 output that lets you generate output in a traditional format with three distinct frames (a navigation pane on the left, a toolbar and search on the top, and the main body pane). This kind of output is possible with a Tripane skin type.
HTML5 Skin Components	Skin components are used for smaller pieces of your output interface. They typically work hand-in-hand with corresponding proxies to control the look of those elements. See "Skin Components and Proxies" on page 15.

Skin Type	Description
Central Account	A Flare Online Account proxy lets you create an account link drop-down, allowing users viewing private output to log out or edit their MadCap Flare Online profile settings. By default, the account link is included automatically in the header of the regular skin.
	NOTE Some elements in Flare Desktop reference the old "Central" name, even though it has since been renamed to Flare Online.
eLearning Toolbar	The eLearning Toolbar proxy lets you include intuitive navigation buttons and controls in your course. These might be a Next and Previous button, or a progress bar. When you build HTML5 output, the proxy content is replaced with the generated navigation tools.
Favicons	Short for "favorite icons," favicons are supported in Flare Desktop for HTML5 output. A favicon is the image that you sometimes see in a browser tab, address bar, bookmark, Windows tiles, etc. The Favicons skin component is the only one that is not associated with a proxy. Simply by adding and editing this type of skin component, your HTML5 output will include favicons in the appropriate locations.
Menus	A Menu proxy lets you create a topic menu based on your TOC file, allowing users to navigate to other topics. This proxy can be especially useful if you are creating HTML5 Top Navigation or skinless output and you want a context-sensitive menu to display next to each topic. When you build the output, the proxy is replaced with the generated menu.
Search Bar	A Search Bar proxy lets you create a field that can be used to perform searches in HTML5 output. When you build the output, the proxy is replaced with the generated search bar. If you insert a search bar using a proxy, you might also need to hide the search bar from some topics so that you do not have two search bars on a page.

Skin Type	Description
Search Results	A Search Results proxy works with the Search Bar proxy and lets you create a container that is used to display the results of end user searches in your output. When you build the output, the proxy is replaced with the generated search results.
Test Results	The Test Results proxy is necessary for ending course navigation and calculating the test results score when you link a custom pass or fail topic for the test results page. When you insert this proxy, the Test Results Proxy dialog opens. If you have customized the Test Results skin component, you can select it from the Skin File drop-down.
Topic Toolbar	You can use the Topic Toolbar proxy to generate a toolbar anywhere in your topics. This is an alternative (or an additional option) to the web toolbar that can be included in some online outputs.
Micro Content Skin Components ²	Micro content skins control the look and feel of the micro content container and its corresponding proxy. You can use separate skin components if you want to have different settings for various instances of a proxy in your project.
	The FAQ proxy lets you generate a list of phrases and responses for the selected micro content file(s) in most outputs. Results are static, based on specific criteria selected when the target is built, not on the search engine output. This type of proxy is ideal for including traditional FAQs, but it can be used for other purposes as well. The skin defaults to Drop-Down view mode.
	The Knowledge proxy lets you display filtered micro content items in HTML5 output. Results are dynamic, generated at runtime in the browser, using search engine rankings. You might use a Knowledge proxy to display content such as information about a person, a company, technical specifications, related tasks, etc. The skin defaults to Truncated view mode.

Skin Type	Description
	The Promotion proxy lets you display random micro content items in HTML5 output. Results are dynamic, generated at runtime in the browser, using the search engine. You might use a Promotion proxy to display information about relevant products, events, new features, etc. The skin defaults to Plain Text view mode.
Standard Skins ³	Standard skins control the look and behavior of the navigation elements surrounding your topic content in the output for legacy targets: Microsoft HTML Help, WebHelp, and WebHelp Plus.

¹You can also generate HTML5 skins without a skin. On the Skin tab of the Target Editor, you can set the Skin field to "none." Another way to accomplish this is to open a full HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skin, select the **Setup** tab, and change the **Main Menu Position** and **Slide-Out Position** fields to **None**, and adjust any styles as well (e.g., set the **Header > Layout** and/or **Search Bar Layout** styles to **none**.

²All of the micro content skin components are applicable to HTML5 targets. However, you can use the Micro Content - FAQ skin to style the related proxy in non-HTML5 targets (e.g., PDF, Word, Clean XHTML, Eclipse, EPUB, and HTML Help).

³The vast majority of the Standard skin styles pertain to WebHelp or WebHelp Plus output. But some of the settings (those that have to do with MadCap Feedback and toolbar items) also apply to Microsoft HTML Help.

NOTE You can download a variety of free skins with different looks from the MadCap Software website. Simply go to:

http://madcapsoftware.com/downloads/flareskingallery.aspx

After downloading the skin, you can import it into your project. See "Importing Skins" on page 401.

NOTE If you want to display the output user interface in a particular language, you can modify styles in a language skin instead of a regular skin. As an alternative to using language skins, you can use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to perform all of the localization tasks for HTML5 targets. This tab not only lets you enter text in other languages, but it lets you change the substance of text strings altogether, whether they are in your primary language or another. For more information see the Help system.

Skin Components and Proxies

In addition to a main skin, you can also use several smaller skin components with HTML5 targets. Most of these components are used in combination with corresponding proxies to add different features to the output, such as search elements, menus, and toolbars.

In most cases, a proxy is the element that actually generates the search element, menu, or toolbar when you build output. The related skin component is used to provide a look for it. Except for favicon skin components, a proxy is always necessary to generate the desired element, but a skin component is optional. If you do not add a particular type of skin component to your project, Flare Desktop provides a default design.

Adding Skin Components

Skin components can be added to a project in the same way that you would add full skins. In the Project Organizer, right-click the **Skins** folder and from the context menu select **Add Skin**. Then choose the kind of skin component you want to add.



Micro Content Skin Components

You can add micro content elements to your HTML5 output using a regular full skin such as Side Navigation or Top Navigation, without worrying about additional skin components. Both the featured snippets and Knowledge Panel search results can be included from the Target Editor using default styles.

But if you want more control over the look and behavior of the micro content item, you can add a micro content skin component and proxy (e.g., FAQ, Knowledge, Promotion) for maximum customization. When you add a micro content proxy to a content file, you can select a specific skin for filtered micro content files.

The micro content skin types are Micro Content – FAQ, Micro Content – Knowledge, and Micro Content – Promotion. Each skin takes on slightly different default styles and options that cater to the intended use.



When you add one of the micro content skin types, it automatically opens in the Micro Content Skin Editor. This editor is a slimmed down version of the regular Skin Editor, but it focuses just on the selected skin component and proxy.

 Micro Content - FAQ This skin defaults to drop-down view mode. It is used for FAQ proxies, but it can also be used for Knowledge and Promotion proxies.



 Micro Content - Knowledge This skin defaults to truncated view mode. It is used for Knowledge proxies, but it can also be used for FAQ and Promotion proxies.

Micro C	ontent Skin Editor Web Medium	Tablet Medium Mobile Mediu	m Print Medium Highlight						
Setup	Filter (to use fuzzy matching Q	Micro Content Panel	Proxy title	The Setup and Styles tab default to the truncated view mode.					
	Micro Content Panel Title Item Phrase	Background Border Box Shadow Font	Micro content is typi or created from scra	cally used for short, concise information in question-and-answer situations, s tch.					
	 Response Link (active) (focus) (hover) (visited) Path Truncate Button Expand Collapse 	 ▶ Layout ▶ Margin ▶ Padding 	1. In the Content 2. Select a temple 3. Give the topic 4. Click Add.	Explorer click aname. A_Getting Started B_Links and Lists C_Conditions Notes Tables D_Images E_Footer Topics Resources Home.htm					
	Truncate Fade		How to Create a Top How-Create-Topic.htm	#microcontent1					

• Micro Content - Promotion This skin defaults to plain text view mode. It is used for Promotion proxies, but it can also be used for FAQ and Knowledge proxies.



▶ NOTE The Micro Content - FAQ skin component and FAQ proxy are unique in that they are applicable to non-HTML5 targets in addition to HTML5 targets (e.g., PDF, Word, Clean XHTML, Eclipse, EPUB, and HTML Help).

The other micro content skin components (i.e., Micro Content - Knowledge, and Micro Content - Promotion) can be used for styling only HTML5 outputs.

Inserting Proxies

You can add a proxy by clicking in the content file where you want it to be placed. Then from the **Insert** ribbon, select **Proxy > Insert** [Name of Proxy].



Working With Skin Components and Proxies

The following skin components and related proxies are commonly used for HTML5 outputs. Some are more useful in some outputs than in others.

NOTE The Favicons skin component is the only one that is not associated with a proxy. Simply by adding and editing this type of skin component, your HTML5 output will include favicons in the appropriate locations. We will not be covering favicons in the following sections. For more information see the Help system.

Flare Online Account

A Flare Online Account proxy lets you create an account link drop-down, allowing users viewing private output to log out or edit their MadCap Flare Online profile settings. By default, the account link is included automatically in the header of the regular skin.



After inserting a Flare Online Account proxy, you can edit it. To do this, open the topic or template page where the proxy is inserted, right-click on it, and select **Edit Flare Online Account Proxy**. You can also edit the look of the account link by editing the styles in the regular skin or the Central Account skin component that you used.

NOTE Some elements in Flare Desktop reference the old "Central" name, even though it has since been renamed to Flare Online.

eLearning Toolbar

The eLearning Toolbar proxy lets you include intuitive navigation buttons and controls in your course. These might be a Next and Previous button, or a progress bar. When you build HTML5 output, the proxy content is replaced with the generated navigation tools.

	What kind of weather is likely in Austin? (Select all answers that apply.)							
	✓ Long hot summers							
	□ Snowfall in autumn							
	Short mild winters							
	Submit							
This is an example of an eLearning toolbar located in a topic (via a template page).	← Previous Next → Page 2 of 9							

When you insert this proxy, the eLearning Toolbar Proxy dialog opens. If you have customized the eLearning Toolbar skin component, you can select it from the **Skin File** drop-down.

The eLearning Toolbar proxy lets you include a toolbar with navigation controls for a course. Please see the Help for more information on how the various buttons can be customized using a skin file.								
Skirrie.								
Project/Skins/eLearning		\sim						
	ОК	Cancel						

Favicons

Short for "favorite icons," favicons are supported in Flare Desktop for HTML5 output. A favicon is the image that you sometimes see in a browser tab, address bar, bookmark, Windows tiles, etc. The Favicons skin component is the only one that is not associated with a proxy. Simply by adding and editing this type of skin component, your HTML5 output will include favicons in the appropriate locations.



Menu

A Menu proxy lets you create a topic menu based on your TOC file, allowing users to navigate to other topics. This proxy can be especially useful if you are creating HTML5 Top Navigation or skinless output and you want a context-sensitive menu to display next to each topic. When you build the output, the proxy is replaced with the generated menu.

	Getting Started	Features	Proces	dures	FAQs	Tips	Company
You are here: <u>Getting Started</u>				Searc	h		Q
Getting Started Getting Started Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipiscing elit. Eusce blandit sapidn a dolor accumsan `ccumsan. Nullam nepue velit, ornare vek orci vel, mollis frhngilla mauris. Dondc sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam mollis id. Suspdndisse lectus augte, auctor in aliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. Suspendisse bhbendum imperdiet korem ac placerat. Akiquam purus maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum eu, gravida qtis nisi. Integer pukvinar lacus libern, eget volutpat enil finibus non. Aliqu`m erat volutpat. Ph`sellus finibus telpus nisl Getting Started What's New Basic Steps Features Procedures FAQs Tips Company							
Table Heading			T	able He	eading		
Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipiscing elit.	cing elit. Dondc sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam mollis id.						llis id.
Eusce blandit sapidn a dolor accumsan `ccumsan.	Susp	dndisse lectu	s augte, a	auctor ir	n aliqual n	ec, fring	illa id dnlor.
Integer pukvinar lacus libern, eget volutpat enil finibus i	non. Aliqu	`m erat volutp	oat.				

The Menu proxy and skin component allow users to access navigation unique to each topic, while the main navigation at the top of the page is typically limited to the first few levels of your TOC. This feature is not as common in Side Navigation or Tripane outputs, because those formats always include the full navigation on the side of topics.

Inserting a menu proxy allows you to include a stylable menu inside a topic or template page.
Menu Content
Use TOC, Browse Sequence, or Headings:
Project/TOCs/Online Output \sim
Context sensitive
☑ Include parent
✓ Include siblings
☑ Include children
Levels to Show (Depth): (default) ~
Menu Style
Skin File:
Project/Skins/SideMenu 🗸
OK Cancel

When you insert a Menu proxy, the Menu Proxy dialog opens.

You can select the following options:

 Use TOC, Browse Sequence, or Headings If you have more than one TOC file in your project, you can select the one that the Menu proxy should use. It is most common to base a menu on a TOC, but you can also select a browse sequence.



You also have the option of selecting "Headings," which will display topic headings in the side menu instead. In other words, any headings or subheadings (e.g., h1, h2, h3, h4) that you've included in a topic will be shown in the side menu instead of other topics in the output.



Also, when viewing a topic that is set up like this—and the menu is fixed in place (via the Setup tab of the Skin Editor)—each sub-heading section will be highlighted as you scroll down in the topic.



• **Context sensitive** Select this check box if you want the menu to show only closely related entries in the TOC. In Flare Desktop's Top Navigation project templates, this kind of proxy was inserted into a template page to create a side menu for most of the topics in the output.





If you do not make the menu context-sensitive, it displays everything in the TOC (depending on the depth level you select).

Include parent If you have selected the Context sensitive option, you can also select this check box to include the parent TOC item in the menu.



With the parent option disabled



• Include siblings If you have selected the Context sensitive option, you can also select this check box to include TOC items in the menu that are on the same level as the open topic.



With the siblings option disabled

YOUR LOGO	Getting Started	Features	Proce	dures	FAQs	Tips	Company
You are here: <u>Features</u> > Feature 2				Searc	h		Q
Feature 2 Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipiscing elit accumsan `ccumsan. Nullam nepue velit, ornare vek sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam mollis id. S aliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. Suspendisse bhbendum i purus maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum eu, gravida qtis volutpat enil finibus non. Aliqu`m erat volutpat. Ph`sel	Topic that open orci uspdndisse lectus imperdiet korem ac nisi. Integer pukvin lus finibus telpus ni	is plor uris. D augte, auctor placerat. Aki ar lacus liberr sl.	Dondc in quam n, eget	Featu	ature 2 Widget 1 Widget 2 Widget 3		

• Include children If you have selected the Context sensitive option, you can also select this check box to include TOC items in the menu that are children of the topic that is open.

With the children option selected						
YOUR LOGO	Getting Started	Features	Procedures	FAQs	Tips	Company
You are here: <u>Features</u> > Feature 2			Searc	h		٩
Feature 2 Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipisci accumsan `ccumsan. Nullam nepue velit, ornar sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam molli aliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. Suspendisse bhber purus maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum eu, gravid volutpat enil finibus non. Aliqu`m erat volutpat. R	ng elit. E e vek ord s id. Suspdndisse lectus a ndum imperdiet korem ac la qtis nis Ph`sellus	is auris. D augte, auctor i placerat. Akio	Featu Fe ondc in quam eget Fe	ures ature 1 ature 2 Widget 1 Widget 2 Widget 3 ature 3		

With the children option disabled

YOUR LOGO	Getting Started	Features	Proce	edures	FAQs	Tips	Company
You are here: <u>Features</u> > Feature 2				Searc	h		Q
Feature 2 Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipiscing elit accumsan `ccumsan. Nullam nepue velit, ornare vek sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam mollis id. S	E Topic that i orc open	auris. D	ondc	Featu Fe Fe Fe	ures ature 1 ature 2 ature 3		
aliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. Suspendisse bhbendum purus maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum eu, gravida qtis volutpat. Ph`sellus finibus telpus nisl.	imperdiet korem ac nisi. Integer pukvin:	placerat. Aki ar lacus liberr	quam 1, eget v	olutpat	enil finibus	non. Ali	qu`m erat

- Levels to Show (Depth) This lets you choose how many levels of items deep in the TOC to include in the menu. If the Context sensitive option is disabled, this refers to the depth level overall for the TOC. If both the Context sensitive and the Include children options are enabled, it refers to the number of levels under the topic that is open.
- Skin File If you have added a Menu skin component to your project and want to use it to control the look of the menu, you can select it from this field.

If you do not select a Menu skin component in this field, Flare Desktop uses the first one it finds in your project (if one exists). Otherwise, Flare Desktop provides a default design.

NOTE If you use a Menu skin component and proxy to include a topic menu in your HTML5 Top Navigation output, you can set that menu to be fixed in place. You can set a fixed menu for web, tablet, or mobile screens (or all of them).

NOTE For HTML5 Tripane output, the Menu proxy and skin component will not work for merged projects or linking to external Help systems. Merging projects is not supported in Side or Top Navigation output at all.

Search Bar

A Search Bar proxy lets you create a field that can be used to perform searches in HTML5 output. When you build the output, the proxy is replaced with the generated search bar. If you insert a search bar using a proxy, you might also need to hide the search bar from some topics so that you do not have two search bars on a page.



When you insert a Search Bar proxy, the Search Bar Proxy dialog opens.

Skin File:		
(default)		~

You can select the following:

• Skin File If you have added a search bar skin component to your project and want to use it to control the look of the search bar, you can select it from this field.

If you do not select a Search Bar skin component in this field, Flare Desktop uses the first one it finds in your project (if one exists). Otherwise, Flare Desktop provides a default design.

NOTE The Search Bar proxy and skin component are not supported in HTML5 Tripane output.
Search Results

A Search Results proxy works with the Search Bar proxy and lets you create a container that is used to display the results of end user searches in your output. When you build the output, the proxy is replaced with the generated search results.

YOUR LOGO	Getting Started	Features	Procedures	FAQs	Tips	Company
Your search for "widget" returned 4 result(s).			widge	t		Q
Widget 1 Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipiscing elit. Eusoe blandit sapidn a dolor accumsan 'ccumsan. Nullam nepue velit, ornare vek orci vel, mollis frhngilla mauris. Dondc sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam mollis id. Suspdndisse lectus augte, auctor in aliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor B-Feature-Topics/Widget1.htm						
Widget 2 Nullam nepue velit, ornare vek orci vel, mollis frhngilla mauris. Do fringilla id dhlor. Suspendisse bhbendum imperdiet korem ac plac B-Feature-Topics/Widget2.htm	ondo sagittis elemensum a cerat. Akiquam purus mau	arcu, at gravida p ırir, ornare tincidu	uam mollis id. Susp Int qutrum eu, gravid	dndisse lectu la	us augte, a	uctor in aliqual nec,
Widget 3 Widget 3 Suspendisse bhbendum imperdiet korem ac placerat. Akiquam purus maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum eu, gravida qtis nisi. Integer pukvinar lacus libern, eget volutpat enil finibus non. Aliqu'm erat volutpat. Ph'sellus finibus telpus nisl. B-Feature-Topics/Widget3.htm						
Features Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr adipiscing elit. Eusce bla Dondc sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puam mollis id. Suspo B-Feature-Topics/Features.htm	ndit sapidn a dolor accum dndisse lectus augte, auct	isan `ccumsan. N tor in aliqual nec,	lullam nepue velit, or fringilla id dnlor	rnare vek oro	ci vel, molli	s frhngilla mauris.

When you insert this kind of proxy, the Search Results Proxy dialog opens.

which page results	re shown on after searching.	
Skin File:		
(default)		~

You can select the following:

• Skin File A skin component lets you control the look of generated search results. If you have added multiple skin components to your project, you can use this field to select the one to associate with this proxy. You can then edit that skin component to change its appearance.

() WARNING Do not insert a Search Results proxy into a template page. Insert it only into topics.

NOTE The Search Results proxy and skin component are not supported in HTML5 Tripane output.

Test Results

The Test Results proxy is necessary for ending course navigation and calculating the test results score when you link a custom pass or fail topic for the test results page. When you insert this proxy, the Test Results Proxy dialog opens. If you have customized the Test Results skin component, you can select it from the **Skin File** drop-down.

	ige.	
Skin File:		
Project/Skins/Results		~

When a Test Results proxy is included in the custom results page, the pages display with your modified content in the output.



Topic Toolbar

You can use the Topic Toolbar proxy to generate a toolbar anywhere in your topics. This is an alternative (or an additional option) to the web toolbar that can be included in some online outputs.

You are here: <u>Step 3: Designing > 9</u> Skins > OUTPUTS SUPPOR	Skins		€ <u>∷</u>
A skin is a file that contain output window, including General Information	ns information about the a navigation elements. Process	appearance of an online Skins Can Control	Conception of the second
 <u>Types of Skins</u> <u>Skin Components</u> 	1. <u>Adding Skin Files</u> 2. <u>Opening Skins</u>	Pane positionSlide-out menu	the Literapyse + MURANCE Text Services - MURA
 <u>HTML5 Skinless</u> <u>Output</u> 	3. <u>Editing Skin</u> <u>Settings</u>	style Main menu position	Interim Sections Sect

When you insert a Topic Toolbar proxy, the Topic Toolbar Proxy dialog opens.

TML5 Settings (Ov	emdes General) -		
(default)		~	
eneral Settings Stylesheet class f	or proxy:	~	

Topic toolbars can be inserted into outputs other than HTML5. However, the Topic Toolbar skin component is supported in HTML5 only. Therefore, the Topic Toolbar Proxy dialog is split into two sections. The HTML5 Settings area pertains only to HTML5 output. The General Settings area pertains to all of the outputs that support topic toolbars, including HTML5. Anything that is set in the HTML5 Settings area overrides what is set in the General Settings area, including the buttons that are selected for the toolbar.

You can select the following options:

 Skin File If you have added an HTML5 Topic Toolbar skin component to your project and want to use it to control the look of the toolbar, you can select it from this field. From the Skin Editor, you can select the buttons to be included in the toolbar. Alternatively, you can select buttons from the Buttons field below.

If you do not select a Topic Toolbar component in this field, Flare Desktop uses the first one it finds in your project (if one exists). Otherwise, Flare Desktop provides a default design.

Stylesheet class for proxy You can select a class to affect the look of the entire toolbar. This
is an alternative, or supplement, to editing the skin component in the Skin Editor. However, for
HTML5 output, using a skin component is the most common method for designing the look
of the toolbar.

You might create and use a proxy style class, for example, if you want to add a border around the toolbar. If you do not select a class from this field, the generated toolbar will use the style settings from the parent MadCapltopicToolbarProxy style. You have the option of creating a class for this proxy style in the Stylesheet Editor. To do this, select the **MadCapltopicToolbarProxy** style and in the local toolbar click **Add Selector** to create a class. The class will then be available from this field.

Buttons You have the option of selecting buttons for a toolbar in the Skin Editor or by using this field. You can click Select buttons to open a dialog, then select the buttons to include in the toolbar. For HTML5 outputs, the Topic Toolbar proxy will use whatever settings are specified in a Topic Toolbar skin component (if you have added one to your project), overriding any buttons you may have selected directly in the proxy. If you have not associated a Topic Toolbar skin component with the proxy, Flare Desktop will just use the first one it finds in your project. However, for outputs using Standard and Mobile skins, the settings in the proxy take precedence over anything you may have set on the Toolbar tab in the Skin Editor.

Micro Content - FAQ

The FAQ proxy lets you generate a list of phrases and responses for the selected micro content file (s) in most outputs. Results are static, based on specific criteria selected when the target is built, not on the search engine output. This type of proxy is ideal for including traditional FAQs, but it can be used for other purposes as well.

When you insert an FAQ proxy into a content file, the FAQ Proxy dialog opens. If you have added a Micro Content - FAQ skin component to your project and want to use it to control the look of micro content item, you can select it from the Skin File field.

Results are based on specific criteria sel on the search engine in the output.	ected when the target	is built,	not
Proxy Title:			
(Optional) Proxy title can be shown in th	ne output		
Skin File:			
(default)			\lor
What micro content to include: 🕕 All micro content files			Ŷ
0			
How micro content is included: 🕕			0
How micro content is included: U All micro content			-
How micro content is included: 🕕 All micro content			

▶ NOTE The Micro Content - FAQ skin component and FAQ proxy are unique in that they are applicable to non-HTML5 targets in addition to HTML5 targets (e.g., PDF, Word, Clean XHTML, Eclipse, EPUB, and HTML Help).

The other micro content skin components (i.e., Micro Content - Knowledge, and Micro Content - Promotion) can be used for styling only HTML5 outputs.

Micro Content - Knowledge

The Knowledge proxy lets you display filtered micro content items in HTML5 output. Results are dynamic, generated at runtime in the browser, using search engine rankings. You might use a Knowledge proxy to display content such as information about a person, a company, technical specifications, related tasks, etc.

When a Knowledge proxy is inserted, the Knowledge Proxy dialog opens. If you have added a Micro Content - Knowledge skin component to your project and want to use it to control the look of micro content item, you can select it from the Skin File field.

The Knowledge proxy lets you display filtered micro	content items from
search engine rankings.	the browser, using
Proxy Title:	
(Optional) Proxy title can be shown in the output	
Skip Eiler	
Allow micro content stylesheets	
What micro content to include: 🅕	
All micro content files	
How micro content is included: 🕕	
Topic title	
Limit number of results: 1	
Limit number of results: 1	

Micro Content - Promotion

The Promotion proxy lets you display random micro content items in HTML5 output. Results are dynamic, generated at runtime in the browser, using the search engine. You might use a Promotion proxy to display information about relevant products, events, new features, etc.

When a Promotion proxy is inserted, the Promotion Proxy dialog opens. If you have added a Micro Content - Promotion skin component to your project and want to use it to control the look of micro content item, you can select it from the Skin File field.

The Promotion proxy lets you display random micro or specified scope. Results are generated at runtime in the the search engine.	ontent items from ne browser, using
Proxy Title:	
(Optional) Proxy title can be shown in the output	
Skin File:	
(default)	
What micro content to include: 🕕	
What micro content to include: U All micro content files	
What micro content to include: All micro content files How micro content is included:	
What micro content to include: All micro content files How micro content is included: Topic title	
What micro content to include: All micro content files How micro content is included: Topic title Limit number of results:	

What's Noteworthy?

 NOTE HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs do not support the Current Topic Index button. Additionally, in HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs, the Next Topic and Previous topic buttons navigate between topics in the table of contents; in HTML5 Tripane output these buttons navigate between topics in a browse sequence (if one is available). Otherwise, HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs support the same buttons as HTML5 Tripane output.

NOTE You are not limited to one skin component of each type, although that is the most common situation. If you want, you can use multiple skin components of any type. If this is the case, you can associate a default skin component with a target. When you do this, the skin component you choose will always be used for any proxy of that same type that you insert for that target, unless you override it by associating a different skin component with a specific proxy that you've inserted.

HTML5 Skinless Output

HTML5 skinless output is a frameless output that does not use a main skin at all (although you might use smaller skin components). This means you will not have a main menu, and perhaps no search field, anywhere in the output.

	How Ca	an We H	Help?	
Search			۹	
G	etting Started »	Basic Steps »	What's New »	
	Gene	eral Informatio	'n	
Loren `ccum arcu, Susp eu, gr Ph`se	n ipsum dolor rit arnet, consectettr nsan. Nullam nepue velit, ornare v at gravida puam mollis id. Suspdr andisse bhbendum imperdiet kore avida qtis nisi. Integer pukvinar la Illus finibus telpus nisl.	r adipiscing elit. Eusce blandit s rek orci vel, mollis frhngilla mau ndisse lectus augte, auctor in a em ac placerat. Akiquam purus icus libern, eget volutpat enil fir	sapidn a dolor accumsan uris. Dondc sagittis elemensum Iliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum nibus non. Aliqu`m erat volutpat.	

One common reason to create skinless output is if you are creating an online eLearning course. You might not want people to use the main skin navigation or search field, but rather guide them through the course via an eLearning toolbar that is inserted with a proxy and eLearning Toolbar skin component. This is why the eLearning project templates available in the Start New Project Wizard are already set up as skinless.

How To Set Skinless Output in the Target

One way to create skinless output is to simply tell your target not to use a main skin.

- 1. Open the HTML5 target from the Project Organizer.
- 2. Select the Skin tab.
- 3. Click the drop-down arrow in the Skin field and select none.

General	General			
ikin	Skin:	(none)	~	Edit
e earning	Component Default Skins			
country	Menu:	(default)	~	Edit
Conditional Text	Topic Toolbar:	(default)	~	Edit
/ariables	eLearning Toolbar:	(default)	~	Edit
Publishing	Search Bar:	(default)	~	Edit
Glossary	Search Results:	(default)	~	Edit
Relationship Table	Favicon:	(default)	~	Edit
earch	Central Account:	(default)	~	Edit
1eta Tags	Test Results:	(default)	~	Edit
dvanced	FAQ:	(default)	~	Edit
	Knowledge:	(default)	~	Edit

4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

How to Set Skinless Output in the Skin

Another way to create skinless output is to remove navigation and perhaps also the header or search from the main HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skin. You technically still have the skin, but not the navigation that it provides.

- 1. Open the HTML5 Side or Top Navigation Skin.
- 2. On the Setup tab, set the Main Menu Position and Slide-Out Position fields to None.

HTML5 Skin Edito	or Preview		
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Slide-Out Menu Style: Fixed Header: Logo Url: (default) Skin Settings Skin ID: Side_Navigation TOC Options Automatically Synchronize TO	None V None None	

- On the Styles tab, you can set the Header > Layout > Display field to none. The removes the entire header. If you want to keep the header but just remove the search, set the Search Bar > Layout > Display field to none.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

NOTE Because skinless output does not include a main menu based on your TOC, the question must be asked, "How do you incorporate navigation into the output?" After all, you are likely to have more than just one topic and users will need to move from one page to another.

First, you can add various types of links throughout your content files. This might include features such as cross-references, hyperlinks, topic popups, image maps, and more. For more information about using links in Flare Desktop, see the Help system or the *Navigation Links Guide*.

Second, you can include proxies and skin components that allow you to inject small menus, toolbars, and search bars.

NOTE Although this type of output does not use a skin, you still must have at least one HTML5 skin in your project in order to generate a skinless target properly.

I Toolbars and Skins

There are three types of toolbars that you can add to your online output—topic, web, and eLearning. A topic toolbar displays buttons in a custom toolbar within the topic content, based on the insertion of a Topic Toolbar proxy. A web toolbar displays buttons within the skin framework. An eLearning toolbar is typically shown at the bottom of topics to guide individuals through an online eLearning course.





The kinds of toolbars (and sometimes the buttons) that are available depend on the type of skin you are using.

Skin Type	Topic Toolbar	Web Toolbar	eLearning Toolbar
HTML5 Top Navigation ¹	~	×	~
HTML5 Side Navigation ¹	~	×	~
HTML5 Skinless ¹	~	×	~
HTML5 Tripane ²	~	~	~
Standard ³	~	~	×

¹Side and Top Navigation—as well as skinless outputs—do not use frames, like other outputs do. Therefore, you must use a topic toolbar if you want to display toolbar buttons.

 2 In an HTML5 Tripane skin, you can configure a web toolbar by using the Toolbar tab.

³Although Pulse is supported in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus targets, you can add Pulse-related buttons (e.g., Edit User Profile, Topic Ratings) only in a WebHelp toolbar. You cannot add them in a topic toolbar.

Skin Features Per Output Type

Following are skin features supported in each output type.

	HTML5	PDF	Word	Clean XHTML	Eclipse Help	EPUB	HTML Help	ΡΡΤΧ
Skin Type	HTML5	×	×	×	×	×	Standar d	×
About Box	×	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Accordion Titles (Exclude)	×	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Browser Settings	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Caption for Output Window	✓1	×	×	×	X ²	×	~	×
Elements Such as Tabs, Accordions (Specify Default Element)	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	~	×

	HTML5	PDF	Word	Clean XHTML	Eclipse Help	EPUB	HTML Help	PPTX
Elements Such as Tabs, Accordions (Specify Which to Include)	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
FAQ Skin Component	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	~
Feedback Comments, Email Notifications, User Profile	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Flare Online Account Links	~	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Generate All	~	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Knowledge Skin Component	~	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Language Skins	✓3	~	~	×	×	~	~	×

	HTML5	PDF	Word	Clean XHTML	Eclipse Help	EPUB	HTML Help	ΡΡΤΧ
Links in Standalone Topics	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Menu Skin Component	~	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Navigation Pane Settings	~	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Preview Skin for Output Type	~	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Promotion Skin Component	~	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Runtime Skins (Choose Different Skins at Runtime)	~	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Search Bar Skin Component	✓4	×	×	×	×	×	×	×

	HTML5	PDF	Word	Clean XHTML	Eclipse Help	EPUB	HTML Help	ΡΡΤΧ
Search Results Skin Component	√ 4	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Separate UI Text Tab in Skin Editor for Localization	✓3	×	×	×	×	×	×	×
Styles	 	×	×	×	×	×	✓ 5	×
TOC Entry (Select Skin For)	×	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Topic Toolbar (Custom Settings)	✓ 6	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Web Toolbar (Add via Skin)	×	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Web Toolbar (Custom Settings)	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	~	×

	HTML5	PDF	Word	Clean XHTML	Eclipse Help	EPUB	HTML Help	ΡΡΤΧ
Window (Size/Positio n)	✓1	×	×	×	×	×	~	×
Window (User- Defined Size/Positio n)	×	×	×	×	×	×	~	×

¹This is available in the Tripane skin only. It is not available in the Side or Top Navigation skins.

²This is handled through the org.eclipse.help.base plug-in.

³As an alternative to using language skins, you can use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to perform all of the localization tasks for HTML5 targets. Be aware that translations in the Skin Editor are prioritized over translations in a language skin, so you should try to perform your localization tasks in one place to avoid conflicts.

 $^{\mathbf{4}}$ This is available in the Side and Top Navigation skins only. It is not available in the Tripane skin.

⁵Only some styles (e.g., Feedback, toolbar) are supported.

⁶Topic toolbar settings can be controlled in a Topic Toolbar skin component, as well as in a Topic Toolbar proxy.

CHAPTER 3

Process for Skins

Certain tasks must be completed in order when using this feature.

This chapter discusses the following:

Adding Skin Files	61
Opening Skins	63
Editing Skin Settings	64
Associating Skins With Targets	71

Adding Skin Files

Flare Desktop may provide you with an initial skin in your project. You can open this skin, edit its settings, and associate it with any targets you want to build. However, you might decide to add another skin to the project so that you have different skins for different targets. For HTML5 output, you can also add smaller skin components.

How to Add a Skin or a Skin Component File

- 1. Do one of the following, depending on the part of the user interface you are using:
 - Ribbon Select Project > New > Skin.
 - **Right-Click** In the Project Organizer, right-click on the **Skins** folder and from the context menu select **Add Skin**.

The Add File dialog opens.

- 2. In the File Type field at the top, make sure Skin is selected.
- 3. In the **Source** area, choose to create the new file based on a template or an existing file.
 - New From Template Choose either a factory template file or one of your own custom template files as a starting point. The new file will take on all of the settings contained in the template. If you want to use the factory template provided by Flare Desktop, expand the Factory Templates folder and click on a template file. If you want to use your own custom template file, expand the appropriate folder and click on a file. For more information about templates, see the Help system.
 - New From Existing Choose an existing file of the same type as a starting point for your new file. As with template files, your new file will take on all of the settings contained in the file you select. To use this option, click , use the Open File dialog to find a file, and double-click it.



- 4. (Optional) If you want to place the file into a subfolder previously created in the Content Explorer or Project Organizer, in the **Folder** field click and select the subfolder. Otherwise, keep the default location.
- 5. In the File Name field, type a new name for the skin.
- 6. (Optional) If you want to apply condition tags to the file, expand the **Attributes** section at the bottom of the dialog. Next to the **Condition Tags** field, click and select the conditions you want to apply. Click **OK**.
- 7. (Optional) If you want to apply file tags, expand the **Attributes** section at the bottom of the dialog. Next to the **File Tags** field, click **M** and select the file tags you want to apply. Click **OK**.
- 8. Click **Add**. The skin is added to the Skins folder in the Project Organizer. The Skin Editor opens to the right.

Opening Skins

After you add a skin to your project, it is stored in the Project Organizer under the Skins folder. At any time, you can open a skin and edit its settings in the Skin Editor.

How to Open a Skin From the Quick Launch Bar

The Quick Launch bar lets you search for any Flare Desktop file or command. It is located in the upper-right corner of the interface. You can press **CTRL+Q** on your keyboard to move focus to the Quick Launch bar so you can begin typing.



- 1. In the Quick Launch bar, type a few letters of the name of the file you want to open. Any available results appear in a drop-down list.
- 2. From the list, click the name of the file.

How to Open a Skin From the Project Organizer

- 1. Open the Project Organizer.
- 2. Double-click the **Skins** folder. The skin(s) in your project are displayed.
- 3. Double-click the skin that you want to open. The Skin Editor opens to the right.

Editing Skin Settings

After you add a skin or a skin component to your project, you can open it and edit its settings in the Skin Editor to meet your needs. The skin settings help determine the look and feel of your output window when you build a target.

There are various skin editing tasks for the different online output types in Flare Desktop. The primary tasks that you can perform are listed below.

Skin Activities

Some activities are used for some outputs but not for others.

Feature	Description
About Box (Standard Skins)	You can select an image to be used for the "About box" in the output window. You can use this About box for any purpose you like.
Accordion Title—Exclude (Standard Skins)	You can exclude the accordion title from output. This shifts the navigation buttons to the left.
Browser Settings (HTML5 Tripane and Standard Skins)	You can specify which features will be used in the output window when a browser is involved.
Buttons (HTML5 Tripane Skins)	You can specify web toolbar settings for some online outputs. This includes determining which buttons are displayed in the web toolbar. You can also add custom JavaScript for the toolbar.
Buttons (Standard Skins)	You can select the Help buttons that you would like to include in the output window (e.g., Hide, Forward, Back, Print, customized buttons).

Feature	Description
Caption (HTML5 Tripane and Standard Skins)	You can enter the caption that you want to be used at the top of your Help system window (e.g., in the title bar of the browser window or HTML Help viewer).
Flare Online Account Link (HTML5 Skins)	You can produce private output that requires a user to log in with an email and Flare Online password. Without credentials, people cannot see the output. It is possible to set private output for all output types supported by Flare Online. Also, accessing private output is not limited to people in your company. Flare Online has a free viewer user type that you can use to add any of your customers to your Flare Online license, and then give them access to live private output. After users log in to see private output, an account link displays in the output interface for HTML5 targets (not for other output types). If the output is not set to private, this link is not shown. When users hover over the link, a menu shows two options. You can change the look of this account link in an HTML5 skin.
Index—Binary (Standard Skins)	You can create a binary index for your project. Binary indexes are intended for merging multiple CHM files when you build a target. The index keywords in the CHM files are sorted alphabetically and numerically for display in the output.
Index—Bookmarks (Standard Skins)	If you want index term links to point to the exact spot in the topic where the index marker has been set, you need to specify this in the Skin Editor. Otherwise, the index term links will point to the topic in general. However, by pointing to the individual index markers, the index may not display the way you want if the index term points to multiple topics and you also have created a binary index. In other words, index entries pointing to multiple topics will display the index terms repeated instead of the topic title. A workaround is to deselect the binary index option in the Skin Editor. However, keep in mind that a binary index is required if you want to merge CHM files.

Feature	Description
Localization and UI Text (HTML5 and Standard Skins)	As an alternative to using language skins, you can use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to perform all of the localization tasks for HTML5 targets. This tab not only lets you enter text in other languages, but it lets you change the substance of text strings altogether, whether they are in your primary language or another. If you are using a standard skin, you can use the Styles tab to localize skin settings.
Mediums (HTML5 Skins)	To support responsive output, HTML5 skins come equipped with three mediums—Web, Tablet, and Mobile. You can use these mediums to specify different looks when necessary for the different devices people might be using to view your output.
Micro Content (HTML5 Skins)	You can include micro content containers (e.g., featured snippets, Knowledge Panel) for HTML5 search results output. However, you can also use more advanced micro content proxies (e.g., FAQ, Knowledge, Promotion) and related skin components for more choices and control over your micro content.
Navigation Link— Standalone Topics (HTML5 Tripane and Standard Skins)	You can add a link to the top or bottom of topics in HTML5, WebHelp, or WebHelp Plus outputs. This link will not display unless the output topic is opened as a standalone (outside of the main navigation framework of the output). By clicking the link, a user can view the standalone topic in the main navigation framework.
Navigation Pane (HTML Help) (Standard Skins)	You can specify navigation pane settings for Microsoft HTML Help output. This includes setting the width of the navigation pane and determining whether it shown or hidden under different circumstances. The navigation pane is used to hold elements such as TOCs and indexes.

Feature	Description
Navigation Pane (HTML5 and WebHelp) (HTML5 and Standard Skins)	You can specify navigation settings for HTML5, WebHelp, or WebHelp Plus output. For some of these outputs, the navigation pane is used to hold the TOC, Index, Search, Glossary, Browse Sequences, and Favorites in an accordion-type structure. For HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs, the navigation pane settings let you choose the main menu and slide-out position, fixed header, depth level of menu items (Top Navigation only), slide-out menu style, and a URL for a logo.
Preview (HTML5 and Standard Skins)	You can see how your skin settings look in each of the online output types.
Print Medium (HTML5)	The print medium in skin files is for styling printed pages from the generated online target (i.e., a browser function).
Responsive Output— Enable (HTML5 Skins)	Responsive web design (RWD) is a way to construct your HTML5 output so that the display and content are adjusted automatically depending on the device. Therefore, on tablets and mobile devices such as smart phones, users will see a condensed look and perhaps different text that is more appropriate for those devices, compared with larger monitors. You can get the same effect if you shrink your browser to a smaller size.
Skin ID (HTML5 Skins)	You can assign skin IDs to your skin if you want to use a specific skin for context-sensitive Help. Skin IDs are also used to allow users to choose from multiple skins to change the display of the output.
Styles (HTML5 and Standard Skins)	For certain elements of the online output window (e.g., menu, search, navigation pane, TOC or browse sequence entries, index keywords) you can determine skin style settings. The styles available depend on the type of skin.

Feature	Description
Tabs/Accordions/Links (HTML5 Tripane and Standard Skins)	You can determine which navigation elements from your project (e.g., TOC, Index, Glossary, Browse Sequences) that you want users to have access to in the output. If you are creating Microsoft HTML Help output, these elements will display as tabs in the output window (except for a glossary, which is included in the TOC as a book). If you are creating HTML5 Tripane, WebHelp, or WebHelp Plus, these elements will display as accordion items in the output window. In some outputs, you can select one of the navigation elements to serve as the default in the output. This feature is not supported in HTML5 Top Navigation output.
TOC—Binary (Standard Skins)	You can create a binary table of contents (TOC) for your project. Binary TOCs are intended for very large compiled Microsoft HTML Help projects, reducing the amount of time it takes to load a TOC.
TOC—Look (Standard Skins)	You can specify the look and feel of your table of contents (TOC). This includes adding plus/minus squares next to entries, changing the book/folder icons, adding border around the TOC, and more.
TOC—Reduce Flicker/Embed Visible TOC Entries (HTML5 Side and Top Navigation Skins)	For frameless output (HTML5 Side or Top Navigation) you can reduce "flicker" effects that users might see when clicking in the main table of contents (TOC) navigation. This can be done by selecting the "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option on the Setup tab of the Skin Editor. When this option is enabled, the top-level (i.e., parent) TOC items are preloaded (i.e., embedded) into the output topics. Because of this, the movement (or "flicker") when opening topics is less significant.

Feature	Description
TOC—Synchronize (HTML5 and Standard Skins)	You can customize your output so that users can always see where the current topic belongs in the table of contents (TOC), even if they did not access the topic via the TOC. This can be done by selecting the "Automatically Synchronize TOC" option on the Setup tab of the Skin Editor. When users navigate from topic to topic in the output, the TOC automatically changes accordingly, highlighting the topic that is open. See "Synchronizing the TOC With Open Topics" on page 520.
Topic Toolbar Custom Settings (Standard Skins)	In addition to the regular web toolbars that can be included in all most online outputs, you have another option for including toolbars. This option lets you insert toolbars anywhere in any topics. See "Topic Toolbars in WebHelp Outputs" on page 527.
Web Toolbar—Add for HTML Help (Standard Skins)	You can add a web toolbar that displays at the top of each topic. This toolbar is added automatically if you have enabled MadCap Feedback in the target, but you can add the toolbar manually in the Skin Editor, even if you are not using MadCap Feedback.
Web Toolbar Custom Settings (HTML5 Tripane and Standard Skins)	You can specify web toolbar settings for some online outputs. This includes determining which buttons are displayed in the web toolbar. You can also add custom JavaScript for the toolbar.
Window—Size/Position (HTML5 Tripane and Standard Skins)	You can set the size and position of the output window. The size refers to the height and width of the output window. The position refers to the distance that the output window is placed from the top, bottom, left, and right of the user's computer screen.
Window—User-defined Size/Position (Standard Skins)	You can let end users control the position and size of the output window by using an option on the HTML Help Setup tab of the Skin Editor. This option causes an HTML Help (CHM) file to save its window position and size after its first use. The next time, it will open at the same window position and size.

▶ NOTE If you want to display the output user interface in a particular language, you can modify styles in a language skin instead of a regular skin. As an alternative to using language skins, you can use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to perform all of the localization tasks for HTML5 targets. This tab not only lets you enter text in other languages, but it lets you change the substance of text strings altogether, whether they are in your primary language or another. For more information see the Help system.

Associating Skins With Targets

After you add a skin to your project and edit the settings in Flare Desktop, you can associate it with a target. After you build the target, the output will be displayed in the skin. For HTML5 targets, you can also tell Flare Desktop not to use any skin at all.

How to Associate a Skin With a Target

- 1. Open the target from the Project Organizer.
- 2. Do one of the following, depending on the type of output:
 - HTML5 Select the Skin tab.
 - Others Select the General tab.
- 3. Click the drop-down arrow in the **Skin** field and select the skin that you want to associate with the target.

If you have opened an HTML5 target and do not want to use a full skin at all, you can instead select **none**. If you do this, you might want to insert various kinds of proxies and use related skin components in order to provide navigation for your users.

- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.
- **NOTE** If you are producing HTML5 output, you can also associate skin components with a target, although it is more common to associate them with proxies.

CHAPTER 4

HTML5 Skin Styles

There are many ways to style your HTML5 skin, whether it be a Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or Tripane skin, or one of the skin components. From the Project Organizer, open the skin, select the **Styles** tab in the Skin Editor, and make your changes on the right.

If you enable the skin to produce responsive output—meaning that the look of the output can automatically adjust depending on the size of the end user's device—there are additional features for making the output look the way you it want to.

This chapter discusses the following:

Mediums	74
Enabling Responsive Output	76
Interactive Live Preview	77
Style Groups and Properties Sections	80
Horizontal or Vertical Viewing	91
Default Values in Gray	93
Medium-Specific Styles	94
Activities for HTML5 Skins and Components	
eLearning Toolbar in HTML5 Skin Components	
Feedback in HTML5 Skins	146
Headers in HTML5 Skins	155
Main Page in HTML5 Skins	
Menus in HTML5 Skins	
Navigation in HTML5 Skins	201
---	------
Search Results in HTML5 Skins	217
Test Results in HTML5 Skin Components	.238
Topic Proxies in HTML5 Skins	.250
Topic Toolbars in HTML5 Skin Components	263
Topics in HTML5 Skins	.274

I Mediums

To support responsive output, HTML5 skins come equipped with three mediums/media queries— Web, Tablet, and Mobile. Web kind of serves as both a medium and media query in Flare Desktop (controlling how skins and content look on a large screen), whereas tablet and mobile are technically both media queries, not mediums. You can use these media queries to specify different looks when necessary for the various devices people might be using to view your output.

H	ITML5 Skin mediums.	
HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview Web Medium Tablet Medium Mobile Medium Print Medium Highlight	
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~)	
	 Side Navigation Search Results Home Topic 	Your
	 Topic Proxies After selecting a medium, make your style changes in this area. Select a style to see its properties 	Did ye
		1. lr 2. S 3. C

- Web When you first open an HTML5 skin, Web Medium is selected. With that medium chosen, any changes you make to the styles are applied to that medium. This means that when users are viewing your output on a regular browser, that's the look they will see.
- **Tablet** If you want to change the look that users see when viewing your output on a tablet, select **Tablet Medium** and make your style changes.
- Mobile If you want to change the look that users see when viewing your output on a mobile device, select Mobile Medium and make your style changes.

Similar to cascading stylesheets (CSS), there is a system of inheritance at work with skin mediums. The Web medium is the default. Most settings in that medium are inherited by the Tablet medium. In turn, settings in the Tablet medium are inherited by the Mobile medium. Therefore, if you want all of the mediums to share the same look (e.g., your company logo), you can set it once in the Web medium and it will automatically be used in all three. If you make any changes in the Tablet medium, those settings will override whatever had been inherited from the Web medium. Likewise, you can make changes in the Mobile medium, which will override any settings inherited from the Tablet medium.

- NOTE An exception to this inheritance is with navigation icon images. Because these icon images are often different sizes in the Web medium than in the other mediums, most navigation icon images do not pass down from the Web medium to the Tablet medium. However, the Tablet medium does inherit the icon image used for the "Mark as New" feature from the Web medium. Also, icon images are passed down from the Tablet medium to the Mobile medium.
- ► NOTE Within each medium, the icons under the TOC Entry style inherit from the icon settings in the Navigation Panel > TOC. Therefore, if no icons are set in the TOC Entry style classes in the Web medium, Flare Desktop will use the Navigation Panel > TOC icons in that medium. The same holds true for the Tablet medium; if no icons are set in the TOC Entry classes in the Tablet medium, they will be inherited from the Navigation Panel > TOC icons in the Tablet medium. And the same is the case with the Mobile medium.

NOTE In the HTML5 Skin Editor, the user interface displays a Print medium button next to the Web, Tablet, and Mobile mediums. The main purpose of the Print medium is for controlling how the skin looks when printed from an online source. The Print medium in the skin is its own entity, separate from the other mediums, and it does not share the same purpose as mediums in the stylesheet or in responsive output.

Enabling Responsive Output

Enabling responsive output for HTML5 Tripane skins can be accomplished by clicking a check box in the Setup tab. You do not need to enable responsive output for Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, because it is always enabled in those cases. However, you can adjust settings in the Target Editor.

- 1. Open an HTML5 Tripane skin and select the **Setup** tab.
- 2. In the Responsive Output Settings section, select Enable responsive output.
- 3. (Optional) Responsive output works by automatically changing the display once the viewer reaches a certain width. You can change the maximum width at which the display changes from one medium to the next. Use the following to specify responsive settings for a skin. For more information about making topic content responsive, see the Help system.
 - Tablet Max-Width Enter the number of pixels for the maximum width of a Tablet view.
 - Mobile Max-Width Enter the number of pixels for the maximum width of a Mobile view.
 - **EXAMPLE** You keep the default settings of 1279 pixels for the Tablet maximum width and 767 pixels for the Mobile maximum width.

If you generate output and view it in a regular browser with the window maximized, you will see the skin style settings for the Web medium.

You then click and drag the browser window to reduce it. Once the width of the browser window reaches 1279 pixels of width, the display changes to show the skin style settings associated with the Tablet medium.

You continue to reduce the size of the browser window. Once the width reaches 767 pixels, the display changes to show the settings for the Mobile medium.

Therefore, the Web medium is named as it is because the largest size is usually meant for a regular web browser. The next size down is often used for tablets, such as iPads, so that medium is called "Tablet." And the smallest size is controlled by the Mobile medium, because a display that small is usually seen in mobile phones.

4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Interactive Live Preview

The preview area in the Styles tab of the HTML5 Skin Editor is more than just a static image. You can click in the preview to move around and open different areas.

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview Web Medium	n Tablet Medium	Mobile Medium	Print Medium Highlight
Setup				1
Community	Filter	Q		YOUR LOGO
Styles	🖻 Global 🗧	^		place your company logo here
UI Text	▲ Header	The preview rea is live and		topic
	Logo	interactive.		
	Search Bar	_		
	Skip to Content			Your search for "topi
	Flare Online Account			Did you mean tonic?
	▷ Menu	~		Bla you mean <u>topio</u> ?
	Header			
	Filter 🔎		1 In the Content Explorer cl	
	Background			2. Select a template.
	▷ Layout			 Give the topic a name. Click Add.
	Padding			
	▷ Size			

If you click **Highlight** in the local toolbar, the mode changes. As a result, different areas of the preview area become highlighted as you move the mouse over them. And when you click on an area, the corresponding style on the left is also selected. This makes it easier to know what styles you need to change in order to affect that part of the skin. The reverse is also true; as you click on styles, the corresponding area in the preview comes into focus if it is visible in the preview area.



After you make style changes, the preview changes accordingly.

You can also click the full preview option in the local toolbar of the Skin Editor.



This full preview respects the responsive output setting in the skin. If you have responsive output enabled, the preview is also responsive. If the responsive output disabled, the preview is static.

Style Groups and Properties Sections

When you open the Skin Editor to make changes to skin styles, the styles are organized for easy navigation and editing.

Style groups are in one section while their corresponding properties are in another. The style sections mimic a tree structure with root and child nodes, where a root node is the parent to a connecting child node. By default, the style groups are truncated to the root node, but can be expanded by selecting the expand/collapse icons next to them. The style groups and properties are dynamic (i.e., displayed, or hidden) based on what is applicable to the selected skin, setup options, and style. Use the style group section to pinpoint a style to edit.



► NOTE You also click to expand all the style groups at once, and then click to collapse the styles to the root level.

Once a style group is selected at a root or child level, its corresponding properties show in the properties section (if properties are applicable). Use the properties section to identify a specific style property to change.



There is also a filter to quickly find what you might be looking for to change in the skin.

EXAMPLE You want to change the search bar width, but you're not sure where to look in the Skin Editor's Style tab to do this.

In the **Filter** field, type search. The results take you to the matching style group. Note that the filter does fuzzy matching, so you could enter part of a word and see a possible match for what you are looking for.

Now that you see where the search bar skin options are, you can click the style to see its properties. In the properties section, another filter appears to pinpoint the property options. In this **Filter** field, type width. The results take you to the appropriate property for adjusting the width size.



If you make changes to a root style, all the child styles below it will inherit those changes.

★ EXAMPLE You have a Tripane skin and want to change the background color of the navigation panels from white to dark red in the Web medium. First, in the style groups section, you expand the Navigation node, and then you expand the Navigation Panel node. Under these root nodes are five more style groups that represent the kinds of panels you can include in your output—Browse Sequences, Community, Glossary, Index, TOC. (In the Tablet and Mobile mediums you would see Browse Sequences, Glossary, Index, Search Filters, and TOC.)



Because you want each of those five panels to have the same color, you select the **Navigation Panel** style group. The corresponding properties (i.e., Background, Padding, and Border) display in the properties section. Then, you expand the root **Background** node. There is a Gradient field, a Color field, and an image field. The image has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use a color, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.



You use the Color field to choose a dark red color.

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview Web Medium Tablet Mediu	m Mobile Medium Highlight 🕏 Add Class	Delete Class
Ger As yo Size the In Set see th	u select other panels, such as dex panel (shown here), you'll nat all the panels are dark red.	Software	Θ
Community	P Header	Search Index	
Community	A Navigation		
Styles	Navigation Link	Alcohol	
UI lext	A Navigation Panel	Bribery	Int
	Browse Sequences	Discrimination	A#
	Community	 Drugs 	
	Glossary	Email	
	Index	▶ П	5
	тос	Misconduct	∢ Sa
	Nucleation & Nevientian Panel	Sexual harassment	Th
	Filter	men	Th
			All
	Background		the
	Gradient transparent + 3		Fo
	Color #860000 ~ 🔄 🗹		Ge
	Image		Ge
	Repeat v		ha
	b. Perder		Re

If you select style groups under a child node, the same properties show as you see above in the root node.



If you make changes to child properties, those settings override anything inherited from the root, and they pertain only to that child.

EXAMPLE You have set the root Background property to show the navigation panel in dark red, as described in the previous example.

If you want the Glossary panel to show in green instead, you can select **Glossary**, and then expand the **Background** property that corresponds to it.

In the Color field, you select a green color. As a result, the Glossary panel is green.





NOTE When changing a color in the Skin Editor, you can use CSS variables. For selecting a \square CSS variable you can open the Color Picker, and select a color from the Variables tab. Color Picker with a Variables tab. This is ideal for picking a branding CSS variable. Tab scroll buttons. 💋 Color Picker 2 Na 🖌 🕨 Recent Variables Saved Color Name ٨ 0 var(--Brand1) var(--Brand2) var(--Medium) var(--Light) var(--ExtraLight) var(--Dark) var(--Black) ÷ # C0504D 🖬 🙎 Enable CMYK Current C 0 ÷ % \$ % ÷ % ● H 2 🔾 R 192 🖨 M 58 \$ % ÷ \$ % 🔾 s 🔾 G 🛛 80 Y 60 60 OB 75 ÷ % OB 77 + K 25 ÷ % New OK Cancel

► NOTE You can use CSS variables to select an image in the Skin Editor. Use the drop-down, or you can type the variable reference into the field directly. Note that the Skin Editor supports path-referenced images instead of hard-coded images.



When inserting images, be aware that you cannot select a CSS variable for an image inserted directly into a content file in Flare Desktop. Instead, you need to set a CSS variable as a background image, which you can do through a stylesheet or skin.

NOTE You cannot select a CSS variable for fonts in the Skin Editor interface. However, you can manually enter the font family variable into the field.

4	Font		
	Color	var(Dark)	× 🙆 🛃
	Family	var(FontFamily)	~
	Size	1 🜩 em 🗡	
	Meinlet		

Horizontal or Vertical Viewing

You can view the style groups section and properties section in a horizontal way (i.e., columns stacked one on top of the other), or in a vertical fashion (i.e., side-by-side). You can change the position to your preference, and also set all the style groups to display as expanded or collapsed.





How to Switch Viewing Preference

- 1. In the Skin Editor **Styles** tab, from the local toolbar, select **I**. (By default, the editor is set to the horizontal view.)
- 2. (Optional) Select 📴 Expand All. (By default, the skin options are collapsed.)
- 3. At any time, you can switch back to the other view. From the local toolbar, select 📃.

Default Values in Gray

When making changes to skin styles in HTML5 skins, you may notice that some fields display text or numbers in gray. This is the default value for that particular field. If you enter a different value, the font displays in a darker font.



I Medium-Specific Styles

Responsive output lets you place settings on styles using any of the three mediums—Web, Tablet, and Mobile. However, not all styles and properties are necessarily pertinent to all mediums. That's why only see some styles and properties when you have a particular medium selected and not another.



When you select either the Tablet or Mobile Medium, you can see and adjust the Navigation Slide Out Button.



But when you select the Web medium, this style is not available because it isn't used in larger web browser views of the output.

CHAPTER 4

Activities for HTML5 Skins and Components

You might perform the following style activities if you are working in an HTML5 skin or a skin component.

Global—All HTML5 Skins

The global section contains main page styles for Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins. See "Main Page in HTML5 Skins" on page 181.

SIDE AND TOP SIDE NAVIGATION SKINS

For Side and Top Navigation skins, you can control the padding and maximum width for the page.



TRIPANE SKINS

For Tripane skins, you can control the font and background color for the page.

	This is the main page for an HTM Tripane skin. The background col	L5 lor
HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview Web Medium Tablet Medium Mob IS set as red.	lass
General		
Size	Filter	
Setup	▲ Global	
Toolbar	Main Page	
Community	Header	
Styles	Global > Main Page Sample Policies	1
use the Global >	Filter 🔎 How To Use This Template	Int
Main Page style	Background	Δf
for styling the page.	Gradient Gradient transparent transparent Gradient	~
	Color #ff0000 ~ 🙆 🗾	5
	Image none v 🛋	▲ Sa
	Repeat Y	Th
	A Font	Th
	Family Arial Y	All
	Size 12 px V	the
	Style normal Y	Fo
		Ge

Header-All HTML5 Skins

The header is the area at the top of the screen for Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins. See "Headers in HTML5 Skins" on page 155.

SIDE NAVIGATION SKINS

For Side Navigation skins, the header displays a logo, search bar, and Flare Online account link (if you are producing private output).



TOP NAVIGATION SKINS

For Top Navigation skins, the header displays a logo, the search bar, top menu, and Flare Online account link (if you are producing private output).



TRIPANE SKINS

For Tripane skins, the header displays a logo, search bar, and Flare Online account link (if you are producing private output).



NOTE If you want to style items for search results, you can use the Search section in the Skin Editor. Alternatively, you can use the Search Results skin component, which works with a Search Results proxy.

▶ NOTE The Tripane skin you are using applies a theme to the header and search bar. Tripane Light uses a light gray header and search bar; Tripane uses a dark gray header and search bar.

Flare Online Account Link Skin Component

One of the tasks that the Header area in Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins lets you perform is modifying the look of the Flare Online account link that is used for private outputs. Alternatively, you can use a Flare Online Account Link proxy to add the link some place other than the header, and you can use a Flare Online Account Link skin component to control the look for it.

The options in the skin component are the same as the Flare Online account link options in the Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins.



Search Bar Skin Component

One of the tasks that the Header area in Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins lets you perform is modifying the look of the search bar at the top of pages. Alternatively, you can use a Search Bar proxy to add a custom search bar elsewhere, and you can use a Search Bar skin component to control the look for it.

The options in the skin component are the same as the search bar options in the Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins.



The Search Bar skin component is not supported if you are generating Tripane output. It is only available when you are producing Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output.

Menu–Side/Top Navigation Skins, Menu Skin Components

You can control the look of the menu that is included with a Side or Top Navigation skin, as well as additional menus that you add through the Menu proxy. See "Menus in HTML5 Skins" on page 185.

SIDE NAVIGATION SKINS

For Side Navigation skins, the Side Navigation style group and properties are used to control the look of the menu that is displayed on the left or right side of topics. You can specify settings for the entire menu, or for individual items at varying levels within the menu.



The main menu items, and their sub-levels correspond to the items in your TOC file. If you make changes to properties for the main menu nodes, such as Menu, Item, Item (hover), and Item (selected), they are applied to the root (top) level of the menu, which is the same as the first-level items in your TOC file.



Any changes to the sub-levels of the Side Navigation menu item's (i.e., 1st Level, 2nd Level, 3rd Level, 4th Level) correspond to the items in the TOC file. Second-level items in the TOC correspond to the Item's 1st Level, third-level TOC items to the 2nd Level, and so on.



In the Side Navigation HTML5 Skin Editor, keep in mind that lower level items inherit property values that are placed on higher items (e.g., closer to the top), unless you specifically change them to be different.

Getting Started What's New	In this example, properties are changed down to each menu iten level. This is how it might look in the output		
More Informa	ation		
Features	- -		
Procedures	•		
Procedure 1			
Procedure 2			
Procedu	re 3 🔷		
Proc	cedure 4		
FAQs			
Tips			
Company			

TOP NAVIGATION SKINS

For Top Navigation skins, the Top Navigation style group and properties are used to control the look of the menu that is displayed at the top of topics. You can specify settings for the entire menu, or for individual items at varying levels within the menu.



The main menu items, and their sub-levels correspond to the items in your TOC file. If you make changes to properties for the main menu nodes, such as Top Navigation Menu, Item, Item (hover), they are applied to the root (top) level of the menu, which is the same as the first-level items in your TOC file.

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview Web Medium	Tablet Medium Mobile Medium Print Medium Highlight	
Setup			
Community	Filter	P Home Topic Search Results	s Proxies
Styles	▷ Global		
UI Text	Header		
	▲ Menu		
	Top Navigation Menu		
	1st Level	In this example, the Top Navigation	
	2nd Level	Menu background area is dark gray,	
	3rd Level	(The background for the individual	
	4th Level	Item can only be set at the root level.)	
	▲ Item		
	1st Level		
	2nd Level		
Any changes to the Top Navigation Menu item's sub-levels (i.e., 1st Level, 2nd Level, 3rd Level, 4th Level) correspond to the items in the TOC file. Second-level items in the TOC correspond to the Item's 1st Level, third-level TOC items to the 2nd Level, and so on.



In the Top Navigation HTML5 Skin Editor the lower level items inherit property values that are placed on higher items (e.g., closer to the top), unless you specifically change them to be different.



MENU SKIN COMPONENTS

A Menu skin component can work in tandem with a Menu proxy that you insert into a topic or template page. This feature is most useful in Top Navigation and skinless outputs.





The styles for a Menu skin component are similar to those for the full Top Navigation skin, but there are some differences and options unique to each.

The primary thing to remember about a Menu component is that it can be context-sensitive, meaning it refers only to the topic that is open and, depending on your settings, the parent, sibling, and child items from the TOC. On the other hand, the menu styles in the full Top Navigation skin are always concerned with your TOC file structure as a whole.

That being said, the menu item style levels in a Menu component can mean something different than they do for the full Top Navigation skin.



When you set values for the Menu Item or Item (hover) nodes, you are controlling the look for the menu items that are at the top level of the menu. If you insert a context-sensitive Menu proxy that includes the parent, the root Menu Item style group refers to the parent topic.



If you don't include the parent, but you do include the siblings, the root Menu Item style refers to those sibling topics in the TOC.



The 1st Level style refers to the first level under the root, followed by 2nd Level, 3rd Level, and 4th Level. The same kind of inheritance used for menu items in the full Top Navigation skin is used for a Menu component.

Menu Skin Editor Web Medium Tablet Me				Mobile Medium	Print Mediur	m Highlight
Styles		Ē				
Setup	Filter A Men A Iter 1s 2r	nu m it Level nd Level	م ^	Root Item 1st Leve 2nd I 2nd I 1st Leve 2nd I 3r	1 el Item 1 Level Item Level Item el Item 2 Level Item rd Level Ite 4th Level	1 1 1 2 1 1 em 1 1 ltem 1
	3r			Λ		
	4t	h Level				
	Se	elected	_	/ L		
	⊳ (h	over)	Int	this example, d	ifferent	
	Menu >	Item > 3rd Lev	el CO	olors are set at t	he root	
	Filter		6	and at the first t	three	
	▶ Back		au	atomatically inh	eritsits	
	▷ Bloc	k	C	olor from the cl	losest	
	▲ Font	:	v	alue is explicit	ly set.	
	Colo	pr #1e90ff	~ 💁 💆			
	Fam	ily	Ŷ]		
	Size	1 📥 e	m ¥			

There is also a style called "Selected" for Menu components. This lets you apply a unique look to the menu item that refers to the topic that is currently open.



Navigation—All HTML5 Skins

For Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins, the Navigation style group and properties are used to control the look of navigation elements, which allow users to open different parts of your output. See "Navigation in HTML5 Skins" on page 201.

SIDE AND TOP NAVIGATION SKINS

For Side and Top Navigation skins, the Navigation style group and properties are used to control the look of the side flyout navigation pane when displayed on a tablet or mobile device. It is not shown if you are working in the Web medium view in the Skin Editor, but only in the Tablet and Mobile mediums.



TRIPANE SKINS

For Tripane skins, the Navigation style group and properties are available in all three mediums, although there are different options available for the Tablet and Mobile mediums.



Topic—Tripane Skins

For Tripane skins, the Topic style groups and properties are used to control the look of the topic area of the output. This includes the container holding the topic content, and the toolbar just above the topic content. See "Topics in HTML5 Skins" on page 274.



Search Results—All HTML5 Skins, Search Results Components

You can use a Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or Tripane skin to change the appearance of search result items. You can also do this with a smaller Search Results skin component. See "Search Results in HTML5 Skins" on page 217.

SIDE AND TOP NAVIGATION SKINS

For Side and Top Navigation skins, you can control the look of search result elements such as the heading, abstract (i.e., descriptive text of the file), links, glossary terms, pagination, featured snippets, and Knowledge Panel. Search highlighting is controlled in your regular stylesheet by modifying special classes under the span style.



TRIPANE SKINS

For Tripane skins, you can control the look of search result elements such as the heading, search highlighting, abstract (i.e., descriptive text of the file), links, glossary terms, pagination, featured snippets, and Knowledge Panel.



SEARCH RESULTS SKIN COMPONENTS

Alternatively, you can use the Search Results skin component and its related proxy to design a custom container to display search results.

The options in the skin component are the same as those in the Side or Top Navigation skin. Chances are good that you will never need to use a Search Results skin component, but it is available in case you want the flexibility of having another page showing search results.

The Search Results skin component is not supported if you are generating Tripane output. It is only available when you are producing Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output.

NOTE If you want to style the search bar and its elements, you can use the Header section in the Skin Editor, or you can use a Search Bar skin component.

FEATURED SNIPPETS AND KNOWLEDGE PANEL

You can use a Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or Tripane skin to control micro content that might display in the HTML5 output. Under the Search Results style groups, you can select featured snippets and Knowledge Panel nodes.

Featured Snippets Featured snippets display in HTML5 output above the regular search results, according to phrases closely matching an end user's keyword(s). You can filter to more specifically determine which micro content might display as featured snippets. You can also change its view mode (Plain Text, Truncated, or Drop-Down) in your HTML5 skin.



Knowledge Panel Micro content can be displayed in HTML5 search results in an area called the "Knowledge Panel." By default, this panel displays on the right side of the search results page. However, you can edit the skin to display it on the left side or in the middle (above the featured snippets and regular search results). You can also change its view mode (Plain Text, Truncated, or Drop-Down) in your HTML5 skin.



- Large
- Tolerates cold weather

Saint Bernards B-Breeds/Saint-Bernards.htm#microcontent1

Feedback—Tripane Skins

For Tripane skins, these are style groups for elements that are displayed if you integrate your output with MadCap Feedback. See "Feedback in HTML5 Skins" on page 146.



eLearning Toolbar Skin Components

The eLearning Toolbar skin component dictates the general appearance for the navigation elements in your course. You can edit the eLearning Toolbar skin component to select which buttons are included in the course and control how they look and feel in the output.

	eLearning Toolbar Skin Editor Web Medium Tablet Medium Mobile Medium Print Medium Highlight					
	Setup			Nevt ->	Complete →	
	Styles	Filter D	(Trevious	HOAT Y	oompiete y	Page 1 of 3
	UI Text	 Toolbar Button Button Separator Progress 	← Previous	Next →	Complete \rightarrow	
Use the eLearning Toolbar style groups and properties to customize navigation	$\left \right>$	Inner Bar Text Toolbar > Progress > Text		During the 1800s. Austin saw an increa		rease in output
elements in a course.		Filter		hub for technolog	y, business, and liv	ve must
		Color Wrooss V V III V Family V Size 10 V V Weight bold V Style normal V		← Previous	Next →	Page 2 of 15
		Padding				

Test Results Skin Components

The autogenerated test results page includes many sections that are visible by default. You can use the Test Results Skin Editor to determine which sections display in the output, and also to customize the look and feel of the test results page.

Test	Test Results Skin Editor Web Medium Tablet Medium Mobile Medium Print Medium Highlight		
Set	tup 🔲 🖻 🖻		
Styl	les Filter	You have not completed all of the questions in this test.	
ULI	Text / Test Results		
	Title	Topic 2	
	Score Title		
	Score	You have reached the maximum number of attempts.	
	▷ Result		
	Question Container	Title	
Use the Test Results	Question Feedback	Secret 80%	
style groups and	Maxed Attempts Warning	Score. 80%	
the look and feel of the	Incomplete Test Warning		
test results page.	Incomplete Page Link	Passed	
	Test Results	Failed	
	Pritter		
	Background		
	border	Is this the first question?	
	v Padding	Your Answer:	
		This is the first correct answer.	
		Correct Answer:	
		This is the first correct answer. This is the second correct answer.	

Topic Toolbar Skin Components

In Topic Toolbar skin components, you can use skin styles used to control the look of a toolbar you add via a proxy. See "Topic Toolbars in HTML5 Skin Components" on page 263.



Topic Proxies—Side/Top Navigation Skins, Micro Content Skin Components

You can edit micro content elements in your HTML5 output using full skins with topic proxies (e.g., FAQ, Knowledge, Promotion). However, for maximum control and customization you can add a micro content skin component for each topic proxy.

FAQ PROXY

The FAQ proxy lets you generate a list of phrases and responses for the selected micro content file (s) in most outputs. Results are static, based on specific criteria selected when the target is built, not on the search engine output. This type of proxy is ideal for including traditional FAQs, but it can be used for other purposes as well.



KNOWLEDGE PROXY

The Knowledge proxy lets you display filtered micro content items in HTML5 output. Results are dynamic, generated at runtime in the browser, using search engine rankings. You might use a Knowledge proxy to display content such as information about a person, a company, technical specifications, related tasks, etc.



PROMOTION PROXY

The Promotion proxy lets you display random micro content items in HTML5 output. Results are dynamic, generated at runtime in the browser, using the search engine. You might use a Promotion proxy to display information about relevant products, events, new features, etc.



eLearning Toolbar in HTML5 Skin Components

The eLearning Toolbar skin component dictates the general appearance for the navigation elements in your course. You can edit the eLearning Toolbar skin component to select which buttons are included in the course and control how they look and feel in the output.



How to Edit the eLearning Toolbar Skin Component

Edit the eLearning Toolbar skin component to customize what the toolbar should look like when a learner navigates through a course. In the eLearning Toolbar Skin Editor, there are three tabs where you can make changes to the toolbar.

- 1. From the Project Organizer, expand the **Skins** folder, and double-click the skin for eLearning. The eLearning Toolbar Skin Editor opens.
- 2. Select the **Setup** tab, and choose the toolbar buttons to include. By default the Previous Topic, Next Topic, and Progress Bar are selected to display in the output. You can use the bottom local toolbar to delete and arrange items, or add a separator element.
- 3. Select the **Styles** tab. Using this tab you can customize the look and feel of the toolbar, individual buttons, and the progress bar.
- 4. (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles.
- 5. In the editor, expand and select any of the **Toolbar** style groups.
 - ✓ TIP To quickly find a style to edit, from the local toolbar, click the Highlight button. This enables Highlight mode, where the right panel in the editor is a live preview. Click any part of the live preview and it locates the corresponding style in the left panel to edit. Once a style is updated, it displays as such in the live preview.

Style Group	Description
Toolbar	This controls the look and feel of the entire toolbar.
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4
Toolbar > Button	This controls how the buttons look (e.g., Previous, Next, and Complete). You can customize each button individually.
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4
Toolbar > Button > (hover)	This controls how a toolbar button looks when it is hovered over with a mouse. You can customize each button individually.
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4
Toolbar > Button > (disabled)	This controls how a toolbar button looks when it is in a disabled state. You can customize each button individually.
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4

Style Group	Description		
Toolbar > Button Separator	This controls the look of separators if added to the toolbar. A separator is the divider between the toolbar buttons.		
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4		
Progress	This controls the progress bar container (or wrapper).		
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4		
Progress > Outer Bar	This controls how the outer part of the progress bar looks.		
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of		
Progress > Inner Bar	This controls how the progress bar background looks inside the outer part.		
	← Previous Next → Page ToT 4		

Style Group	Description		
Progress > Text	This controls how the text looks associated with the progress bar.		
	← Previous Next → Page 1 of 4		

6. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

ALIGNMENT

You can click in the **Horizontal** field and choose whether to position to the **right** or **left** side of the display.

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
3	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.

	Option	Description			
		Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.			
•	 Color This lets you select a single color. 				
•	Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click 트 and use the dialog to select an image file.				
•	Repeat Use this fie	ld to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.			
P	NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.				

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOX SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the box shadow on the element:

- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u>*</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Shadow Inset This changes the shadow from an outer shadow (outset) to an inner shadow. Click in the field and select an option. If you select false the shadow will be outset. If you select true the shadow will be inset.

EVENT

Enter a JavaScript command that is triggered when a user clicks a button.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description	
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.	
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.	
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.	
Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).		

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

ICON

You can click s and select a different image for the toolbar button.

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

LAYOUT

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

Click the **Order** drop-down to change the order of the text within the button in relation to the icon (e.g., left, right, top, bottom).

MARGIN

You can change the margin for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TEXT

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description	
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.	
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.	
3	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.	
F amily You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).		

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.
- 7. Select the **UI Text** tab. Use this tab to customize a list of text strings for the toolbar components. This includes text for the label, tooltip, alt text for buttons, and progress bar.

NOTE You can customize the text used for a different language in the output. From the **Language** drop-down, select the language, and then modify the text in each row.

8. Click 🔙 to save your work.

How to Associate the eLearning Toolbar Skin Component With a Proxy or Target

Do one of the following, depending on the part of the user interface you are using:

 eLearning Toolbar Proxy Open the template page or topic that includes the eLearning Toolbar proxy. Right-click the proxy, and select Edit eLearning Toolbar Proxy. In the Skin File dropdown, select your eLearning Toolbar skin.

to	spic body proxy	
d ti	Learning toolbar proxy	
2	<madcap:elearningtoolbarproxy></madcap:elearningtoolbarproxy>	
	Select Node	
	Cut	The eLearning Toolbar proxy lets you include a toolbar with
	Сору	information controls for a course. Please see the help for more information on how the various buttons can be customized using a skin file.
	Paste Before	
	Paste After	Skin File:
	Delete	(default) (default)
	Edit eLearning Toolbar Proxy	Project/Skins/eLearning
		OK Cancel

• HTML5 Target Open the HTML5 target, and select the Skin tab. Locate the eLearning Toolbar drop-down, and select your eLearning Toolbar skin.

	General	General	(none)
	eLearning	Component Default Skins	(default)
	Conditional Text Variables	Topic Toolbar:	(default)
		eLearning Toolbar:	eLearning.flskn
NOTE You are not limited to one skin component of each type, although that is the most common situation. If you want, you can use multiple skin components of any type. If this is the case, you can associate a default skin component with a target. When you do this, the skin component you choose will always be used for any proxy of that same type that you insert for that target, unless you override it by associating a different skin component with a specific proxy that you've inserted.

Feedback in HTML5 Skins

() **IMPORTANT** Feedback is deprecated in Flare Desktop, which means that it is slated to be removed in a future version.

If you integrate your output with MadCap Feedback, you can use styles in a skin to control different elements.



How to Specify Style Settings for Feedback in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. If you are using responsive output, make sure you select **Web Medium** in the local toolbar. Feedback integration is not supported in the Tablet and Mobile views, although topic rating stars will display in the topic toolbar. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- 3. Select the Styles tab.
- 4. On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the Feedback style groups:

Style	Description
Feedback > Comment > Comment	This lets you control the look of topic comment text.
Feedback > Comment > Header	This lets you control the look of the header text that appears above comments in a topic.
Feedback > Comment > Item	This lets you control the look of the container displaying the contents, including header and the comments.
Feedback > Comment > Subject	This lets you control the look of the subject text that appears just above a comment.
Feedback > Comment > Timestamp	This lets you control the look of the date and time that appears in a comment.

Style	Description
Feedback > Comment > Username	This lets you control the look of the user's name that appears in a comment.
Feedback > User Profile > Body	This lets you control the look of the interface used for creating a profile.
Feedback > User Profile > Button	This lets you control the look of the buttons in the interface that is used for creating a profile.
Feedback > User Profile > Header	This lets you control the look of the header text in the interface that is used for creating a profile.

Style	Description
Feedback > User Profile > Item	The Feedback User Profile dialog always includes a "Username" and "E- mail Address" field. In addition to those fields, you can add many others by using the Community tab in the Skin Editor.
	Once you've added the fields, you can edit User Profile items in the skin to specify which fields are required for users to complete.
	The User Profile style group has properties both at the root and on children nodes. In addition to the many standard fields that can be included (e.g., Address1, City, Department, Occupation), you can add up to 10 custom fields (e.g., Custom1, Custom2, Custom3), which can be used for any kind of field not already available.
	If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, complete the General > Required field under the User Profile > Item style group itself. Otherwise, select any of the children (Address1, Address2, Birthdate, etc.) to apply settings to them individually. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.
Feedback > User Profile > Item Group	This lets you control the look of the container holding fields in the interface when creating a profile.
Feedback > User Profile > Item Input	This lets you control the look of the text that users type in fields when creating a profile.
Feedback > User Profile > Item Label	This lets you control the look of the field label text in the interface that is used for creating a profile.

5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description	
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.	
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.	
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.	
Color This lets you	u select a single color.	
Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click 트 and use the dialog to select an image file.		

- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).	

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

GENERAL

You can click in the **Required** field and choose whether to make the element required (true) or not (false).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

6. Click \blacksquare to save your work.

▶ NOTE Use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to change labels for some of these styles.

Headers in HTML5 Skins

This is the area at the top of the screen for Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins.

For Side Navigation skins, this area displays elements such as a logo, search bar, and Flare Online account link (if you are producing private output).



For Top Navigation skins, this area displays elements such a logo, search bar, top menu, and Flare Online account link (if you are producing private output).



For Tripane skins, this area displays elements such a logo, search bar, and Flare Online account link (if you are producing private output).



How to Specify Style Settings for Headers in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- 4. On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the following **Header** style groups (some styles might not be included, depending on the type of skin).

Style	Description
Header	This controls the entire header area.
Header > Logo	This controls the logo in the header.
Header > Search Bar and Flare Online Account Container	For Tripane skins only, this lets you hide or show the container holding the search bar and Flare Online account link.
Header > Search Bar	This controls the search bar in the header.
Header > Search Bar > Input	This controls the text used when users perform searches.

Style	Description
Header > Search Bar > Filter	This controls the look of the search filter area, if you have included one.
Header > Search Bar > Filter > (hover)	This lets you change how the search filter looks when users hover over it.
Header > Search Bar > Filter > (selected)	This lets you change how the search filter looks when it is selected.
Header > Search Bar > Filter > Drop- down	This controls the drop-down portion of the search filter.
Header > Search Bar > Filter > Drop- down > (hover)	This lets you change how the search filter drop-down looks when users hover over it.
Header > Search Bar > Submit Button	This controls the look of the button used to initiate searches.
Header > Search Bar > Submit Button > (hover)	This lets you change how the search submit button looks when users hover over it. It is supported for Google search integration.

	Style	Description
	Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete	This applies the look and feel for the search bar when auto-complete suggestions are displayed. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
	Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item	This controls the font and other settings for auto-complete suggestions that are displayed in the drop-down. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
	Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > (selected)	This applies look and feel changes for the selected auto-completed item. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
	Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > Icon	This controls how the icon next to the auto-complete item displays. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
-	Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > Phrase	This lets you change how the auto-completed phrase displays. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.

Style	Description
Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > Phrase > (match)	This allows you to modify how the matched auto-completed phrase displays. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > Description	This controls how the file location of the auto-completed item looks i the drop-down list. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > Separator	This applies styles for the hyphen separating the phrase from the description. You can modify the settings separately for the Project Content or the Search History items. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
Header > Search Bar > Auto-complete > Item > Remove Button	These settings allow you to change the background color of the Remove button, and allow you to modify the image of the Remove button as well. This is supported for Elasticsearch integration.
Header > Skip to Content	This lets you change the look of the text for the "Skip to main content accessibility feature. This displays when users open the output and press TAB . After encountering this option, they can press ENTER to bypass the navigation.

Style	Description
Header > Flare Online Account > Element	This controls the look of the entire account link area.
Header > Flare Online Account > Element > (hover)	This controls the look of the entire account link area when a user hovers over it.
Header > Flare Online Account > Link	This controls the look of the area showing the image, text, and down arrow that the user first sees in private output hosted on MadCap Flare Online.
Header > Flare Online Account > Link > (hover)	This controls the look of the area showing the image, text, and down arrow when a user hovers over it.
Header > Flare Online Account > Link > Image	This controls the image shown to the left of the word "Account."
Header > Flare Online Account > Menu	This controls the look of the entire menu area. If you click this area in the preview to display the drop-down options, the popup continues to display until you click again. This means you can continue to view the options while you make adjustments to the styles, allowing you to see changes immediately.
Header > Flare Online Account > Menu > Link	This controls the look of the link for individual menu items.

Style	Description
Header > Flare Online Account > Menu > Link > (hover)	This controls the look of the link for individual menu items when a user hovers over them.
Header > Flare Online Account > Menu > Separator	This controls the look of area that separates menu items.

5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Also, you might see nodes for a Tripane skin that you do not see for a Side or Top Navigation skin, and vice versa. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

ABSOLUTE POSITION

For certain styles, this can allow you to be more precise with the position of an element. This might be necessary to prevent the element from disappearing from the screen. In addition to entering values with specific units of measurement (e.g., pixels), you can enter **auto** in a field. You might do this, for example, if you want the left or right property to have a particular value, but leave the other property to be adjusted automatically.

ALIGNMENT

Depending on the style and element you are working with, you may be able to select one or more of the following:

- Horizontal This option lets you choose whether to position the element to the left, middle, or right.
- Vertical This option lets you choose whether to position the element on the top, middle, or bottom.
- Full Row This option allows the element to take up all of the space horizontally in the header.
- Order This option determines which element comes first (1), second (2), third (3), or fourth (4) in the header. Side Navigation has three elements (logo, search bar, and Flare Online account link), but Top Navigation has four (logo, search bar, menu, and Flare Online account link).

☆ EXAMPLE

If you have a Side Navigation skin, the Flare Online Account Element is set to have an order value of 4. This means it appears to the right of both the logo and the search bar, which have lower values for that option (the logo is set at 1, and the search bar is set at 3).





HTML5 Skin Ed	ditor Preview Web Medium Tablet Mediur
Setup Community	Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~)
Styles UI Text	 Global Header Logo Search Bar Skip to Content
	Header > Logo Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~) Alignment Horizontal left ~ Vertical middle ~ Full Row Order
	Order 4

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview Web Medium Tablet Mediur
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Image: Provide the second start with ~) Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~) ▷ Global ▲ Header Logo ▷ Search Bar
	Skip to Content Header > Search Bar Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~) Alignment Horizontal right Full Row no
	Order 2

HTML5 Skin Ed	itor Preview Web Medium Tablet Mediun
Setup	
Community	Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~) \wp
Styles	Flare Online Account
UI Text	▲ Element
	(hover)
	▶ Link
	Menu
	v Mens
	Header > Flare Online Account > Element
	Filter (to use fuzzy matching start with ~) ${\cal O}$
	 Alignment
	Horizontal left Y
	Full Row no ~
	Order 1
	Background
a result, the	header will look like this in the output:
Order Setting: 1	Order Setting: 2
Account -	Search Q (*) YOUR LOG
Getting Started Features	
Procedures	Welcome to Our Help Center
F40-	

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Color This lets you select a single color.	
Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click 토 and use the dialog to select an image file.	

- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BLOCK

This is the container (or "block") holding content in an element. You can change any of the following to affect the block:

- Line Height This is how tall the container is that holds the content. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- **Text Align** This changes the alignment of the content. Click in the field and select an option (center, justify, left, right).
- **Text Indent** This is how far the text is moved inward. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Word Wrap You can click in the Word Wrap field and choose whether to wrap text for the element (normal) or not (nowrap).

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOX SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the box shadow on the element:

- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Shadow Inset This changes the shadow from an outer shadow (outset) to an inner shadow. Click in the field and select an option. If you select false the shadow will be outset. If you select true the shadow will be inset.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).	

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

HEIGHT

You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

MARGIN

You can change the margin for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PROJECT CONTENT

This is a setting for the Auto-complete nodes. Project content takes snippets of all topics that are found in the search criteria. Within this node, you can set other styles such as font and height.

SEARCH HISTORY

This is a setting for the Auto-complete nodes. Search history is a combination of the individual user searches. Within this node, you can set other styles such as font and height.

SIZE

For some properties, you can change the height or width of the element. For other properties, you can change the maximum width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TEXT DECORATION

You can click in the **Decoration** field and select a text decoration (e.g., underline, line-through, overline, underline).

WIDTH

You enter a width for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Flare Online Account Link Skin Component

One of the tasks that the Header area in Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins lets you perform is modifying the look of the Flare Online account link that is used for private outputs. Alternatively, you can use a Flare Online Account Link proxy to add the link some place other than the header, and you can use a Flare Online Account Link skin component to control the look for it.

The options in the skin component are the same as the Flare Online account link options in the Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins.



Search Bar Skin Component

One of the tasks that the Header area in Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins lets you perform is modifying the look of the search bar at the top of pages. Alternatively, you can use a Search Bar proxy to add a custom search bar elsewhere, and you can use a Search Bar skin component to control the look for it.

The options in the skin component are the same as the search bar options in the Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins.



The Search Bar skin component is not supported if you are generating Tripane output. It is only available when you are producing Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output.

What's Noteworthy?

\square	NOTE For HTML5 logos, the following image types are supported: PNG, BMP, JPEG, TIF,
	TIFF, and GIF.

NOTE If you want to style items for search results, you can use the Search section in the Skin Editor. See "Search Results in HTML5 Skins" on page 217.

▶ NOTE The Tripane skin you are using applies a theme to the header and search bar. Tripane Light uses a light gray header and search bar; Tripane uses a dark gray header and search bar.
I Main Page in HTML5 Skins

This section contains the Main Page style for Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins.

For Side and Top Navigation skins, you can control the padding and maximum width for the page.

нт	ML5 Skin Editor	This is the main page for maximum width is set to 6 further	r an HTML5 Top Navig 2.5 em so the edges o to the right and left.	ation skin. The of content extend
Se Cr St U	etup ommunity tyles I Text	Dobal		VOUR LOGO place your company logo here
Use the Global > Main Page style group and propertie for styling the page		lenu earch Results opic Proxies		Your search for "topi Did you mean <u>topic</u> ?
	Filter	adding eft 1 em v ight 1 em v op 1 em v ottom 1 em v ize Maximum Width 62.5 em v		 In the Content Explorer cli Select a template. Give the topic a name. Click Add.

For Tripane skins, you can control the font and background color for the page.

	This is the main page for an HTM Tripane skin. The background co	/L5 plor
HTML5 Skin	Editor Preview Web Medium Tablet Medium Mob	lass
General		
Size	Filter \wp software	
Setup	▲ Global	
Toolbar	Main Page	Θ
Community	Header	
Styles	New Policy Template	11
Use the Global >	Global > Main Page Image Filter Image Image Image <tr< td=""><td>Int</td></tr<>	Int
Main Page style	Background	Af
for styling the page.	Gradient transparent transparent Second Second Secon	
	Color ##10000 ~ 🔯 🗾	L
	Image none v 🛋	▲ Sa
	Repeat repeat ~	Th
	▲ Font	Th
	Family Arial Y	All
	Size 12 px *	the
	Style normal V	Fo
		Ge

How to Specify Style Settings for the Main Page in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, orTripane skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- 4. On the left side of the editor, expand the Global style group, and select Main Page.
- 5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields.

BACKGROUND (TRIPANE SKINS ONLY)

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description	
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.	
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.	
2	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.	

• Color This lets you select a single color.

- Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click and use the dialog to select an image file.
- Repeat Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

FONT (TRIPANE SKINS ONLY)

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

- Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).
- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

PADDING (SIDE AND TOP NAVIGATION SKINS ONLY)

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE (SIDE AND TOP NAVIGATION SKINS ONLY)

You can change the maximum width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

6. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Menus in HTML5 Skins

Using skin styles is one way to control the look of the menu that is included with a Side or Top Navigation skin, as well as additional menus that you add through the Menu proxy.

How to Specify Style Settings for Menus in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skin, or a Menu skin component.
- 2. If you opened a skin component, make sure you select the appropriate medium—Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.

If you opened a full Side or Top Navigation skin, you must have Web Medium selected, because menu elements are not shown in Tablet or Mobile views. For those mediums, you would set navigation elements instead. See "Navigation in HTML5 Skins" on page 201.

- 3. Select the Styles tab.
- 4. On the left side of the editor, go to one of the following style groups, depending on the type of skin.

Side Navigation



Top Navigation



• Menu Used for Menu skin components



Then expand and select any of the following styles:

SIDE NAVIGATION STYLES

Style	Description			
Side Navigation > Menu	This controls the look of the entire menu and submenu areas.			
Side Navigation > Menu > Item	This controls the look of individual items within a menu.			
Side Navigation > Menu > Item > (hover)	This controls the look of individual items within a menu when a user hovers over them.			
Side Navigation > Menu > Item > (selected)	This controls the look of individual items within a menu when the item is selected.			

TOP NAVIGATION STYLES

Style	Description
Menu > Top Navigation Menu	This controls the look of the entire menu and submenu areas.

Style	Description	
Menu > Top Navigation Menu > Item	This controls the look of individual items within a menu.	
Menu > Top Navigation Menu > Item > (hover)	This controls the look of individual items within a menu when a user hovers over them.	
(hover) Menu > Top This controls the look of the drop-down function that appears next top menu item containing a submenu when a person uses the TAE to get to that location. Submenu Button		

MENU SKIN COMPONENT STYLES

Style	Description	
Menu	This controls the look of the entire menu and submenu areas.	
Menu > Item	This controls the look of individual items within a menu.	
Menu > Item > (hover)	This controls the look of individual items within a menu when a user hovers over them.	

5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Also, you might see nodes in the full skin that you do not see in a skin component, and vice versa. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

ALIGNMENT

Depending on the style and element you are working with, you may be able to select one or more of the following:

- Horizontal This option lets you choose whether to position the element to the left, middle, or right.
- Vertical This option lets you choose whether to position the element on the top, middle, or bottom.
- Full Row This option allows the element to take up all of the space horizontally in the header.
- Order This option determines which element comes first (1), second (2), third (3), or fourth (4) in the header. Side Navigation has three elements (logo, search bar, and Flare Online account link), but Top Navigation has four (logo, search bar, menu, and Flare Online account link).

☆	EXAMPLE You	add a new Side Navigation skin. Initially it looks like this:
	A YOUR LOGC	
	Home Topic -	Your search for "topic" returned 14 result(s).
	Proxies •	
	The logo comes second (Order=3	first (Order=1) and is positioned left, whereas the search bar comes 3) and is positioned right.



topic	1H Q	
Home Topic Search Results Proxies	Your search for "topic" returned 14 res Did you mean <u>topic</u> ?	sult(s).
In that case	, you would change the settings li	ike this:
Header > Logo	Header > Search Bar Filter	

Now suppose you create a new Top Navigation skin. Initially it looks like this:



The logo comes first (Order=1) and is positioned left. The menu is second (Order=2) and is positioned right. The Flare Online account link is third (Order=3). The search bar is fourth (Order=4) and is set to take up a full row.

Header > Logo		Menu > Top Navigation Menu		Header > Central Account > Element		Header > Search Bar	
Filter	Q	Filter D		Filter D		Filter &	
Alignment Horizontal left v Vertical middle v Full Row no v Order 1		Alignment Horizontal ingle Full Row No Order Z Background		Alignment Horizontal left Full Row no Order 3 Background		Alignment Horizontal middle v Full Row yes v Order 4 Border	
Background		Block		E Block		▶ Layout	
Layout		▶ Font		▶ Layout		Margin	
		E Levout		Margin) Size	

Now maybe you want each element to take up all the space on its row, centered, with the logo first, the search bar second, followed by the menu, and then the Flare Online account link.

topic	Y	۹.
Home Topic Search Results Proxies		
Account +		
Your search for "topic" returned 14 result(s).		

In that case, you would change the settings like this:



BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	tion Description		
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.		
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.		
Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.			
Color This lets you	u select a single color.		
Image This lets yc	mage This lets you select an image for the background. Click 💽 and use the dialog to		

- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BLOCK

This is the container (or "block") holding content in an element. You can change any of the following to affect the block:

- Line Height This is how tall the container is that holds the content. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- **Text Align** This changes the alignment of the content. Click in the field and select an option (center, justify, left, right).
- **Text Indent** This is how far the text is moved inward. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Word Wrap You can click in the Word Wrap field and choose whether to wrap text for the element (normal) or not (nowrap).

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u>*</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).	

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

WIDTH

You enter a width for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

6. Click \blacksquare to save your work.

Navigation in HTML5 Skins

This section is used to control the look of navigation elements in the skin, which allow users to open different parts of your output. In Side and Top Navigation skins, the navigation part of the skin is used only for Tablet and Mobile mediums, to determine the look of navigation in slide-out menus for small screens. In Tripane skins, the navigation part of the skin is used for all mediums–Web, Tablet, and Mobile.



How to Specify Style Settings for Navigation Elements in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the following Navigation style groups. (The Navigation section is not visible in Side or Top Navigation skins until you select the Tablet or Mobile medium.)

Style	Description
Navigation > Home Button	In Tripane skins, this controls the button that users see in the slide out in Tablet and Mobile views.
Navigation > Navigation Link	In Tripane skins, these are links that users may see at the top or bottom of topics if they open those topics as standalone files. In order to add these links to the output, you must enable them on the Setup tab of the Skin Editor. See and "Showing Links in Standalone Topics" on page 407. This style has properties both at the root and on children nodes. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.
Navigation > Navigation Slide Out Button	This controls the button that people use in Tablet and Mobile views to access the slide out navigation.

Style	Description
Navigation > Navigation Panel	In Tripane skins, this controls the panel area that contains the following elements: Browse Sequence, Community, Glossary, Index, Search Filters, and TOC.
	This style has properties both at the root and on children nodes. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.
	In Side, Top, and Tripane Skins, this controls the panel area that slides out in Tablet and Mobile mediums for small screens.
	► NOTE The TOC node under the Navigation Panel style lets you change icons in general for all books/topics in a TOC. If instead you want to change the book or topic icons only for specific entries in your TOC, use the TOC Entry style instead, creating classes for it.
	NOTE The Community element is available only in the Web medium.
	NOTE The Search Filters element is available only in the Tablet and Mobile mediums.
Navigation > Navigation Panel Hide Arrow	In Tripane skins, this controls the look of the arrow button that is shown on the divider between the navigation elements and content in Web view. Users can click this button to show or hide the navigation elements.

Style	Description
Navigation > Navigation Panel Item	This controls the look of text in navigation panel elements.
Navigation > Navigation Panel Item (hover)	This controls the look of text in navigation panel elements when a user hovers over it.
Navigation > Navigation Panel Item (selected)	This controls the look of text in navigation panel elements when is selected.
Navigation > Navigation Panel Search Bar	In Tripane skins, this controls the look of the search field that users see in some navigation elements (e.g., Index, Glossary).
Navigation > Navigation Tab	In Tripane skins, this controls the look of the tab area at the top of each navigation element. For example, you might want to change the height or width, or change the tab layout to specify if the tab should show an image then text, text then an image, text only, or an image only. If you want to change other characteristics, such as the color or the icon images themselves, you need to use either the Navigation Tab (active) or Navigation Tab (inactive) style.
	This style has properties both at the root and on children nodes. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.

Style	Description
Navigation > Navigation Tab >	In Tripane skins, this controls the look of the tab area at the top of each navigation element when the tab is selected.
(active)	This style has properties both at the root and on children nodes. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.
	To change the color of the tab, including the strip around the edge of the panel, you can modify the background of the Navigation Tab (active) style.
Navigation > Navigation Tab >	In Tripane skins, this controls the look of the tab area at the top of each navigation element when the tab is not selected.
(Inactive)	This style has properties both at the root and on children nodes. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.
Navigation > TOC Entry	In Tripane skins, this is the "Marked as New" icon used for new items.
Navigation > Index Highlight	In Tripane skins, this is the highlighting that is seen when a user begins typing in the Index search field.
Navigation > Glossary Highlight	In Tripane skins, this is the highlighting that is seen when a user begins typing in the Glossary search field.
Navigation > Glossary Item Definition	In Tripane skins, this controls the look of the definition entry for glossary items.

5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u></u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Color This lets you	u select a single color.
Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click Select an image file.	

- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BLOCK

This is the container (or "block") holding content in an element. You can change any of the following to affect the block:

- Line Height This is how tall the container is that holds the content. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- **Text Align** This changes the alignment of the content. Click in the field and select an option (center, justify, left, right).
- Word Wrap You can click in the Word Wrap field and choose whether to wrap text for the element (normal) or not (nowrap).

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOTTOM

You can change any of the following to affect the font for the link when it appears at the bottom of a topic:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
# 000000 ▼	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
2	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can s	select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
3	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can se	elect or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).
Size You can chan	ige the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows.

- Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

GENERAL

You can change the color for the element.

Option	Description
#000000 -	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.

Option	Description
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u></u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

GLOSSARY

You can expand the **Layout** node, click in the **Display** field, and choose whether to show the search bar in the Glossary pane. If you want to show it, select **block**. If you do not want to show it, select **none**.

HEIGHT

You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

ICON

You can click 🔄 and select a different image to be used for the element.

ICONS

You can click shad and select a different image for any of the following TOC entry icons:

- Closed Book Icon You can select a different icon image for the book items in the TOC when they are closed.
- **Open Book Icon** You can select a different icon image for the book items in the TOC when they are open (or selected).
- Topic Icon You can select a different icon image for the topic items in the TOC.
- Mark As New Icon You can select a different icon image for the topic items in the TOC when they are marked as new.

() IMPORTANT If you are setting these under the Toc Entry style (instead of the Navigation Panel style), you must first create a class of the Toc Entry style and then choose the images for that class. *Selecting images in the root fields under Toc Entry will do nothing.* To create a class, select **Toc Entry** and in the local toolbar click **Add Class**. You will also need to open your TOC, right-click on an entry, select **Properties**, and on the **General** tab choose the **Style Class** that you created.

INDEX

You can expand the **Layout** node, click in the **Display** field, and choose whether to show the search bar in the Index pane. If so, select **block**. If not, select **none**.

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

POSITION

You can change the position of the element, meaning its width and height:

- Width You enter a width for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Height You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TAB LAYOUT

You can change what appears in the navigation tabs and their order. Click the **Layout** field and select one of the layout options (TextOnly, ImageOnly, TextThenImage, ImageThenText).

▶ NOTE One of the benefits of having image icons on the navigation tabs is that it lets users drag the pane to reduce its width more than they could otherwise. The text disappears, and tooltips on the image icons let you know what a particular tab contains.

TEXT SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the text shadow on the element:

- Shadow Visibility You can click in this field and choose to make the shadow either hidden or visible.
- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

TOP

You can change any of the following to affect the font for the link when it appears at the top of a topic:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

		Option	Description	
		#000000 -	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.	
		<u>2</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.	
		<u>×</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.	
	Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana			
	■ Si Th	Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).		
	= W	Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.		
	St	• Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.		
6.	Click 🔙	to save your work.		
P	NOTE I added t	NOTE In order to see navigation items in the Tripane output, you must make sure they are added to the skin. For more information see the Help system.		
P	NOTE	NOTE Use the UI Text tab in the editor to change labels and default values for these styles.		
Search Results in HTML5 Skins

A Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or Tripane skin can be used to change the appearance of search result items. You can also do this with a smaller Search Results skin component.



Side or Top Navigation Skins

For Side and Top Navigation skins, you can control the look of search result elements such as the heading, abstract (i.e., descriptive text of the file), links, glossary terms, pagination, featured snippets, and Knowledge Panel. Search highlighting is controlled in your regular stylesheet by modifying special classes under the span style.



Tripane Skins

For Tripane skins, you can control the look of search result elements such as the heading, search highlighting, abstract (i.e., descriptive text of the file), links, glossary terms, pagination, featured snippets, and Knowledge Panel.



Search Results Skin Components

Alternatively, you can use the Search Results skin component and its related proxy to design a custom container to display search results.

The options in the skin component are the same as those in the Side or Top Navigation skin. Chances are good that you will never need to use a Search Results skin component, but it is available in case you want the flexibility of having another page showing search results.

The Search Results skin component is not supported if you are generating Tripane output. It is only available when you are producing Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output.

How to Specify Style Settings for Search Results in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 skin.
- 2. Select the **Styles** tab.
- 3. (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- 4. On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the following **Search Results** style groups:

Style	Description
Search Results > Search Heading	This is the heading at the beginning of the search results, indicating how many search results were found.
Search Results > Highlight	When users perform searches in your online output, the keywords that are found may be highlighted in the topics. The background for each term found in a topic can be highlighted in a different color. In Flare Desktop you can use styles to change not only the color background, but other settings as well (e.g., font style, text decoration).
	The Search Highlight style is used for Tripane skins. It has properties both at the root and on children nodes. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, complete the fields under the Search Highlight style itself. Otherwise, expand any of the child styles (Search Highlight 01 to 10) to apply settings to them individually. Each search highlight style is numbered to coordinate with the order search terms are entered. For example, the style named "Search Highlight 01" will be used for matches to the first search term entered and "Search Highlight 10" would coordinate with the tenth entered term. You can customize up to 10 highlight colors. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.

Style	Description
Search Results > Suggestion	This line will suggest a different search string if not enough results are generated from the initial search string. You can hide this option in the Layout properties for this element.
Search Results > Suggestion > Link	This will provide a link to the suggested search string.
Search Results > Abstract	This is the opening paragraph text for a search result, giving you context.
Search Results > Link	This is the link at the top of the search result.
Search Results > Link > (active)	This is the search result link when it is in an active state.
Search Results > Link > (focus)	This is the search result link when it has focus.
Search Results > Link > (hover)	This is the search result link when a user hovers over it.
Search Results > Link > (visited)	This is the search result link after it has been selected.
Search Results > Link > Path	This shows the path to the file containing the search result.

Style	Description
Search Results > Glossary > Result	This controls the look of the area holding glossary terms and definitions if they are included at the beginning of search results.
Search Results > Glossary > Term	This controls the look of glossary terms (not definitions) if they are included at the beginning of search results.
Search Results > Glossary > Term > Link	This controls the look of a glossary term (not definition) if it is included at the beginning of search results, and if it is linked to another topic. In other words, when you create a glossary term, you have a choice of simply typing the definition or linking it to a topic; this style controls the latter situation.
Search Results > Glossary > Term > Link > (active)	This controls the look of a glossary term (not definition) if it is included at the beginning of search results, and if it is linked to another topic. This controls the look of the link when it is in an active state.
Search Results > Glossary > Term > Link > (focus)	This controls the look of a glossary term (not definition) if it is included at the beginning of search results, and if it is linked to another topic. This controls the look of the link when it has focus.
Search Results > Glossary > Term > Link > (hover)	This controls the look of a glossary term (not definition) if it is included at the beginning of search results, and if it is linked to another topic. This controls the look of the link when a user hovers over it.

Style	Description
Search Results > Glossary > Term > Link > (visited)	This controls the look of a glossary term (not definition) if it is included at the beginning of search results, and if it is linked to another topic. This controls the look of the link after it has been selected.
Search Results > Glossary > Term > Definition	This controls the look of glossary definitions (not terms) if they are included at the beginning of search results.
Search Results > Pagination	This controls the block, font, and height (i.e., distance from the last search result) of search pagination elements.
Search Results > Pagination > Item	This look of text in search pagination elements.
Search Results > Pagination > Item > (selected)	This controls the look of text of a search pagination element when it is selected.
Search Results > Pagination > Item > (hover)	This controls the look of text of a search pagination element when you hover over it.
Search Results > Featured Snippets	This is the main container holding the featured snippets result. In this style group you can set the Layout property to include the container or exclude it entirely from output.

Style	Description
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item	This lets you control the look of each featured snippets container displaying the contents.
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Phrase	If the Layout property is set to display the phrase, you can control the look of the phrase text and area for the output. By default, the phrase does not display.
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Response	This lets you control the look and area for the featured snippet response.
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Response > Link	This controls the look for the link with the featured snippet's response. Items under this node (e.g., active, focus, hover, visited) control the look for when those user actions occur.
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Response > Path	This shows the path to the file containing the search result, and controls how it looks in the output.

Style	Description
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Truncate Button	In Skin Editor's Setup tab, the micro content featured snippet view mode must be set at "Truncated" to see this option. You can control the look of the truncated button area. Items under this node (e.g., expand, collapse) control the look of the button for when those user actions occur.
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Truncate Fade	When the truncated view mode is enabled, you can set properties for the fade. (The fade properties can match the button properties, or they can be different.)
Search Results > Featured Snippets > Item > Drop- Down Button	In Skin Editor's Setup tab, the micro content featured snippet view mode must be set at "Drop-Down" to see this option. You can control the look of the truncated button area. Items under this node (e.g., expand, collapse) control the look of the button for when those user actions occur.
Search Results > Knowledge Panel	This is the main micro content container holding the Knowledge Panel in the HTML5 output's search results. In this style group you can set the Layout property to include the container or exclude it entirely from output. You can customize the look of this container with many available styles, change the position of it, and more.
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item	This lets you control the look of each featured snippets container displaying the contents.

Style	Description
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Phrase	If the Layout property is set to display the phrase, you can control the look of the phrase text and area for the output. By default, the phrase does not display.
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Response	This lets you control the look and area for the Knowledge Panel response.
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Response > Link	This controls the look for the link with the Knowledge Panel's response. Items under this node (e.g., active, focus, hover, visited) control the look for when those user actions occur.
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Response > Path	This shows the path to the file containing the search result, and controls how it looks in the output.
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Truncate Button	In Skin Editor's Setup tab, the micro content Knowledge Panel view mode must be set at "Truncated" to see this option. You can control the look of the truncated button area. Items under this node (e.g., expand, collapse) control the look of the button for when those user actions occur.

Style	Description
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Truncate Fade	When the truncated view mode is enabled, you can set properties for the fade. (The fade properties can match the button properties, or they can be different.)
Search Results > Knowledge Panel > Item > Drop-Down Button	In Skin Editor's Setup tab, the micro content Knowledge Panel view mode must be set at "Drop-Down" to see this option. You can control the look of the truncated button area. Items under this node (e.g., expand, collapse) control the look of the button for when those user actions occur.

5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Also, you might see nodes for a Tripane skin that you do not see for a Side or Top Navigation skin, and vice versa. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Color This lets you	i select a single color.
mage This lets you select an image for the background. Click 트 and use the dialog to select an image file.	
	la ta tall Elava Daaldaa uubatkaa taa saa alaay la waxaa ta

• **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.

NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next

highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BLOCK

This is the container (or "block") holding content in an element. You can change any of the following to affect the block:

- Line Height This is how tall the container is that holds the content. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- **Text Align** This changes the alignment of the content. Click in the field and select an option (center, justify, left, right).
- Word Wrap You can click in the Word Wrap field and choose whether to wrap text for the element (normal) or not (nowrap).

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOX SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the box shadow on the element:

- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
3	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Shadow Inset This changes the shadow from an outer shadow (outset) to an inner shadow. Click in the field and select an option. If you select false the shadow will be outset. If you select true the shadow will be inset.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).	

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

HEIGHT

You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

MARGIN

You can change the margin for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

POSITION

You can change the position of Knowledge Panel elements. The micro content can be located to the left, or right of other search results (i.e., featured snippets or regular search items). Or they can also be placed in the middle, meaning that they align with other search results, but they display first, or above the other containers.

SIDE PANEL

The side panel property displays only if the Knowledge Panel is set to a left or right position. You can customize the positioning of the element by adjusting the width and gap. For both attributes, in the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TEXT DECORATION

You can click in the **Decoration** field and select a text decoration (e.g., underline, line-through, overline, underline).

6. Click 🖬 to save your work.

What's Noteworthy?

NOTE If you want to style the search bar and its elements, you can use the Header section in the Skin Editor. See "Headers in HTML5 Skins" on page 155.

Test Results in HTML5 Skin Components

The autogenerated test results page includes many sections that are visible by default. You can use the Test Results Skin Editor to determine which sections display in the output, and also to customize the look and feel of the test results page.



How to Add the Test Results Skin Component

Adding a test results skin component to your project is not necessary in order for the eLearning course to work. But if you want to control the look and feel of the results, then the test results skin component allows for its customization.

- 1. Do one of the following, depending on the part of the user interface you are using:
 - Ribbon Select Project > New > Add Skin.
 - **Right-Click** From the Project Organizer, right-click the **Skins** folder, and select **Add Skin**.
- 2. From the Add File dialog, expand **Factory Templates**, and select **HTML5 Component Test Results**. Give it a file name (e.g., Results), and click **Add**. The Test Results Skin Editor opens.

Add File		f	
ile Type:			
🔕 Skin			
Source	Description		
New from template:	HTML5 Test Results skin		_
Factory Templates HTML5 - Side Navigation HTML5 - Top Navigation HTML5 - Tripane HTML5 - Tripane Light HTML5 - Tripane Light HTML5 Component - Central Account HTML5 Component - Favicons HTML5 Component - Favicons HTML5 Component - Search Bar HTML5 Component - Search Bar HTML5 Component - Topic Toolbar Micro Content - FAQ Micro Cont			

How to Edit the Test Results Skin Component

Edit the Test Results skin component to apply customizations to the page. In the Test Results Skin Editor, there are three tabs where you can make changes to different sections of the test results page.

- 1. Open the Test Results Skin Editor.
- 2. Select the **Setup** tab, and choose the test result options to include in the test results page.

Option	Description
Show Passed / Failed	Select to display whether the learner passed or failed the course.
Show Score	Select to display the learner's score. If shown, select from the drop- down either Percentage Correct (e.g., 80%) or Total Correct (e.g., 7 of 10 Correct).
Show Questions	Select to display the test questions in the results page. If shown, select to display learner answers, correct answers, and feedback for questions.

- 3. Select the **Styles** tab. Using this tab you can customize the look and feel of the test results title, score, questions, answers, incomplete test warnings, and more.
- 4. (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles.
- 5. On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the **Test Results** style groups.
 - ✓ TIP To quickly find a style to edit, from the local toolbar, click the Highlight button. This enables Highlight mode, where the right panel in the editor is a live preview. Click any part of the live preview and it locates the corresponding style in the left panel to edit. Once a style is updated, it displays as such in the live preview.

Style Group	Description
Test Results	This controls the look and feel of the entire test results page.
Test Results > Title	This controls how the test title container looks.
Test Results > Score Title	This controls how the score container looks.
Test Results > Score	This controls how the score container looks, according to percent complete or total complete. (To change the score type, select it from the Setup tab, Show Score drop-down.)
Test Results > Result	This controls how the test results container looks, including a successful or unsuccessful attempt. You can also customize how the Failed versus the Passed results show.
Test Results > Question Container	This controls how the entire question container looks.
Test Results > Question Container > (first)	You can change the way the first question container looks compared to the others.
Test Results > Question Container > (last)	You can change the way the last question container looks compared to the others.
Test Results > Question Container > Question	This controls how the questions appear in the test results page.

Style Group	Description
Test Results > Question Container > Answer Container	This controls how the answers look in the test results.
Test Results > Question Container > Answer Container > Title	This controls how the titles for the answers display. You can also create a different look for the correct answer versus the user answer.
Test Results > Question Container > Answer Container > Content	This controls how the answer container looks for the content. You can also create a different look for the correct answer versus the user answer.
Test Results > Question Container > Answer Container > Content Item	This controls how the content for the answer looks. You can also create a different look for the correct answer versus the user answer.
Test Results > Question Feedback	This controls how feedback for a question displays in the test results page. You can adjust how the correct versus incorrect feedback looks.
Test Results > Maxed Attempts Warning	This controls the look for the container that alerts the learner to reaching the maximum amount of test attempts.
Test Results > Incomplete Test Warning	This controls the look for the container that alerts the learner of an incomplete test (if they navigate to the results page before the test is completed).
Test Results > Incomplete Page Link	This controls how the page links look when the Incomplete Test Warning displays.

6. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
2	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Color This lets you	u select a single color.
Image This lets yo select an image fi	ou select an image for the background. Click 트 and use the dialog to le.

- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u>*</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can se	lect or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

MARGIN

You can change the margin for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

STYLE

You can click the List Style drop-down and choose one of the options (none, disc, circle, square, decimal, decimal-leading-zero, lower-roman, upper-roman).

7. Select the **UI Text** tab. Use this tab to customize a list of text strings for the test results page. This includes text for the score, results, answer labels, warnings, and more.

NOTE You can customize the text used for a different language in the output. From the **Language** drop-down, select the language, and then modify the text in each row.

8. Click 🖬 to save your work.

How to Associate the Test Results Skin Component With a Target

- 1. Open the target from the Project Organizer.
- 2. Select the Skin tab.
- 3. From the **Component Default Skins** section, select the **Test Results** drop-down, and choose the skin component that you want to associate with the target.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

I Topic Proxies in HTML5 Skins

You can edit micro content elements in your HTML5 output using full skins with topic proxies (e.g., FAQ, Knowledge, Promotion). However, for maximum control and customization you can add a micro content skin component for each topic proxy.





How to Specify Style Settings for Topic Proxies in HTML5

1. Open an HTML5 skin, or a micro content skin component (e.g., FAQ, Knowledge, Promotion).

If you use a Micro Content skin component, the skin opens in a Micro Content Skin Editor, which is a slimmed down version of the regular Skin Editor that has style groups and properties only for the proxy.

- 2. (Optional) Select the **Setup** tab, and choose between **Truncated**, **Drop-Down**, or **Plain Text** view modes for the proxy.
- 3. Select the **Styles** tab.
- 4. Make sure the **Web Medium** is selected.
- 5. On the left side of the editor, go to one of the following style groups, depending on the type of skin.

Style	Description
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy	This is the main FAQ proxy container holding micro content that displays in the HTML5 output's search results. You can customize the look of this container with many available styles.
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Title	This lets you control the look and area for the proxy title.
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Item	This lets you control the look of each FAQ proxy container displaying the contents.
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Item > Phrase	Since the Drop-Down view mode is the default for the FAQ proxy, this lets you control the look and area for the phrase text that displays for each drop-down item.
Style	Description
--	---
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Item > Response	This lets you control the look and area for the FAQ response.
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Item > Response > Link	This controls the look for the link with the FAQ response. Items under this node (e.g., active, focus, hover, visited) control the look for when those user actions occur.
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Item > Response > Path	This shows the path to the file containing the search result, and controls how it looks in the output.
Topic Proxies > FAQ Proxy > Item > Drop- Down Button	In Skin Editor's Setup tab, the Proxy Options FAQ proxy view mode must be set at "Drop-Down" to see this option (and by default it is). You can control the look of the truncated button area. Items under this node (e.g., expand, collapse) control the look of the button for when those user actions occur.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy	This is the main Knowledge proxy container holding micro content that displays in the HTML5 output's search results. You can customize the look of this container with many available styles. By default, this container displays in output, but you can select to exclude it entirely from output.

Style	Description
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Title	This lets you control the look and area for the proxy title.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item	This lets you control the look of each Knowledge proxy container displaying the contents.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item > Phrase	If the Layout property is set to display the phrase, you can control the look of the phrase text and area for the output. By default, the phrase does not display.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item > Response	This lets you control the look and area for the Knowledge response.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item > Response > Link	This controls the look for the link with the Knowledge response. Items under this node (e.g., active, focus, hover, visited) control the look for when those user actions occur.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item > Response > Path	This shows the path to the file containing the search result, and controls how it looks in the output.

Style	Description
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item > Truncate Button	In Skin Editor's Setup tab, the Proxy Options Knowledge proxy view mode must be set at "Truncated" to see this option (and by default it is). You can control the look of the truncated button area. Items under this node (e.g., expand, collapse) control the look of the button for when those user actions occur.
Topic Proxies > Knowledge Proxy > Item > Truncate Fade	When the truncated view mode is enabled, you can set properties for the fade.
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy	This is the main Promotion proxy container holding micro content that displays in the HTML5 output's search results. You can customize the look of this container with many available styles. By default, this container displays in output, but you can select to exclude it entirely from output.
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy > Title	This lets you control the look and area for the proxy title.
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy > Item	This lets you control the look of each Promotion proxy container displaying the contents.
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy > Item > Phrase	If the Layout property is set to display the phrase, you can control the look of the phrase text and area for the output. By default, the phrase does not display.

Style	Description
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy > Item > Response	This lets you control the look and area for the Promotion response.
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy > Item > Response > Link	If the Layout property is set to display the link, you can control the look of the text and area for the output. By default, the link does not display. Items under this node (e.g., active, focus, hover, visited) control the look for when those user actions occur.
Topic Proxies > Promotion Proxy > Item > Response > Path	If the Layout property is set to display the path, you can control the look of the text and area for the output. This shows the path to the file containing the search result.
Micro Content Panel	This only displays if you are using a Micro Content skin component rather than a full skin. This is the main proxy container holding FAQ, Knowledge, or Promotion micro content that displays in the HTML5 output's search results.
	All three micro content proxies use a universal micro content skin component, but each of the three proxy templates are designed with a default view for the corresponding proxy. You can insert micro content proxies into template pages, control positioning with responsive layouts, and customize the look of this container with many available styles.

6. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>2</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Color This lets yo	ou select a single color.
Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click 🔄 and use the dialog to select an image file.	

- Repeat Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BLOCK

This is the container (or "block") holding content in an element. You can change any of the following to affect the block:

• Line Height This is how tall the container is that holds the content. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of

measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

- **Text Align** This changes the alignment of the content. Click in the field and select an option (center, justify, left, right).
- Word Wrap You can click in the Word Wrap field and choose whether to wrap text for the element (normal) or not (nowrap).

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000 -	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.

Option	Description
<u></u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOX SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the box shadow on the element:

- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
3	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Shadow Inset This changes the shadow from an outer shadow (outset) to an inner shadow. Click in the field and select an option. If you select false the shadow will be outset. If you select true the shadow will be inset.

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
F amily You can se	lect or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

HEIGHT

You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

MARGIN

You can change the margin for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TEXT DECORATION

You can click in the **Decoration** field and select a text decoration (e.g., underline, line-through, overline, underline).

I Topic Toolbars in HTML5 Skin Components

In Topic Toolbar skin components, you can use skin styles to control the look of a toolbar you add via a proxy.



For more about web toolbars versus topic toolbars, see "Toolbars and Skins" on page 52.

How to Edit an HTML5 Topic Toolbar Skin Component

- 1. Open an HTML5 Topic Toolbar skin component.
- 2. Select the **Setup** tab, and choose the buttons you want to include in the toolbar, moving them to the right side of the tab. You can also add custom buttons.
- 3. Select the **Styles** tab.
- (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- 5. On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the following **Toolbar** style groups:

Style Group	Description
Toolbar	This controls the look of the entire toolbar, such as its alignment and margins.
Toolbar > Button	This controls the look of individual buttons in the toolbar. If you set the properties at the root level, then all the buttons are affected. If you want specific values for a particular button, select the style group for that button and then set the properties for it.
Toolbar > Button Separator	This controls the look of the separator between buttons.
Toolbar > Button Drop- down	This controls the look of the toolbar button drop-down menu. You can also set properties for menu items, such as hover properties and fonts.

6. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

ALIGNMENT

You can click in the **Horizontal** field and choose whether to position to the **right** or **left** side of the display.

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

- Color This lets you select a single color.
- Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click select and use the dialog to select an image file.
- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.

▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.

Option	Description
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOX SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the box shadow on the element:

- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
3	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Shadow Inset This changes the shadow from an outer shadow (outset) to an inner shadow. Click in the field and select an option. If you select false the shadow will be outset. If you select true the shadow will be inset.

EVENT

You can enter a special JavaScript command that is triggered when an end user clicks a button. For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

```
window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");
```

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
2	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
F amily You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).	

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

GENERAL

You can change the color for the element.

Option	Description
#000000 -	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u> 3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.

Option	Description
<u>×</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

HEIGHT

You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

ICON

You can click said and select a different image for the toolbar button.

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- **inline-block** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this

option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

MARGIN

You can change the margin for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TEXT

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
3	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
3	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
F amily You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).	

- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).
- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

TEXT SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the text shadow on the element:

- Shadow Visibility You can click in this field and choose to make the shadow either hidden or visible.
- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u>×</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

^{7.} Click 🔲 to save your work.

Topics in HTML5 Skins

In Tripane skins, this section is used to control the look of the topic area of the output. This includes the container holding the topic content. It also includes the toolbar just above the topic content.



How to Specify Style Settings for the Topic Area in HTML5

- 1. Open an HTML5 skin (Tripane).
- 2. Select the **Styles** tab.
- (Optional) If you are using responsive output, make sure you select the appropriate medium— Web, Tablet, or Mobile—in the local toolbar before making changes to styles. For more information about these mediums and responsive output, see the Help system.
- 4. On the left side of the editor, expand and select any of the following **Topic** style groups:

Style	Description
Торіс	This is the container holding topics in the output.

Style	Description
Topic > Toolbar Button	These are the buttons and other elements that are part of toolbars that you can add to output.
	The Toolbar Button style has properties both at the root and on children nodes. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items (except the separator), select the Toolbar Button style itself. Otherwise, expand any of the child styles to apply settings to them individually. For more information about root and children properties, see "Style Groups and Properties Sections " on page 80.
	Following are the child styles that control individual elements in the toolbar:
	 Collapse All Lets users collapse all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are expanded). This toggles with the Expand All button.
	Current Topic Index Lets users see the display for the current topic in the sequence. This is typically used in conjunction with the "Next Topic" and "Previous Topic" buttons when the topic in question exists in a browse sequence. Flare Desktop finds the current topic in a browse sequence and display its position in relation to the rest of the topics in that sequence. (The root node is used to determine the count; in other words, if there are "child" topics in the sequence structure under the current topic, they will be included in the count.)
	 Edit User Profile Lets users edit their Pulse or Feedback registration profile settings. This toggles with the Login button. The Edit User Profile button is shown if the user is already logged in.
	 Expand All Lets users expand all elements such as togglers, drop- down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are not yet expanded). This toggles with the Collapse All button.
	Login Lets users log in to Pulse or Feedback, if you have

integrated it with the output. This toggles with the Edit User Profile button. The Login button is shown if the user is not yet logged in.

- Next Topic Lets users open the next topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the next topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the next topic after it.
- Previous Topic Lets users open the previous topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the previous topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the previous topic before it.
- **Print** Lets users open the Print dialog so that they can send the open topic to the printer.
- Remove Highlight After a user performs a quick search in a topic, the search text found in the topic is highlighted. This button lets users turn the highlights off.
- Select Language Lets users switch between languages using a drop-down menu, if you have built multilingual output.
- Select Skin Lets users choose from multiple skins to change the display of the output.
- Topic Ratings (full) Displays ratings for a topic (if you have incorporated your output with MadCap Pulse or Feedback). For example, if a topic has been rated three out of five stars, "Topic Ratings (full)" lets you control how the three stars look.

Style	Description
	 Topic Ratings (empty) This shows an empty rating (by default a non-colored star). For example, if a topic has been rated three out of five stars, "Topic Ratings (empty)" lets you control how the two stars look.
Topic > Toolbar Button Separator	This controls any separators that you may have added to the toolbar. A separator is the divider between the toolbar buttons and the navigation pane.
Topic > Toolbar Button Drop-down	This controls any drop-down menus that you may have added to the toolbar, such as the Select Language or Select Skin menus.
▶ NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must include a WebHelp toolbar or topic toolbar in your project. For more information see the Help system.	
NOTE You c the local too	an add a custom toolbar button class by clicking Toolbar Button and in Ibar selecting Add Class .

5. Expand any of the nodes and complete the necessary fields. The properties and fields that you see are different for each node. Following is a general list in alphabetical order:

BACKGROUND

You can change any of the following to affect the background:

• **Gradient** This lets you change the background color using a progression effect. Select the beginning gradient color in the first field, and then select a second gradient color in the second field. You can use any of the following to enter or select a color.

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u></u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Color This lets you	u select a single color.
Image This lets you select an image for the background. Click s and use the dialog to select an image file.	

- **Repeat** Use this field to tell Flare Desktop whether the image should repeat or not.
- ▶ NOTE The Image field has the highest precedence, which means that if you enter settings in all of the Background fields, the image will win. Gradient has the next highest precedence. If you want to use the Color field, you need to make sure the Gradient fields are set to transparent and that there is no image selected.

BORDER

You can change any of the following to affect the border on the element:

 Border Edge Fields (Top, Right, Bottom, Left) You can add a border line around any of the edges of the element. You can use any of the following. The first three fields are used to control the type and size of the border line. The last three fields are alternative ways to choose a color for the border.

Option	Description
solid 🔻	You can select a type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted).
1 🗘	Type a number in the field or use the arrows to increase or decrease it.
px 🔻	Click in this field and select a unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

 Border Radius Fields (Top Left, Top Right, Bottom Right, Bottom Left) If you want the element to have rounded corners, you can enter values in any of these fields. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters). The higher the number, the more of a curve the corner will have.

BOX SHADOW

You can change any of the following to affect the box shadow on the element:

- Horizontal Shadow Length This is the position of the horizontal shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Vertical Shadow Length This is the position of the vertical shadow. Negative values are allowed. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Blur Length This is the blur distance. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Shadow Color This lets you select a color for the shadow. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
transparent 🔻	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color or make the background transparent.
<u></u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

Shadow Inset This changes the shadow from an outer shadow (outset) to an inner shadow. Click in the field and select an option. If you select false the shadow will be outset. If you select true the shadow will be inset.

EVENT

You can provide a command for the item when it is clicked by the user.

EXAMPLE You want to provide a command for an item (e.g., so that clicking the button opens a website). The following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");

FONT

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
3	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
2	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

- Family You can select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).
- Size You can change the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points).

- Weight You can click in this field and make the font normal or bold.
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.

GENERAL

You can change the color for the element.

Option	Description
#000000 -	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.

HEIGHT

You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

ICON

You can click said and select a different image for the toolbar button.

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

LAYOUT

You can click in the **Display** field and choose one of the options (some of these options might not be available for certain styles):

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.
- **inline** The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements.
- inline-block The element will be shown but does not add a line break after it, allowing it to be positioned next to other elements. This is similar to inline; however, with this option, a width and height can be set on the element, and top/bottom margin and padding settings are respected.

PADDING

You can change the padding for any of the sides on the element (Left, Right, Top, Bottom). In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

POSITION

You can change the position of the element, meaning its width and height:

- Width You enter a width for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).
- Height You enter a height for the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

SIZE

You can change the height or width of the element. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. Then click in the second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters).

TEXT

You can click the **Display** drop-down and choose one of the options:

- **none** The element will not be shown.
- **block** The element will be shown and adds a line break after it. For some elements this option might be called **flex**, which reflects the flexbox technology associated with it.

You can change any of the following to affect the font:

• Color This lets you select a color for the font. You can use any of the following:

Option	Description
#000000	You can type a hexadecimal number (e.g., #000000) directly in this field. Alternatively, you can click the down arrow and choose a color.
<u>3</u>	This opens the Color Picker dialog, which lets you choose a color in many ways. Note that you can select a CSS variable.
<u>*</u>	Adds a bar above the cursor. As you move the cursor over any area of your screen, the color changes in the bar to reflect the color that is directly behind the tip of the cursor. When you click, that color is loaded into the Color Picker dialog.
Family You can s	select or type a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana).
Size You can cha Then click in the points).	ange the font size. In the first field type a number or use the arrows. second field and select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels,
Weight You can	click in this field and make the font normal or bold.

- regne rod our olok in this held and make the forthermal of bold
- Style You can click in this field and make the font normal or italic.
- 6. Click 🖬 to save your work.

▶ NOTE You can also use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to change labels for some of these styles.

CHAPTER 5

Standard Skin Styles

Supported In:



You might perform the following style tasks if you are working in a Standard skin.

This chapter discusses the following:

Accordion Items	290
Controls	291
Dialogs	292
Feedback User Profile Items	293
Formats	294
Frames	295
Index Entries	296
Index Entry Popups	297
TOC Entries	298
Toolbar Items	299
Accordion Items in Standard Skins	300
Controls in Standard Skins	307
Dialogs in Standard Skins	.323
---	------
Feedback User Profile Items in Standard Skins	335
Formats in Standard Skins	342
Frames in Standard Skins	356
Index Entries in Standard Skins	.364
Index Entry Popups in Standard Skins	.368
TOC Entries in Standard Skins	.373
Toolbar Items in Standard Skins	378

Accordion Items

These are the navigation items that display in the output, allowing users to open different elements of your output, such as the table of contents, index, glossary, community (for Pulse), and more. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to accordion items are the icons, text labels, font, and background color. See "Accordion Items in Standard Skins" on page 300.



NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must make sure they are added to the skin. For more information see the Help system.

NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus outputs.

Controls

These are controls that display in the output, such as various buttons, labels, and the input boxes. Usually these controls are displayed within the various accordion items (e.g., the search box, "Search" button, and "Add topic to favorites" button that are shown at the top of the Search accordion item). Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to controls are the icons, text labels, tooltips, font, and background color. See "Controls in Standard Skins" on page 307.



NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must make sure they are added to the skin (e.g., you must add accordion items or enable Feedback). For more information see the Help system.

▶ NOTE Styles for many of the controls are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus outputs. The controls related to MadCap Feedback are supported only in WebHelp, WebHelp Plus, and Microsoft HTML Help.

I Dialogs

These are the dialogs that users might see if you have enabled MadCap Feedback for your output. The dialogs are used for actions such as registering as a Feedback user, adding comments, and replying to comments. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to Feedback dialogs are field and other text labels, font, messages (e.g., email), and background color. See "Dialogs in Standard Skins" on page 323.

In this example, we've changed the background color of the dialog to light blue.		
CREATE FEEDBACK SERVICE	PROFILE:	
You must create a user profile f Please fill in the information be you provide. Please follow the i activation. Fields marked with a	o post comments to this help system. low. An email will be sent to the address nstructions in the email to complete in asterisk (*) are required.	
*Username		
*E-mail Address		
E-mail Notifications I want to receive an email when a reply is left to one of my comments a comment is left on a topic that I commented on a comment is left on any topic in the Help system		
	Submit Cancel	

NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must enable Feedback with your output. For more information see the Help system.

▶ NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp, WebHelp Plus, and Microsoft HTML Help outputs.

Feedback User Profile Items

These are fields that can be added to the Feedback user profile dialog. The dialog always includes a "Username" and "E-mail Address" field. In addition to those fields, you can add many others by using the Community tab in the Skin Editor. Once you've added the fields, you can edit the skin styles for those items. You can change the field labels, specify whether they should be required, and enter a default value for a field. See "Feedback User Profile Items in Standard Skins" on page 335.

CREATE FEEDBACK SERVIC You must create a user profile Please fill in the information b you provide. Please follow the activation. Fields marked with *Username	E PROFILE: e to post comments to this help system. below. An email will be sent to the address e instructions in the email to complete an asterisk (*) are required.	In addition to the "Username" and "E-mail Address" fields (which are always included and required), we added four other fields to the profile dialog and made two of them required.
*E-mail Address		
First Name		
Last Name		
*Date		
*Department		
E-mail Notifications I want to receive an email whe a reply is left to one of my a comment is left on a top a comment is left on any to	en comments ic that I commented on opic in the Help system Submit Cancel	

NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must enable Feedback with your output and add the necessary fields to the user profile. For more information see the Help system.

▶ NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp, WebHelp Plus, and Microsoft HTML Help outputs.

I Formats

These are navigation elements that you might include in your project (e.g., cross-references, breadcrumbs, keyword links, related topics links, concept links). For most of these elements, you can use the skin style to change the link or prefix text. For cross-references, you can change text as well as formats (i.e., how the link is constructed). See "Formats in Standard Skins" on page 342.



NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project. For more information see the Help system.

NOTE Most of these styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus outputs. However, the cross-reference styles are designed for print-based outputs (Adobe PDF, Microsoft Word).

I Frames

These are the containers of the navigation items that display in the output when you include elements such as accordion items, toolbars, and Feedback at the end of topics. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to frames are the background and height. See "Frames in Standard Skins" on page 356.



▶ NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project. For more information see the Help system.

Index Entries

This is the text that users see when they open your index in the output. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to index entries are the font settings, as well as the text used for index links. See "Index Entries in Standard Skins" on page 364.



NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project. For more information see the Help system.

▶ NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus.

Index Entry Popups

These are the popups that users see when they click an index entry that links to more than one topic. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to index entries are the font settings and background color. See "Index Entry Popups in Standard Skins" on page 368.



NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must include an index in your project. For more information see the Help system.

NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus.

TOC Entries

This is the text that users see when they open your table of contents (TOC) in the output. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to TOC entries are the font settings, as well as icons. See "TOC Entries in Standard Skins" on page 373.



▶ NOTE In order to see these items in the output, you must include a TOC in your project. For more information see the Help system.

NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus.

Toolbar Items

These are the buttons and other elements that are part of WebHelp and topic toolbars that you can add to output. Some of the more common properties you might edit when it comes to toolbar items are the icons, font settings, background, borders, and click behavior. See "Toolbar Items in Standard Skins" on page 378.



NOTE These styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus.

Accordion Items in Standard Skins

You can add various accordion items in your output, allowing users to open different elements of your output, such as the table of contents, index, glossary, community (for Pulse), and more. You can change the appearance of these accordion items by modifying style settings in the skin that you use for the output. See "Specifying Navigation Elements to Include in the Output Window" on page 412.

How to Specify Style Settings for Accordion Items

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the **Styles** tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, expand the Accordion Item node.



4. Select the item that you want to edit. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, select the **Accordion Item** node itself.

The items under this node represent the different accordions that can be added to your output.



The **IconTray** item represents the rectangle at the bottom of these items. If the area is resized so that only a certain number of accordions can be shown, the other items are represented by small icons and contained within the icon tray. In the following example, we've added a thick red border around the icon tray.



5. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the style item.

6. In the Properties section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

BACKGROUND GRADIENT

To change the background color of the accordion area:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BACKGROUND GRADIENT HOVER

To change the background color of the accordion area when the end user hovers the mouse over it:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient Hover** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BACKGROUND IMAGE

To add a background image to the accordion area:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and select an image in the **Background Image** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

BACKGROUND IMAGE HOVER

To add a background image to the accordion area when the end user hovers the mouse over it:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and select an image in the **Background Image Hover** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

BORDERS

To add or change borders for the item:

Expand the **Borders** property group on the right and change the value in any of the fields. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the width of the border in the lower-left field. You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-left drop-down arrow. You can select a color for the border using the upper-right drop-down arrow. And you can select the type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted) using the lower-right drop-down arrow.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the

unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

ICON

To select a different icon image:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

ITEM HEIGHT

To change the height of the item:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **ItemHeight** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the item height in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

LABEL

To change the text that appears on the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Label** field.

7. Click 🔙 to save your work.

EXAMPLE – Accordion Bars (Font, Background Color)

You want to change the font used for the text in the Search accordion bar to Baskerville Old Face. In addition, you want to set the background color for the accordion bar to green.

In that case, you would do the following:

- 1. Expand the Accordion Item node.
- 2. Select Search.
- 3. On the right side, make sure **Property Groups** is selected.
- 4. Expand the Font group.
- 5. Click in the cell to the right of Font Family.
- 6. From the drop-down, find and select **Baskerville Old Face**.
- 7. Click in the cell to the right of Background Gradient.
- 8. In the small popup, click on the down arrow next to Start.
- 9. Select a green color.
- 10. Since we only want a solid background color, click OK.
- 11. Click 🔙 to save your work.

When you are finished in the Skin Editor, it will look something like this:

General	Styles	nis e m	xample, we've selected to odify the Search bar.	view	
Size	G. Accordion Item		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
About	Browse Sequence		Alphabetical List	no preview available for current selection)	
WebHelp Setup	Community Favorites		Properties		
WebHelp Toolbar	Glossary				
Topic Toolbar	Index		Font Family		'Baskerville Old Face'
Community	Search		Font Size		(not set)
HTML Help Setup		=	Font Weight		(not set)
Styles	Dialog Feedback Liser Profile Item		Font Style		italic
Styles			Color		(not set)
In this exa	mple we've specified		Background Gradient		(not set)
a font fan	nily and font style for				· · · · ·
that	accordion bar.		FontStyle		

Controls in Standard Skins

Supported In:



Various controls may be part of the skin in your output, such as buttons, labels, and the input boxes. Usually these controls are displayed within the various accordion items (e.g., the search box, "Search" button, and "Add topic to favorites" button that are shown at the top of the Search accordion item). See "Specifying Navigation Elements to Include in the Output Window" on page 412.

Styles for many of the controls are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus outputs. The controls related to MadCap Feedback are supported only in WebHelp, WebHelp Plus, and Microsoft HTML Help.



How to Specify Style Settings for Controls

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, expand the Control node.



4. Select the item that you want to edit. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, select the **Control** node itself.

The items under this node represent the different kinds of controls that may be found in your output.

Item	Description
Add Search To Favorites Button	This is the button at the top of the Search pane that lets users add their search string to the Favorites pane.
Comment Node	This is the area that shows MadCap Feedback comments in the output. In order to use this feature, you must enable MadCap Feedback.
Comment Reply Node	This is the area that shows MadCap Feedback comments that have received replies. In order to use this feature, you must enable MadCap Feedback.
Comments Add Button Comments Refresh Button	These are buttons at the top of the Comments area that let users add, reply to, and refresh MadCap Feedback comments. In order to use this feature, you must enable MadCap Feedback.
Comments Reply Button	
DropDown Image	This is the hotspot image that is used for drop-down effects.
Empty Search Favorites Label	These are the text labels that users see if they open the Favorites pane and no favorite searches or topics have yet been saved.
Empty Topic Favorites Label	
Expanding Image	This is the hotspot image that is used for expanding text effects.

Item	Description
Index Search Box	This is the field in the Index pane where users enter words to search for in the index. You can provide a floating tooltip for this field, which displays when users hover the cursor over it.
Messages	These are the text labels that users see when certain messages are displayed (e.g., if they search for a term and no topics are found).
Navigation Link Bottom Navigation Link Top	These are the links that users may see at the top or bottom of topics if they open those topics as standalone files. In order to add these links to the output, you must enable them on the WebHelp Setup tab of the Skin Editor. See "Showing Links in Standalone Topics" on page 407.
Search Box	This is the field in the Search pane where users enter words to include in a search. You can provide a floating tooltip for this field, which displays when users hover the cursor over it.
Search Button	This is the button in the Search pane that people use to initiate a search.
Search Favorites Delete Button	These are the buttons in the Favorites pane that people use to delete saved search strings or topics.
Topic Favorites Delete Button	

Item	Description
Search Favorites Label	These are the labels in the Favorites pane that are shown at the top of the favorite searches and topics.
Topic Favorites Label	
Search Filters Label	These are the labels in the Search pane that are used to identify search filters. In order to see these labels in the output, you must include
Search Unfiltered Label	search filters in your project.
Search Results	These are the labels in the Search pane that are used to identify search results.
Toggler Image	This is the hotspot image that is used for toggler effects.

- 5. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the style item.
- 6. In the Properties section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the background color of the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BODY FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font used for the body of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **BodyFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Body Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BODY FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) used for the body of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **BodyFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Body Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

BODY FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font used for the body of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **BodyFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Body Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

BODY FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) used for the body of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **BodyFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Body Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

BODY FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) used for the body of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **BodyFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Body Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

COLLAPSED ALT TEXT

To change the alternate (alt) text that is associated with the item when it is in a collapsed state:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **CollapsedAltText** field.

EXPANDED ALT TEXT

To change the alternate (alt) text that is associated with the item when it is in an expanded state:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **ExpandedAltText** field.

FONT BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

HOVER ICON

To select a different icon image to be used when the user hovers the cursor over the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Hover Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

ICON

To select a different icon image:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

LABEL

To change the text that appears on the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Label** field.

MESSAGES INVALID TOKEN

To change the text for the message that displays when an invalid search is performed:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Invalid Token** field.

★ EXAMPLE If a user wants to search for "topics and images," but does not enter the search string correctly (e.g., entering "topics and," leaving off the second term), an invalid token will result.

MESSAGES LOADING

To change the text for the message that displays when the search pane is loading data:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Loading** field.

MESSAGES LOADING ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the message that displays when the search pane is loading data—can be used to describe the image being loaded:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Loading Alternate Text** field.

MESSAGES NO TOPICS FOUND

To change the text for the message that displays when no topics are found in a search:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **No Topics Found** field.

MESSAGES QUICK SEARCH EXTERNAL

To change the text for the message that displays when the "Quick Search" feature is disabled in external topics.

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Quick Search External** field.

NOTE The default message is "Quick search is disabled in external topics." You can modify the message to say whatever you want, or to localize it for your audience.

MESSAGES QUICK SEARCH IE 5.5

To change the text for the message informing users that the "Quick Search" feature is disabled in Internet Explorer 5.5 (due to limitations with that browser):

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Quick Search IE 5.5** field.

NOTE You can modify the message to say whatever you want, or to localize it for your audience.

MESSAGES REMOVE HIGHLIGHT IE 5.5

To change the text for the message informing users that the "Search Highlight Removal" feature is disabled in Internet Explorer 5.5 (due to limitations with that browser):

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Remove Highlight IE 5.5** field.

▶ NOTE You can modify the message to say whatever you want, or to localize it for your audience.

PRESSED ICON

To select a different icon image to be used when the item is pressed:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Pressed Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

RANK LABEL

To change the text that appears at the top of the column used to display the ranking of topics found after a search:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Rank Label** field.

SUBJECT FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font used for the subject of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **SubjectFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Subject Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

SUBJECT FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) used for the subject of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **SubjectFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Subject Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

SUBJECT FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font used for the subject of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **SubjectFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Subject Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lowerright drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right dropdown arrow.

SUBJECT FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) used for the subject of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **SubjectFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Subject Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

SUBJECT FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) used for the subject of a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **SubjectFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Subject Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

TABLE SUMMARY

To change the text for a table summary, which is used by screen readers to assist with accessibility:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Table Summary** field.

TEXT IMAGE RELATION

To select the location of a label in relation to the image used for the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an option from the **Text Image Relation** field. You can select any of the following:

- ImageAboveText This displays the button image on top of the label text.
- ImageBeforeText This displays the button image to the left of the label text.
- **Overlay** This displays the label text and the button image in the same space.
- TextAboveImage This displays the label text on top of the button image.
- **TextBeforeImage** This displays the label text to the left of the button image.

TIME STAMP FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font used for the time stamp in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **TimestampFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Timestamp Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

TIME STAMP FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) used for the time stamp in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **TimestampFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Timestamp Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

TIME STAMP FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font used for the time stamp in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **TimestampFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Timestamp Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

TIME STAMP FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) used for the time stamp in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **TimestampFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Timestamp Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

TIME STAMP FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) used for the time stamp in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **TimestampFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Timestamp Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

TITLE LABEL

To change the text that appears at the top of the column used to display the names of topics found after a search:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Title Label** field.

TOOLTIP

To change the tooltip text that appears when users hover the cursor over the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Tooltip** field.

USER INFO FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font used for the user information in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **UserInfoFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **UserInfoColor** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

USER INFO FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) used for the user information in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **UserInfoFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **User Info Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

USER INFO FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font used for the user information in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **UserInfoFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **User Info Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

USER INFO FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) used for the user information in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the **UserInfoFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **User Info Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

USER INFO FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) used for the user information in a MadCap Feedback comment:

Expand the UserInfoFont property group on the right and change the value in the User Info Font Weight field. Click the down arrow and select either bold or normal.

7. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Dialogs in Standard Skins

Supported In:



If you have enabled MadCap Feedback for your output, there are some dialogs that people will use for actions such as registering, adding comments, and replying to comments.

How to Specify Style Settings for Dialogs

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, expand the Dialog node.



4. Select the item that you want to edit. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, select the **Dialog** node itself.

The items under this node represent the different kinds of Feedback dialogs that may be found in your output.

Item	Description
Add Comment	This is the dialog used when people add feedback comments to a topic.
Register User	This is the dialog used when new end users register in order to submit feedback in your output. NOTE The "Register User" item lets you modify label text for fields in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog. However, the "Feedback User Profile Item" node (see "Feedback User Profile Items in Standard Skins" on page 335) does the same thing. So what's the difference? The "Register User" property in this node is the old way to accomplish this; the "Feedback User Profile Item" node is the new way. In order to be backwards compatible with earlier versions, the duplicate properties remain available in the Dialog/Register User node. The software will first look to any settings that you have provided in the Feedback User Profile Item node. Then it will look to settings entered in the Dialog/Register.
	User node.

ReplyThis is the dialog used when people reply to feedback comments for aCommenttopic.

5. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the style item.
6. In the Properties section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the background color of the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BORDERS

To add or change borders for the item:

Expand the **Borders** property group on the right and change the value in any of the fields. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the width of the border in the lower-left field. You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-left drop-down arrow. You can select a color for the border using the upper-right drop-down arrow. And you can select the type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted) using the lower-right drop-down arrow.

CANCEL BUTTON LABEL

To change the text that appears on the "Cancel" button:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Cancel Button Label** field.

COMMENT LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "comment" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Comment Label** field.

COMMENT REPLY NOTIFICATION LABEL

Next to the first email notification check box in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, users see the following text:

a reply is left to one of my comments

To change the text:

Expand the **Options** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Comment Reply Notification Label** field.

COMMENT SAME TOPIC NOTIFICATION LABEL

Next to the second email notification check box in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, users see the following text:

a comment is left on a topic that I commented on

To change the text:

Expand the **Options** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Comment Same Topic Notification Label** field.

COMMENT SAME HELP SYSTEM NOTIFICATION LABEL

Next to the third email notification check box in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, users see the following text:

a comment is left on any topic in the Help system

To change the text:

Expand the **Options** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Comment Same Help System Notification Label** field.

COUNTRY LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "country" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Country Label** field.

EMAIL ADDRESS LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "email address" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Email Address Label** field.

EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS GROUP LABEL

At the beginning of the email notification check boxes in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, users see the following text:

E-mail Notifications

To change the text:

Expand the **Options** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Email Notifications Group Label** field.

EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS HEADING LABEL

After the group label, just above the email notification check boxes in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, users see the following text:

I want to receive an email when...

To change the text:

Expand the **Options** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Email Notifications Heading Label** field.

FIRST NAME LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "first name" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **First Name Label** field.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

GENDER LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "gender" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Gender Label** field.

GENDER LABEL-FEMALE

To change the text that represents the "female" option in the "gender" drop-down field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Gender Female Name** field.

If you include the Gender option in your registration dialog, you might use this field to localize the text in other languages.

GENDER LABEL-MALE

To change the text that represents the "male" option in the "gender" drop-down field:

Expand the Labels property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the Gender Male Name field.

If you include the Gender option in your registration dialog, you might use this field to localize the text in other languages.

LAST NAME LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "last name" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Last Name Label** field.

MESSAGE-COMMENT LENGTH EXCEEDED

To change the text that appears in the message that users see when their comments are too long:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Comment Length Exceeded** field.

MESSAGE-EDIT PROFILE REGISTRATION

If you configure MadCap Feedback so that users must register before submitting comments, people will see the following message in the dialog when updating their profiles:

You must create a user profile to post comments to this help system. Please fill in the information below. An email will be sent to the address you provide. Please follow the instructions in the email to complete activation.

To change the text for this message:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Edit Profile Registration** field.

MESSAGE-MISSING REQUIRED FIELD

When users fail to complete a required field in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, they see a message. If you do not enter text, the default for the message is used. This default text is as follows:

Please enter a value for: [name of field].:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Missing Required Field** field.

MESSAGE-REGISTRATION

If you configure MadCap Feedback so that users must register before submitting comments, certain information is provided to those users, both in the registration dialog and in a popup message that follows. You can modify the text as needed. In the registration dialog, users see the following default text:

You must create a user profile to post comments to this help system. Please fill in the information below. An email will be sent to the address you provide. Please follow the instructions in the email to complete activation.

To change the text for this message:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Registration** field.

MESSAGE-REGISTRATION SUBMIT

In the popup message that follows the initial registration message, users see the following default text:

Your information has been sent to MadCap Software. When the information has been processed, you will receive an email with a link to a verification page. Click this link, or copy and paste the link into your web browser to complete the registration.

To change the text for this message:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Registration Submit** field.

MESSAGE-REGISTRATION SUBMIT NOTE

In the popup message that follows the initial registration message, users see the following note:

NOTE: Some service providers have email filtering software that may cause the notification email to be sent to your junk email folder. If you do not receive a notification email, please check this folder to see if it has been sent there.

To change the text for this message:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Registration Submit Note** field.

MESSAGE-UPDATE SUCCESS

When users successfully update their Feedback comment profiles, they see a message. If you do not enter text, the default is used. This default text is as follows:

Your profile was updated successfully!

To change the text for this message:

Expand the **Messages** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Update Success** field.

ORIGINAL COMMENT LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "original comment" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Original Comment Label** field.

POSTAL CODE LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "postal code" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Postal Code Label** field.

SHADOW COLOR

To change the color of the shadow for the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Shadow Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

SHADOW DISTANCE

To change the distance that the shadow extends from the edge of the item (in pixels):

Expand the **General** property group on the right and enter a value with the measurement in the **Shadow Distance** field (e.g., 10 px).

SHADOW OPACITY

To change the opacity (transparency) of the shadow for the item, ranging between 0 and 100 (the lower the number, the more transparent):

Expand the **General** property group on the right and enter a value in the **Shadow Opacity** field (e.g., 65).

SUBJECT LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "subject" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Subject Label** field.

SUBMIT BUTTON LABEL

To change the text that appears on the "Submit" button:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Submit Button Label** field.

TITLE FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font used for the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right and change the value in the **Title Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

TITLE FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) used for the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right and change the value in the **Title Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

TITLE FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font used for the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right and change the value in the **Title Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right dropdown arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

TITLE FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) used for the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right and change the value in the **Title Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

TITLE FONT VARIANT

To change the variant of the font (e.g., small caps) used for the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right and change the value in the **Title Font Variant** field. Click the down arrow and select either **normal** or **small-caps**.

TITLE FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) used for the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right and change the value in the **Title Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

TITLE LABEL

To change the text that appears in the title:

Expand the **Title** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Title Label** field.

USER NAME LABEL

To change the text that appears next to the "user name" field:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Username Label** field.

7. Click \blacksquare to save your work.

Feedback User Profile Items in Standard Skins

Supported In:



() **IMPORTANT** Feedback is deprecated in Flare Desktop, which means that it is slated to be removed in a future version.

When users submit MadCap Feedback comments, they must complete the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog (unless you have enabled anonymous comments). You can specify which fields are included in this dialog. In addition, you can use the Styles tab in the skin to change the text for each of those fields, as well as to specify which fields are required and whether a field should have a default value.

CREATE FEEDBACK SERVIC You must create a user profile Please fill in the information b you provide. Please follow the activation. Fields marked with	E PROFILE: e to post comments to this help system. below. An email will be sent to the address e instructions in the email to complete an asterisk (*) are required.	In addition to the "Username" and "E-mail Address" fields (which are always included and required), we added four other fields to the profile dialog and
*Username		made two of them required.
*E-mail Address		
First Name		
Last Name		
*Date		
*Department		
E-mail Notifications I want to receive an email whe a reply is left to one of my a comment is left on a top a comment is left on any to	en comments ic that I commented on opic in the Help system	
	Submit Cancel	

How to Specify Style Settings for Feedback User Profile Items

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, expand the Feedback User Profile Item node.



4. Select the item that you want to edit. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, select the **Feedback User Profile Item** node itself.

The items under this node represent the different fields that can be included in the Create Service Profile dialog. In addition to the many standard fields that can be included (e.g., Address1, City, Department, Occupation), you can add up to 10 custom fields (e.g., Custom1, Custom2, Custom3), which can be used for any kind of field not already available.

5. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the style item.

6. In the **Properties** section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

DEFAULT VALUE

To enter a default value for the item—the user will see this text in the field initially (e.g., perhaps you would enter "United States" as the default value for the Country field):

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **DefaultValue** field.

GENDER LABEL-FEMALE

To change the text that represents the "female" option in the "gender" drop-down field (this property displays only if you have selected the "Gender" style first):

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Gender Female Name** field.

If you include the gender option in your registration dialog, you might use this field to localize the text in other languages.

GENDER LABEL-MALE

To change the text that represents the "male" option in the "gender" drop-down field (this property displays only if you have selected the "Gender" style first):

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Gender Male Name** field.

If you include the gender option in your registration dialog, you might use this field to localize the text in other languages.

LABEL

To change the text that appears on the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Label** field.

REQUIRED

To specify whether the field should be required (i.e., end users must complete the field to move on):

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Required** field. Click the down arrow and select either **false** (not required) or **true** (required).



7. Click 🖬 to save your work.

★ EXAMPLE You have already used the Feedback User Profile tab in the Skin Editor to add several fields to your Feedback registration dialog, including the Address1 field. Maybe you want to change the label text that is displayed next to that field in the dialog. In that case, you can click to the right of the Label field and type something else (e.g., Street).

In addition, let's say that you want the Address1 field to be required; end users must complete it in order to move on. In that case, you can click to the right of the **Required** field and select **true**.

When you are finished, it would look like this:

🗆 General	
Required	true
Localization	
Label	Street
DefaultValue	(not set)

NOTE In order to be backwards compatible with earlier versions, some properties are also still available in the Dialog/Register User node (see "Dialogs in Standard Skins" on page 323). The software will first look to any settings that you have provided in the Feedback User Profile Item node. Then it will look to settings entered in the Dialog/Register User node.



☐ If you want to modify the labels next to the email notification fields in the Create Feedback Service Profile dialog, you need to expand the **Dialog** node and then select **Register User**. In the **Properties** section on the right, expand the **Options** group and change any of the values for the email notification fields.



CHAPTER 5

Formats in Standard Skins

Supported In:



These are navigation elements that you might include in your project (e.g., cross-references, breadcrumbs, keyword links, related topics links, concept links). For most of these elements, you can use the skin style to change the link or prefix text. For cross-references, you can change text as well as formats (i.e., how the link is constructed).

Styles for many of the formats are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus outputs. The formats related to cross-references are supported in print-based outputs (Adobe PDF, Microsoft Word).

How to Specify Style Settings for Formats

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, select the Formats node.



Properties for the following elements are shown on the right side of the tab.

BREADCRUMBS

In the output, this is a "trail of breadcrumbs" composed of the table of contents (TOC) entries above the current topic in the TOC hierarchy.



In the skin you can change the prefix text ("You are here") for the breadcrumbs.

CONCEPT LINKS

A concept link is a Help control that lets users open topics that you've determined are related to the current topic. It is similar to the related topics link. However, whereas you associate a related topics link with specific individual topics (usually for a one-time use), you associate a concept link with a group of topics (to be reused in different topics). One great benefit of this type of link is that, if you later want to add or delete topics from the group, you only need to do so in one place and the changes are applied to every topic containing that concept link.



In the skin you can change the text that displays on the link ("See Also").

CROSS-REFERENCES

A cross-reference is an automated link that is based on a format with commands. This method of linking saves time because you don't have to type the link text each time, or manage it over time if the destination content changes. Cross-references are recommended when you are linking from one place in your project to another (as opposed to linking to external files or websites). The format can be controlled in your stylesheet. This lets you keep links consistent and change them in just one place by using the MadCaplxref style (or a class of it that you have created). Cross-references are also useful for converting online links to page number references when you are producing printed output (by having a separate format for the cross-reference style in the print medium of the stylesheet).





In the skin you can change the cross-reference format used for either online or print-based output. If you are creating context-sensitive cross-references, use a language skin instead of a regular skin.

DROP-DOWN

A drop-down is a feature that lets you click a hotspot to expand and collapse specified content (paragraphs, lists, images, tables, videos, etc.) below it.



In the skin you can change the alternate text for the open and closed images used next to the drop-down.

EXPANDING TEXT

Expanding text is a feature that lets you click a hotspot to expand and collapse content that appears after it in the same paragraph or other block element.



In the skin you can change the alternate text for the open and closed images used next to the expanding text effect.

GLOSSARY TERM

If you have words and phrases in topics and snippets that are to be included in a glossary, you can turn them into links. A glossary term link lets users access definitions from that location in the output. Glossary term links can display definitions in popups, hyperlinks, or expanding text.



for a topic. Replace the most important part of a

In the skin you can change the alternate text for the open and closed images used next to the glossary term in the output.

KEYWORD LINKS

A keyword link is a Help control that lets you open topics related to the current topic based on index keywords that they share.



In the skin you can change the text that displays on the link ("Search Index").

RELATED TOPICS

A related topics link is a Help control that provides users with list of links to topics that you've specified as being related to the current topic. This is similar to a concept link. You might use a related topics link if you are applying it to a topic that you want to associate with specific topics but you do not plan to reuse the same link in other topics.





In the skin you can change the text that displays on the link ("Related Topics").

TOGGLER

A toggler is a feature that lets users click a hotspot to reveal one or more named elements in a topic. A named element (also called the "toggler target") is a chunk of content that can reside anywhere in the topic. When users click the toggler hotspot, the output reveals hidden content elements. When users click the hotspot again, the content is hidden again.



In the skin you can change the alternate text for the open and closed images used next to the toggler effect.

4. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the node.

5. In the **Properties** section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

ABOVE REFERENCE

To change the text used when the destination appears above a cross-reference on the same page of print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Above Reference** field.

BELOW REFERENCE

To change the text used when the destination appears below a cross-reference on the same page of print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Below Reference** field.

BREADCRUMBS PREFIX

To change the text used at the beginning of a trail of breadcrumbs in online output:

Expand the **Breadcrumbs** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Breadcrumbs prefix** field.

CLOSED IMAGE ALT TEXT

To change the alternate text used when the image is closed:

Expand the **Drop Down**, **Expanding Text**, **Glossary Term**, or **Toggler** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Closed Image Alt Text** field.

CONCEPT LINK

To change the text used on a concept link in online output:

Expand the **Concept Link** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Link Text** field.

FORMAT

To change the command structure of a cross-reference when used in online output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Format** field, including any format commands.

FORMAT FOR PRINT

To change the command structure of a cross-reference when used in print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Format for Print** field, including any format commands.

KEYWORD LINK

To change the text used on a keyword link in online output:

Expand the **Keyword Link** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Link Text** field.

ON FACING PAGE REFERENCE

To change the text used when the destination appears on a page adjacent to a crossreference (e.g., link is on the left page and destination is on the right page) in print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **On Facing Page Reference** field.

ON NEXT PAGE REFERENCE

To change the text used when the destination appears on the page just after a cross-reference in print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **On Next Page Reference** field.

ON PAGE REFERENCE

To change the text used when the destination appears more than one page away from a cross-reference in print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **On Page Reference** field.

ON PREVIOUS PAGE REFERENCE

To change the text used when the destination appears on the page just before a crossreference in print-based output:

Expand the **Cross-Reference** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **On Previous Page Reference** field.

OPEN IMAGE ALT TEXT

To change the alternate text used when the image is open:

• Expand the **Drop Down**, **Expanding Text**, **Glossary Term**, or **Toggler** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Open Image Alt Text** field.

RELATED TOPICS

To change the text used on a related topics link in online output:

Expand the **Related Topics** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Link Text** field.

6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

NOTE You can also set the format for elements in a regular stylesheet. If you do so, those settings override conflicting settings in the skin.

NOTE If you want to display the output user interface in a particular language, you can modify styles in a language skin instead of a regular skin.

Frames in Standard Skins

Supported In:



When it comes to skins, frames refer to the "containers" of the navigation items that display in the output when you include elements such as accordion items, toolbars, and Feedback at the end of topics. In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project.

Some of these styles are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus.



How to Specify Style Settings for Frames

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, expand the Frame node.



4. Select the item that you want to edit. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, select the **Frame** node itself.

The items	under this	node represe	nt the c	different	kinds c	of frames	that may	be found	n your
output.									

ltem	Description
Accordion Browse Sequence	This is the frame that holds the browse sequences.
Accordion Favorites	This is the frame that holds the search string and topic favorites.
Accordion Glossary	This is the frame that holds the glossary.
Accordion Index	This is the frame that holds the index.
Accordion Search	This is the frame that holds the search fields and results.
Accordion TOC	This is the frame that holds the table of contents (TOC).
Body Comments	This is the frame that holds the topic comments associated with MadCap Feedback at the bottom of topics.
Navigation Drag Handle	This is the divider between the active navigation feature and the navigation bars. Users can click the handle of this divider and drag it to adjust the space in the navigation pane.

Item	Description
Navigation Top Divider	This is the top edge of the navigation pane.
Toolbar	This is the frame that holds the WebHelp toolbar.
Topic Toolbar	This is the frame that holds a custom topic toolbar.

5. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the style item.

6. In the Properties section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the background color of the item:

Expand the **Frame** or **General** property group (depending on the item you selected) on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BACKGROUND GRADIENT

To change the background gradient color of the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

BACKGROUND GRADIENT PRESSED

To change the background gradient color of the item when it is pressed:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient Pressed** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.
BACKGROUND IMAGE

To add a background image to the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and select an image in the **Background Image** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

BACKGROUND IMAGE PRESSED

To add a background image to the item when it is pressed:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and select an image in the **Background Image Pressed** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

BORDERS

To add or change borders for the item:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right and change the value in any of the "Border" fields (e.g., Border Left, Border Right). Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the width of the border in the lower-left field. You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-left drop-down arrow. You can select a color for the border using the upper-right drop-down arrow. And you can select the type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted) using the lower-right drop-down arrow.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font for the item heading:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) for the item heading:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font for the item heading:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right dropdown arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) for the item heading:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) for the item heading:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

HEIGHT

To change the height of the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right and change the value in the **Height** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the item height in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

LABEL

To change the heading text that appears on the item:

Expand the **Heading** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Label** field.

SCROLLING FOR ACCESSIBILITY

To enable scrolling in order to make the toolbar accessible:

Expand the **Frame** property group on the right side of the editor. Click in the cell to the right of **Scrolling** and select **auto**. For more information on this option, see the Help system.

7. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Index Entries in Standard Skins

Supported In:



Using a skin, you can modify the appearance of index entries in online output. In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project.



How to Specify Style Settings for Index Entries

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, select the Index Entry node.



- 4. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the node.
- 5. In the **Properties** section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

FONT BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

SEE REFERENCE

To change the text that appears on "See" index links:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **See Reference** field.

SEE ALSO REFERENCE

To change the text that appears on "See Also" index links:

Expand the **Labels** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **See Also Reference** field.

SELECTION BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font after the index entry has been selected:

Expand the **Selection** property group on the right and change the value in the **Selection Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

SELECTION COLOR

To change the color of the font after the index entry has been selected:

Expand the **Selection** property group on the right and change the value in the **Selection Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Index Entry Popups in Standard Skins

Supported In:



Using a skin, you can modify the appearance of index entry popups in online output. These are the popups that users see when they click an index entry that links to more than one topic. In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project.



How to Specify Style Settings for Index Entry Popups

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, select the Index Entry Popup node.



- 4. Select the Property Groups or Alphabetical List option to display the properties for the node.
- 5. In the **Properties** section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

FONT BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

HOVER FONT BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font when users hover over it:

Expand the **HoverFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Hover Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

HOVER FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font when users hover over it:

Expand the **HoverFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Hover Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

HOVER FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana) when users hover over it:

Expand the **HoverFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Hover Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

HOVER FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font when users hover over it:

Expand the **HoverFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Hover Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lowerright drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right dropdown arrow.

HOVER FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic) when users hover over it:

Expand the HoverFont property group on the right and change the value in the Hover Font Style field. Click the down arrow and select either italic or normal.

HOVER FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold) when users hover over it:

Expand the **HoverFont** property group on the right and change the value in the **Hover Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

6. Click 🔲 to save your work.

I TOC Entries in Standard Skins

Supported In:



Using a skin, you can modify the appearance of table of contents (TOC) entries in online output. In order to see these items in the output, you must include them in your project.

Styles for many of the TOC entries are supported only in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus outputs. However, there is one icon style that is supported only in Microsoft HTML Help.



How to Specify Style Settings for TOC Entries

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, select the Toc Entry node.



- 4. Select the Property Groups or Alphabetical List option to display the properties for the node.
- 5. In the **Properties** section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

BOOK ICON

To select a different icon image for the book items in the TOC:

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Book Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

BOOK ICON ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the book icon:

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Book Icon Alternate Text** field.

BOOK OPEN ICON

To select a different icon image for the book items in the TOC when they are open (or selected):

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Book Open Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

BOOK OPEN ICON ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the book icons in the TOC when they are open (or selected):

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Book Open Icon Alternate Text** field.

FONT BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

HTML HELP ICON INDEX

To select a different icon image for the items in HTML Help:

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Html Help Icon Index** field.

MARK AS NEW

To specify whether all TOC icons should include an asterisk (indicating a new entry).

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right and change the value in the **Mark As New** field. Click the down arrow and select either **false** or **true**.

MARK AS NEW ALTERNATE TEXT

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Mark As New Icon Alternate Text** field.

TOPIC ICON

To select a different icon image for the topic items in the TOC:

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Topic Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

TOPIC ICON ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the topic icon:

Expand the **Toclcons** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Topic Icon Alternate Text** field.

6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

I Toolbar Items in Standard Skins

Supported In:



Using a skin, you can modify the appearance of WebHelp toolbars and topic toolbars that you include in your output.



- 1. An overview of what your software does
- 2. Features and benefits
- 3. Many also use the welcome page for company/product branding
- 4. Who is the Typical User

How to Specify Style Settings for Toolbar Items

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Styles tab.
- 3. In the Styles section, expand the Toolbar Item node.



4. Select the item that you want to edit. If you want the setting(s) to be applied to all of the items, select the **Toolbar Item** node itself.

The items under this node represent the different kinds of toolbar items that may be found in your output.

ACCORDION TITLE

Displays the name of the accordion item, which is next to the WebHelp toolbar.

Toolbar	Toolbar Items Accordion Title										
		Font									
	Glossary	🔀 💵 🔚 🍓 Quick search 🦃 🖉 🌾	1 🕪								

ADD TOPIC TO FAVORITES

Lets users add the active topic to the Favorites pane so that they can quickly access the topic in the future.

Toolbar Items Add Topic To Favorites									
Border	General								
Glossary	— 🔯 📮 🗈 🗟 Quick search 🦃 💆 🚳								

BACK

Lets users open the topic that was viewed previously.

Toolbar Items Back																
					Border			_					Gene	ral		
Glossary	1		1	5	Quick search	<i>‡</i> D	*	1	×	¢.		F	P 🗉		> 🤿	\$

COLLAPSE ALL

Lets users collapse all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are expanded).



CURRENT TOPIC INDEX

Lets users see the display for the current topic in the sequence. This label is typically used in conjunction with the "Next Topic" and "Previous Topic" buttons when the topic in question exists in a browse sequence. Flare Desktop finds the current topic in a browse sequence and display its position in relation to the rest of the topics in that sequence. (The root node is used to determine the count; in other words, if there are "child" topics in the sequence structure under the current topic, they will be included in the count.)

٦	Toolbar Items Current Topic Index									
			Border General							
	Glossary	🔯 💷 🔚 🛤 🎃 Quick search	📑 💬 🎽 🍕 🖗 💥 🖏 🏠 🔲 🖹 🔑 🖃 🗁 🗢 🤤 🧬 🖨 Page 2 of 4 🎉 👼 I madcap							

EDIT USER PROFILE

Lets users edit their Feedback registration profile settings.



EXPAND ALL

Lets users expand all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are not yet expanded).

Toolbar Items Expa	Toolbar Items Expand All										
Border		(General								
Glossary	😥 🖛 💷 💷	Quick search	#P 💆 ·	🐗 🕪 🎽							

FORWARD

Lets users open the next topic in a previously viewed sequence.

Toolbar Items Forward		
	Border General	
Glossary 🔀 📮 🛛	🟗 🍐 Quick search 🖅 🜮 🌌 🦇 🔛 🕸 🏠 🔲 🖻 🔎 🖨 👄 🤤 🦃 🏭 Pag	e 2 of 4 😱

HOME

Lets users open a designated home page (such as your company's website).

Toolbar Items Home							
			Border				General
Glossary	🔁 🗖	Quick search	÷ 🖉	🖇 🕪	× 🤹 🏠] 🖻 🔎 🖵 🕻	🗅 🔿 🤤 🧬 🙀 Page 2 of 4 🎄

LOGO

Displays a logo.

Toolbar Items Logo				 									Gen	eral		
Glossary	🔁 🗖	b - B	🔒 Quick search) 🎽		×	¢ 🕻) 🖻	<i>"</i>	3	>	Ş	🦨 Pa	ge 2 of 4 🐝	۲	madcap

NEXT TOPIC

Lets users open the next topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the next topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the next topic after it.

Γ	Toolbar Items Next T	pic
		Border General
	Glossary	🔯 🗊 🕼 🕼 Quick search 👘 🌮 🎽 🐗 🤛 💥 🏠 🛄 🗄 🖉 🖨 🚔 🖨 🖓 🖓 Page 2 of 🟭 🤯 I madcap

PREVIOUS TOPIC

Lets users open the previous topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the previous topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the previous topic before it.

ſ	Toolbar Items Previous Topic									
		Border General								
	Glossary 🔯 📮 🔚 🍇 Quick :	歩 🎽 🍕 🖗 💥 🎭 🛄 📑 🔎 🗉 🖨 🤤 😵 🦓 Page 2 of 4 🎉 👼 I madcap								

PRINT

Lets users open the Print dialog so that they can send the open topic to the printer.

Toolbar Items Print										
Border					General					
Glossary	汉 🗖	1	2	Quick search	======================================	> 🗙 🕸				

QUICK SEARCH

Lets users initiate a search in the active topic for the word or phrase that has been typed in the field next to the button.

Toolbar Items Quick Search									
В	order			General					
Glossary	🔜 🗟 🗉 🖵 🖾	Quick search 🦆	🛎 🛯 🕨 🗶 I	🎄 🏠 🔲 🖻 🖉 🖯 🖨 🌳					

REFRESH

Lets users initiate a search in the active topic for the word or phrase that has been typed in the field next to the button.

Toolbar Items Refre	esh												
				Border								Gene	ral
Glossary	1		Quick search		A 10	*	钧	<u>ک</u>	F	P E	64		🖗 🦨 F

REMOVE HIGHLIGHT

After a user performs a quick search in a topic, the search text found in the topic is highlighted. This button lets users turn the highlights off.

٦	loolbar Items Remove	High	lig	ht										
					Border		_				_	Gene	ral	
	Glossary	🔽 🗖		: 🎍	Quick search		9 3	<u> </u>	D 🖇	¢ 🕸		3 🔎	٩	6

SELECT BROWSE SEQUENCE

Lets users open the Browse Sequence feature.

Foolbar Items Sele	ct Browse Sequence									
				Borde	7					General
Glossary	🔀 💵 🔚 🎃 Quick search] 🕫 🎽	≪ ⊮	🗙 🛱 🕻) 🛛 🗈	P 🖯 🖨	-	🖗 🦨 F	Page 2 of 4 🐝	👼 I madca

SELECT FAVORITES

Lets users open the Favorites feature.

Т	oolbar Items Select F	avor	ite	s																
								(1	Borde	er.					 		Ger	neral	
	Glossary	🔀 🗖	5	1	<u>م</u>	iick search	Þ	<u>¥</u>		× 9	¢ 🕻) 🖹	Þ	5 6	3	Ş	🦨 F	Page 2 of 4 👔	Ō	- I maa

SELECT GLOSSARY

Lets users open the Glossary feature.

Toolbar Items Selec	t Glossary		
		Border	General
Glossary	🗽 💷 🔠 🔛 🍛 Quick search		🗅 🔿 🗟 🧬 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🐞 👼 i m

SELECT INDEX

Lets users open the Index feature.

Toolbar Items Select I	ndex					
			Border	<u> </u>		General
Glossary	🔀 💷 🗄	Quick search	P 🖉 🖇 🕅	🕺 🔹 🕸	89960	🗟 🤌 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🐝

SELECT SEARCH

Lets users open the Search feature.

Toolbar Items Select S	earcl	h												
				Ē	Bord	ler						_	General	
Glossary	🔀 🗖	•	실 Quick search] 🕫 💆		₽ >	\$	E /	D	6	> 🤿	P	🦨 Page 2 of 4 🐝	Ö

SELECT TOC

Lets users open the TOC feature.

Γ	Toolbar Items Select 7	roc													
					Bor	der					 	-	(General	
	Glossary	🔯 🗖	1	Quick search	#2	<u>¥</u> 4	1 🕪	×	s 🟠	8	i	- > 👳	Ş	🦨 Pag	ge 2 of 4

SEPARATOR

This is the divider between the toolbar buttons and the navigation pane.

Toolbar Items Sep	parator	General
Index	alahak 🎽 🔝 🗖	🗈 🗈 🍇 Quick search 🦻 💆 🚳 🖗

STOP

Lets users prevent a page from downloading file information.

Toolbar Items Stop																	
					Border				_			-		Gen	eral		
Glossary	X	1	5	3	Quick search	1	<u>¥</u>	X	¢3		Ē	<i>,</i> ,	36) 📫	Ģ	Ş	🦨 Page

TOGGLE NAVIGATION PANE

Lets users toggle between hiding and showing the navigation pane in the output window.

Toolbar Items Toggle	Navig	atio	n Pan	ie		
Border		_		General		
Glossary	2	8 8	è Qu	iick search 🦆	<u>*</u>	41 D

TOPIC RATINGS

Lets users submit ratings for a topic (if you have incorporated your output with MadCap Feedback).

Toolbar Items Topic	Ratings			 General		
Index	shininini	1 🔽	🔯 🗖	Quick search	10 💆	

- 5. Select the **Property Groups** or **Alphabetical List** option to display the properties for the style item.
- 6. In the **Properties** section, set the values for the properties that you want modify.

ABOUT BOX ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the logo's "About" box:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **About Box Alternate Text** field.

BORDERS

To add or change borders for the item:

Expand the **Borders** property group on the right and change the value in any of the "Border" fields (e.g., Border Left, Border Right). Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the width of the border in the lower-left field. You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-left drop-down arrow. You can select a color for the border using the upper-right drop-down arrow. And you can select the type of line for the border (e.g., solid, dashed, dotted) using the lower-right drop-down arrow.

CONTROL TYPE

To change the control type for the item (i.e., you can select any type of button that can be added to the toolbar):

Expand the Type property group on the right and select an item in the Control Type field.

EMPTY ICON

To select a different "empty" icon image for the "Topic Ratings":

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Empty Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

By default the button displays five stars. This image represents the area of the button that is not rated (e.g., if readers give the topic "two out of five stars," this image fills the space of the three empty stars).

FONT BACKGROUND COLOR

To change the color of the area behind the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT BACKGROUND GRADIENT

To change the background color of the item:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT BACKGROUND GRADIENT HOVER

To change the background color of the item when the end user hovers over it:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient Hover** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT BACKGROUND GRADIENT PRESSED

To change the background color of the item when the end user presses it:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Background Gradient Pressed** field to apply a color progression effect. The background changes from one color to another. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, click the down arrow next to the **Start** field and select a color to use at the beginning of the gradient. Then click the down arrow next to the **End** field and select the color to use at the end of the gradient. Finally, click the down arrow next to the **Style** field and select a direction for the gradient effect or choose "solid." Click **OK** to accept the settings. When you click off the properties field, a small icon is displayed in the field, showing how the effect will look. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT COLOR

To change the color of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Color** field. Click the down arrow to open a color palette window. You can click a color shown, or you can click **More colors** and select a different color or create a custom color. If you are change the color for a style item that also has a gradient, the gradient properties have precedence over the solid color.

FONT FAMILY

To select a specific font family (e.g., Arial, Tahoma, Verdana):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Family** field. From the drop-down, select the font family or font set that you want to use.

FONT SIZE

To change the size of the font:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Size** field. Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the size of the font in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

FONT STYLE

To change the style of the font (e.g., make it italic):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Style** field. Click the down arrow and select either **italic** or **normal**.

FONT WEIGHT

To change the weight of the font (e.g., make it bold):

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in the **Font Weight** field. Click the down arrow and select either **bold** or **normal**.

FULL ICON

To select a different "full" icon image for the "Topic Ratings":

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Full Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

By default the button displays five stars. This image represents the area of the button that has been rated completely (e.g., if readers give the topic "two out of five stars," this image fills the space of the two stars).

HOVER ICON

To select a different icon image to be used when the user hovers the cursor over the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Hover Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

ICON

To select a different icon image:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

LABEL

To change the text that appears on the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Label** field.

LOGO ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the logo:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Logo Alternate Text** field.

ON CLICK

To provide a command for the item when it is clicked by the user:

Expand the **Type** or **General** property group on the right and enter a command in the **OnClick** field.

★ EXAMPLE You want to provide a command for an item (e.g., so that clicking the button opens a website). The following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");

PADDING

To add or change padding (space around) the item:

Expand the **Font** property group on the right and change the value in any of the "Padding" fields (e.g., Padding Left, Padding Right). Click the down arrow to open a small window. In this window, you can enter the amount of padding in the lower-left field (either type a number or use the up and down arrows). You can select the unit of measurement (e.g., pixels, points, centimeters) using the lower-right drop-down arrow. You can return to the default setting by using the upper-right drop-down arrow.

PRESSED ICON

To select a different icon image to be used when the item is pressed:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an image from the **Pressed Icon** field. Click the down arrow in this field and then select **Browse for Image** to find and select an image file.

RATING SUBMITTED MESSAGE

To change the text that appears after users rate a topic:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Rating Submitted Message** field.

SEARCH BOX TOOLTIP

To change the tooltip text that appears when users hover the cursor over the search field:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Search Box Tooltip** field.

SEPARATOR ALTERNATE TEXT

To change the alternate text for the separator:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Separator Alternate Text** field.

SHOW TOOLTIP

To change the tooltip text that appears when users hover over the "Toggle Navigation Pane" button (when the navigation pane is hidden):

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Show Tooltip** field.

TEXT IMAGE RELATION

To select the location of a label in relation to the image used for the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and select an option from the **Text Image Relation** field. You can select any of the following:

- ImageAboveText This displays the button image on top of the label text.
- ImageBeforeText This displays the button image to the left of the label text.
- Overlay This displays the label text and the button image in the same space.
- **TextAboveImage** This displays the label text on top of the button image.
- **TextBeforeImage** This displays the label text to the left of the button image.

TOOLTIP

To change the tooltip text that appears when users hover the cursor over the item:

Expand the **General** property group on the right side of the editor and enter new text in the **Tooltip** field.

7. Click 🖬 to save your work.

CHAPTER 6

Other Activities for Skins

In addition to the primary activities related to skins, you can also do the following.

Other Activities

- "Associating Skin Components With Targets" on page 398
- "Importing Skins" on page 401
- "Previewing the Skin for a Specific Output Type" on page 402
- "Renaming Skins" on page 403
- "Setting All Skins to Be Generated" on page 404
- "Selecting a Skin for a Browse Sequence Entry" on page 406
- "Showing Links in Standalone Topics" on page 407
- "Specifying Browser Settings" on page 408
- "Specifying the Caption for the Output Window" on page 410
- "Specifying the Default Tab or Accordion Item for the Output Window" on page 411
- "Specifying Navigation Elements to Include in the Output Window" on page 412
- "Specifying Navigation Pane Settings for HTML5 and WebHelp Outputs" on page 413
- "Specifying the Size and Position of the Output Window" on page 418

Other Activities-HTML Help

- "Creating a Binary Index" on page 422
- "Creating a Binary TOC" on page 423

- "Including Bookmarks in Index Entries" on page 424
- "Specifying Buttons for HTML Help Output" on page 425
- "Specifying Navigation Pane Settings for HTML Help Output" on page 428
- "Specifying How the TOC Looks in HTML Help Output" on page 428
- "Adding a Web Toolbar to HTML Help Output" on page 430
- "Web Toolbars in HTML Help Output" on page 431
- "Enabling User-defined Window Position and Size for HTML Help Output" on page 438

Other Activities-HTML5

- "Adding Favicons" on page 439
- "Setting a Fixed Header for Side or Top Navigation Output" on page 453
- "Setting a Fixed Topic Menu" on page 456
- "Enabling and Disabling Partial-Word Search for Glossaries" on page 463
- "Enabling and Disabling Partial-Word Search for Indexes" on page 465
- "Setting the Slide-Out Menu for Side or Top Navigation Output" on page 480
- "Changing Text Strings in HTML5 Skins" on page 487
- "Web Toolbars in HTML5 Output" on page 489

Other Activities–Images

- "Selecting an Image for the About Box" on page 496
- "Removing Unreferenced Embedded Images From Skins" on page 499

Other Activities—Tables of Contents

- "Reducing Flicker in Frameless TOC Navigation" on page 504
- "Selecting a Skin for a TOC Entry" on page 519
- "Synchronizing the TOC With Open Topics" on page 520

Other Activities—WebHelp

- "Excluding Accordion Titles From WebHelp Output" on page 524
- "Topic Toolbars in WebHelp Outputs" on page 527
"Web Toolbars in WebHelp Outputs" on page 548

CHAPTER 6

Other Activities—General

In addition to the main activities, there are some other tasks you might perform regarding this feature.

Associating Skin Components With Targets

Supported In:



You are not limited to one skin component of each type, although that is the most common situation. If you want, you can use multiple skin components of any type. If this is the case, you can associate a default skin component with a target. When you do this, the skin component you choose will always be used for any proxy of that same type that you insert for that target, unless you override it by associating a different skin component with a specific proxy that you've inserted.

How to Associate a Skin Component With a Target

- 1. Open an HTML5 target.
- 2. Select the Skin tab.
- 3. In the **Component Default Skins** section, click the drop-down arrow in any of the fields (**Menu**, **Topic Toolbar**, **eLearning Toolbar**, **Search Bar**, **Search Results**, **Favicon**, **Test Results**, **FAQ**, **Knowledge**, **Promotion**) to select the skin component that you want to associate with the target.

General	General			
5kin	Skin:	Top-Navigation	∠ Edit	
	Component Default Skins			
cleaning	Menu:	Menu.flskn	✓ Edit	
Conditional Text	Topic Toolbar:	(default)	✓ Edit	
/ariables	eLearning Toolbar:	(default)	✓ Edit	
Publishing	Search Bar:	(default)	✓ Edit	
Glossary	Search Results:	(default)	✓ Edit	
Relationship Table	Favicon:	(default)	✓ Edit	
Search	Central Account:	(default)	✓ Edit	
Meta Taos	Test Results:	(default)	✓ Edit	
Vdvanced	FAQ:	(default)	✓ Edit	
-uvanceu	Knowledge	(default)	Edit	

4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

What's Noteworthy?

The FAQ skin component can be used to style the proxy in non-HTML5 targets that are not deprecated. As a result, the Target Editor includes a Skin tab for selecting an FAQ skin component.

Ta	rget Editor 燥 Build 【	🂱 View 👻 🚱 Publish 🛛 🙀 Open	Build Log	
	General Skin	Component Default Skins	Print-FAQ-skin.flskn	✓ Edit

▶ NOTE The Micro Content - FAQ skin component and FAQ proxy are unique in that they are applicable to non-HTML5 targets in addition to HTML5 targets (e.g., PDF, Word, Clean XHTML, Eclipse, EPUB, and HTML Help).

The other micro content skin components (i.e., Micro Content - Knowledge, and Micro Content - Promotion) can be used for styling only HTML5 outputs.

Importing Skins

Not only can you add a new skin, but you can also import an existing skin (FLSKN file).

How to Import a Skin

- 1. Do one of the following, depending on the part of the user interface you are using:
 - Ribbon Select Project > New > Skin.
 - **Right-Click** In the Project Organizer, right-click on the **Skins** folder and from the context menu select **Add Skin**.

The Add File dialog opens.

- 2. Select New from existing and click .
- 3. Find and select the FLSKN file that you want to import.
- 4. Click **Open**. The Source File field now contains the path to the file that you are importing. Also, the name of the file is displayed in the File Name field.
- 5. If you want to give the skin a different name than that for the imported file, click in the File name field and replace the text.
- 6. (Optional) If you want to apply condition tags to the file, expand the **Attributes** section at the bottom of the dialog. Next to the **Condition Tags** field, click and select the conditions you want to apply. Click **OK**.
- 7. (Optional) If you want to apply file tags, expand the **Attributes** section at the bottom of the dialog. Next to the **File Tags** field, click **M** and select the file tags you want to apply. Click **OK**.
- 8. Click Add. The skin is added and opens in the Skin Editor.

Previewing the Skin for a Specific Output Type

Supported In:



You can see how your skin settings look in each of the online output types.

How to Preview the Skin for a Specific Output Type

- 1. Open a skin.
- 2. Depending on the skin type, you can select one of the following in the local toolbar.
 - Preview as HTML Help Window This button is shown only if you have opened a Standard skin.
 - Preview as WebHelp Window This button is shown only if you have opened a Standard skin.
 - **Preview** This button is shown only if you have opened an HTML5 skin.

The appropriate type of window opens, displaying sample content using your skin settings.

3. Close the window when you are finished.

NOTE If you have responsive output enabled in an HTML5 skin, the preview is also responsive. If you have the responsive output disabled, the preview is static.

Renaming Skins

You can rename any skins in your project.

How to Rename a Skin

- 1. Open the Project Organizer.
- 2. Double-click the **Skins** folder. The skins in your project are displayed.
- 3. Click on the skin that you want to rename.
- 4. Press F2 on your keyboard. The skin name is highlighted.
- 5. Type a new name for the skin and press ENTER.

Setting All Skins to Be Generated

Supported In:



An option on the Advanced tab of the Target Editor controls whether every skin in the project or just the selected skin in the target (which is set on the Skin tab for HTML5 targets and the General tab for other targets) will be generated for the output. This option is enabled by default.

One reason to enable this option is if you need the ability to make context-sensitive Help (CSH) calls to different skins. In this case, each of those skins must be generated so that they are available in the output for the CSH calls. If you are not using multiple skins for CSH calls, you might want to disable this option. If you disable it, the size of the entire output will be minimized because unnecessary skins will be excluded.

Another reason to enable this option is to use runtime skins for HTML5 outputs, where end users are able to choose the skin to display the output. See "Enabling Runtime Skins" on page 473.

How to Set All Skins to Be Generated

- 1. Open a target used for online output.
- 2. On the **Advanced** tab of the Target Editor, select **Generate all skins** so that it has a check mark.

Target Editor 👰 Build 🛛 👰 View 👻 🖓 Publish 📑 Open Build Log							
General	Output Options						
Skin	Do not use "Content" folder in output						
Conditional Text	Generate resized copies of scaled images ()						
Variables	Generate "web-safe" images PNG (Portable Network Graphics Format)						
Publishing	Replace reserved characters with underscores in filenames						
Glossary	Use custom file extension for topics						
Relationship Table	Use lowercase filenames						
Court I	Generate all skins						
Search	Exclude content not linked directly or indirectly from the target						
Advanced	Include JavaScript for CSH						
Performance	Use empty ALT text for images that do not have ALT text						

3. Click 🔲 to save your work.

Selecting a Skin for a Browse Sequence Entry

Supported In:



NOTE This is supported in HTML5 Tripane output, but not in HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output.

You can add skins to your project to help create a look and feel for online output that you generate. After you create a browse sequence, you can associate a browse sequence with a particular skin.

How to Select a Skin for a Browse Sequence Entry

- 1. Open the browse sequence.
- 2. Select a browse sequence entry.
- 3. In the local toolbar, click \blacksquare . The Properties dialog opens.
- 4. Select the Advanced tab.
- 5. In the **Open in Skin** field, select a skin from your project.
- 6. In the Properties dialog, click OK.
- 7. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Showing Links in Standalone Topics

Supported In:



NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

You can add a link to the top or bottom of topics in HTML5, WebHelp, or WebHelp Plus outputs. This link will not display unless the output topic is opened as a standalone (outside of the main navigation framework of the output). By clicking the link, a user can view the standalone topic in the main navigation framework.

You can also modify the skin styles for these links to change the way they look or the words used in the links. To do this in a Standard skin, open the Skin Editor, select the **Styles** tab, expand the **Control** group, and set the values for the **Navigation Link Bottom** and **Navigation Link Top** properties. To do this in an HTML5 skin, open the Skin Editor, select the **Styles** tab, expand the **Navigation Link** group, and set the values for the **Bottom** and **Top** properties. See "Standard Skin Styles" on page 288 and "HTML5 Skin Styles" on page 72.

How to Show Links in WebHelp Standalone Topics

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. If you opened a Standard skin, select the **WebHelp Setup** tab. If you opened an HTML5 skin, select the **Setup** tab.
- 3. In the **Topic Settings** section, click **Show navigation link at top of topic** or **Show navigation link at bottom of topic**.
- 4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Specifying Browser Settings

Supported In:



▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

You can specify which features will be used in the output window when a browser is involved.

How to Specify Browser Settings for WebHelp Output

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. Select the WebHelp Setup tab. If you opened an HTML5 skin, select the Setup tab.
- 3. Select the options that you want to include in the browser output window.
 - Use Browser Default Settings Click this check box if you want the output window to use the settings specified in the user's internet browser. If you do not select this check box, you can select specific browser features below to include in the output window.

If you do not select "Use Browser Default Settings" above, click the check boxes next to each browser feature that you want to include in the output window.

- Toolbar Displays the browser toolbar at the top of the output window.
- Menu Displays the browser menu at the top of the output window.
- LocationBar Displays the browser location bar (or address bar) at the top of the output window.
- StatusBar Displays the browser status bar at the bottom of the output window.
- **Resizable** Allows users to resize the output window.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

() **IMPORTANT** If you specify browser settings for WebHelp, WebHelp Plus or HTML5, you *must* provide your users with a proper link to open your Help system. Otherwise the browser features mentioned below will not work properly. For details, see the Help system.

Specifying the Caption for the Output Window

Supported In:



▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

You can enter the caption that you want to be used at the top of your Help system window (e.g., in the title bar of the browser window or HTML Help viewer).

How to Specify the Caption for the Output Window

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. Select the General tab.
- 3. In the **Caption** field, type the caption just as you want it to appear in the output window. If you want to insert a variable in a field, you can click **S**. The variable will appear as syntax in the field, but in the output the variable definition will be shown.
- 4. Click somewhere else in the Skin Editor.
- 5. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Specifying the Default Tab or Accordion Item for the Output Window



Using the Skin Editor, you can select one of the navigation elements to serve as the default in the output. If you are creating Microsoft HTML Help output, these elements will display as tabs in the output window (except for a glossary, which is included in the TOC as a book). If you are creating other outputs, these elements will display as accordion items in the output window.

How to Specify the Default Tab or Accordion Item for the Output Window

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. Select the General tab.
- 3. In the **Features** section, select the navigation element that you want to use as the default in the output window.
- 4. Click Make Default. The word "(default)" is added after the element.
- 5. Click 🔙 to save your work.
- **NOTE** For Microsoft HTML Help, the default tab will be displayed the first time the CHM file is launched on a system. However, the last tab viewed is then remembered as the default the next time the Help is opened.

Specifying Navigation Elements to Include in the Output Window



▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

You can determine which navigation elements from your project (TOC, Index, Search, Glossary, Browse Sequences, Favorites, Community) that you want users to have access to in the output. If you are creating Microsoft HTML Help output, these elements will display as tabs in the output window (except for a glossary, which is included in the TOC as a book). If you are creating WebHelp or WebHelp Plus, these elements will display as accordion items in the output window. The Community option is for MadCap Pulse and therefore supported only in WebHelp and HTML5.

How to Specify Tabs or Accordion Items to Include in the Output Window

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. Select the General tab.
- 3. In the **Features** section, click the check box (adding a check mark) next to each navigation element that you want to include in the output. The elements available are different, depending on the type of skin you've opened—Standard, HTML5, or Mobile.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Specifying Navigation Pane Settings for HTML5 and WebHelp Outputs

You can specify navigation settings for HTML5, WebHelp, or WebHelp Plus output. For some of these outputs, the navigation pane is used to hold the TOC, Index, Search, Glossary, Browse Sequences, and Favorites in an accordion-type structure. For HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs, the navigation pane settings let you choose the main menu and slide-out position, fixed header, depth level of menu items (Top Navigation only), slide-out menu style, and a URL for a logo.

How to Specify Navigation Pane Settings for HTML5 and WebHelp Outputs

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 skin.
- 2. Do one of the following, depending on the type of output:
 - HTML5 Select the Setup tab.
 - Others Select the WebHelp Setup tab.
- 3. Select the appropriate options.

MAIN MENU POSITION

Choose where you want the main links to be located in the skin—Top, Left, or Right. If you select "Top," you will be creating Top Navigation output. If you select "Left" or "Right," you will be using Side Navigation output.

(This option is available only for HTML5 Side and Top Navigation skins.)

You can also set this option to "None," which is common if you want to create more of a skinless output.

SLIDE-OUT POSITION

Select a location in the output window for the navigation pane. A small preview to the right changes as you make your selection. For HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs, this refers to the flyout pane that appears when responsive output is activated and the screen is too small to show the top menu.

You can also set this option to "None," which is common if you want to create more of a skinless output.

SLIDE-OUT MENU STYLE

You can choose the look of the slide-out menu for Side or Top Navigation output (i.e., the menu that opens when you click the "hamburger" icon in tablet or mobile view). Either a drilldown or a tree format can be selected.

(This option is available only for HTML5 Side and Top Navigation skins.)

FIXED HEADER

When generating Side or Top Navigation output, you can fix the header portion of the topic so that it stays in place when users scroll down to see more content. For Top Navigation, you can do this for web, tablet, or mobile screens (or all of them). For Side Navigation, you can do this for web screens (or all—web, tablet, mobile).

(This option is available only for HTML5 Side and Top Navigation skins.)

TOP MENU LEVELS TO SHOW (DEPTH)

Specify how many levels of your TOC items are included in the top menu navigation. The default is 3. We recommended you avoid too many depth levels in the top navigation.

(This option is available only for HTML5 Top Navigation skins, when the Main Menu Position is set to "Top"; it is disabled otherwise.)

LOGO URL

Select a topic to be linked to the logo. By default, the logo is linked to your Home (i.e., startup) topic. However, you can select a different topic or enter the URL to your company's website instead (remember to include http:// at the beginning of the path if you do this).

(This option is available only for HTML5 Side and Top Navigation skins.)

PANE SIZE

Enter the width of the navigation pane for the output window (in pixels). You can type a number or use the up and down arrows.

(This option is not available in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.)

VISIBLE ACCORDION ITEMS

Specify how many navigation items (e.g., TOC, Index, Search) you want to be included at full size in the navigation pane.

(This option is not available in HTML5 skins.)

★ EXAMPLE If you include six tabs in the output window and set this field to "4," the first four navigation items will be shown with full-sized links. The remaining two items will still be accessible in the navigation pane, but their links will not be full-sized, but rather smaller icons.

HIDE NAVIGATION PANE ON STARTUP

Click this check box if you do not want the navigation pane to be immediately displayed when the Help is accessed in this skin. You might use this option, for example, if you are creating a skin to be used for context-sensitive Help (CSH) topics (as opposed to your main Help system with full navigation). With CSH topics, the navigation pane is not usually necessary because the user wants to see information only for a very specific area.

(This option is not available in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.)

EXCLUDE ACCORDION TITLE

Removes the accordion title from the WebHelp output.

(This option is not available in HTML5 skins.)

If you generate output using WebHelp or WebHelp Plus, the title of the active accordion bar displays by default in the output, like this:



You have the option of excluding this accordion title from the output. This shifts the navigation buttons for the output to the left, like this:



4. Click 🔲 to save your work.

Specifying the Size and Position of the Output Window





▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

You can set the size and position of the output window. The size refers to the height and width of the output window. The position refers to the distance that the output window is placed from the top, bottom, left, and right of the user's computer screen.

How to Specify the Size and Position of the Output Window

- 1. Open a Standard or HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. Click the Size tab.
- 3. Do one of the following:
 - Click the Use Browser Default Size check box so there is a check mark in it. This sets the output window's dimensions to the default window size of whichever browser is used to open the output.

OR

Enter the size and position dimensions directly in each field (Top, Bottom, Left, Right, Width, Height). You can also use the up and down arrows to set a number. Use the down arrow to select a unit of measurement (point, pixel, centimeter, millimeter, inch, or pica).

OR

 Click the Preview Full Size button. Then click and drag the window to set its size and position. The fields on the tab change automatically as you resize and move the window. 4. If you want to ensure the size and/or position of the output window, regardless of the size of your user's computer screen, click the appropriate anchors (the arrows shown on the Size tab).



Anchors "lock" the size or position of the window according to settings you provide – a nice feature if your users have different-sized computer screens. (However, users can always adjust the window size in the output to meet their needs.) The arrows on the outside of the box are used to anchor the Help window to the top, bottom, left, or right edge of the user's screen. The arrows inside the box are used to anchor the height and width of the Help window. To set an anchor, click the appropriate arrow so that it is no longer gray.

Sometimes window settings conflict with each other (e.g., cannot have a window that is 700 pixels high *and* 300 pixels from the top of the screen). In such cases, Flare Desktop adjusts the settings as necessary. When there is a conflict and anchors exist, Flare Desktop follows the anchored settings and adjusts the non-anchored settings. If all settings are anchored, Flare Desktop follows the settings for the top, bottom, left, and right arrows (and changes the settings for the height and width as necessary).

If you want the output window to be a specific size, and your users have computer screens of various sizes, set the height and width dimensions. Then anchor the height and width of the window using the two arrows inside the box.

If you want the output window to be "dynamic" depending on the user's screen resolution, anchor it to the edges of the screen using the four arrows outside the box. Then set the top, bottom, left, and right dimensions. Regardless of the resolution of the screen, the output window will always be the same distance from the edges of the screen, and the size of the window will grow or shrink accordingly.

NOTE If you use anchors for WebHelp outputs, the size of the window is computed at runtime on the end-user's machine. Therefore, if you use anchors to position the window, say, 157 pixels from the right side of the screen, the generated WebHelp output will move/resize the window on the end-user's machine at runtime when the user views the output in a browser.

However, Microsoft HTML Help output works differently. The CHM viewer cannot move or resize itself. Therefore, the anchors are converted to absolute pixel coordinates based on *your* screen resolution during *compile time*. This means that the output on the end-user's machine is hard coded, based on your screen resolution.

5. Click 🔙 to save your work.

NOTE The size settings in the skin will not work in Google Chrome or Mozilla Firefox browsers unless the output is invoked as a popup.

Other Activities—HTML Help

You can perform the following additional tasks with HTML Help and skins.

Creating a Binary Index

Supported In:



You can create a binary index for your project. Binary indexes are intended for merging multiple CHM files when you build a target. The index keywords in the CHM files are sorted alphabetically and numerically for display in the output.

If you use this feature, please keep in mind that binary indexes do not support custom fonts.

How to Create a Binary Index

- 1. Create indexes in your projects.
- 2. Set your parent project to merge with the other CHM file(s) at run time.
- 3. Open a Standard skin.
- 4. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 5. Click the Index Options button.
- 6. In the HTML Help Index Options dialog, select Binary.
- 7. Click OK.
- 8. Click 🔙 to save your work.

▶ NOTE You can also create a binary TOC in Flare Desktop. See "Creating a Binary TOC" on the next page.

Creating a Binary TOC

Supported In:



You can create a binary table of contents (TOC) for your project. Binary TOCs are intended for very large compiled Microsoft HTML Help projects, reducing the amount of time it takes to load a TOC.

If you use this feature, please keep in mind that binary content files:

- Do not work with external TOC files
- Only support TOC book and entry icons (not custom icons)
- Do not support TOC style options such as borders and plus/minus squares
- Do not support custom fonts

How to Create a Binary TOC

- 1. Create a TOC.
- 2. Open a Standard skin.
- 3. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 4. Click the **TOC Options** button.
- 5. In the HTML Help TOC Options dialog, select **Binary**.
- 6. Click OK.
- 7. Click 🖬 to save your work.
- **NOTE** You can also create a binary index in Flare Desktop. See "Creating a Binary Index" on the previous page.

Including Bookmarks in Index Entries

Supported In:



If you want index term links to point to the exact spot in the topic where the index marker has been set, you need to specify this in the Skin Editor. Otherwise, the index term links will point to the topic in general.

However, by pointing to the individual index markers, the index may not display the way you want if the index term points to multiple topics and you also have created a binary index (see "Creating a Binary Index" on page 422). In other words, index entries pointing to multiple topics will display the index terms repeated instead of the topic title. A workaround is to deselect the binary index option in the Skin Editor. However, keep in mind that a binary index is required if you want to merge CHM files.

How to Include Bookmarks in Index Entries

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 3. Click the Index Options button.
- 4. In the HTML Help Index Options dialog, select Include bookmarks with index entries.
- 5. Click OK.
- 6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Specifying Buttons for HTML Help Output

You can select the Help buttons that you would like to include in the output window (e.g., Hide, Forward, Back, Print, customized buttons).

How to Specify Buttons for HTML Help Output

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 3. In the **Html Help Buttons** section, select the buttons that you want to include in the output window.
 - Hide Opens and closes the navigation pane.
 - Locate Synchronizes the TOC with the current topic (identifying the location of the current topic in the TOC hierarchy). This is different from the option "Automatically Synchronize TOC" on the General tab. This option is a manual method (requires action from the user), where as the other option is automatic.
 - Back Opens the topic that was viewed previously.
 - Forward Opens the next topic in a previously viewed sequence.
 - Stop Prevents a page from downloading file information.
 - **Refresh** Updates the content of the topic being viewed.
 - Home Opens a designated home page (such as your company's website).
 - Font Opens a font selection popup. You can choose a typeface from among those listed in the left panel. The base size can be selected in the right panel. There are two separate font families used by the viewer: the normal, proportional-spaced font, and a fixed-pitch font for preformatted and "typewriter" text. The latter does not actually have to be fixed-pitch; however, preformatted columns will not line up unless this is so. Pressing Apply Font will set the currently selected font as the viewer's proportional font, and Apply Fixed Font will set the currently selected font as the viewers "fixed" font. In either case, the display will be redrawn using the new font. The new font selection will be updated in the .mozyrc file if it exists, so that subsequent windows will use the new font.
 - **Print** From the Contents tab, prints pages, headings, and subtopics, or the entire TOC. From the Index or Search tab, opens the Print dialog for printing the current topic.

- Next Opens the next topic in the TOC. In order to include this button in the output, you
 must also make sure Binary TOC and Binary Index are selected (use the TOC Options
 and Index Options buttons). Please note that these buttons may not work correctly if
 the topic file names contain spaces.
- Previous Opens the previous topic in the TOC. In order to include this button in the output, you must also make sure Binary TOC and Binary Index are selected (use the TOC Options and Index Options buttons). Please note that these buttons may not work correctly if the topic file names contain spaces.
- **Options** Opens a menu that provides access to Home, Show, Back, Stop, Refresh, and Search Highlight On/Off.
- Jump1 Opens a customized destination. You can use this to let users open a website (defined with a URL) or a Help topic (defined by its file name if included in the same CHM file). You can specify the destination and label for the button by selecting Jump Button Options.
- Jump2 Opens a customized destination. You can use this to let users open a website (defined with a URL) or a Help topic (defined by its file name if included in the same CHM file). You can specify the destination and label for the button by selecting Jump Button Options.
- 4. If you want to include labels below each of the buttons in the output, select **Display button captions**.

- 5. If you selected the "Jump1" or "Jump2" button options, click Jump Button Options to specify the button text and destination. In the HTML Help Jump Button Options dialog, enter the appropriate destination URL (e.g., http://www.acme.com) in the Jump1 URL and/or Jump2 URL fields. Then enter the label for the button in the appropriate Button text field. When you are finished, click OK to close the dialog. (Make sure Display button captions is selected so that users can see the button text.)
 - ► NOTE You can also set the jump button options on the General tab in the Target Editor. The reason these button options are available in both the Skin Editor and Target Editor is this: If you want multiple targets to use one skin, with each target using the same destinations for the jump buttons, you should set the jump button URLs in the Skin Editor. If you want multiple targets to use the same skin, but you want them to use different URLs for the jump buttons, set the URLs in the Target Editor. If URLs are set in both the Skin Editor and the Target Editor, Flare Desktop uses the settings from the Skin Editor.
- 6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Specifying Navigation Pane Settings for HTML Help Output

You can specify navigation pane settings for Microsoft HTML Help output. This includes setting the width of the navigation pane and determining whether it shown or hidden under different circumstances. The navigation pane is used to hold elements such as TOCs and indexes.

How to Specify Navigation Pane Settings for HTML Help Output

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 3. In the Navigation Pane Options area, select the appropriate options.
 - Hide Navigation Pane on Startup Hides the navigation pane when the user opens the Help window. If you select "Hide" in the Html Help Buttons section, the user can display the navigation pane by clicking on the Hide/Show button in the toolbar.
 - Automatically show/hide Navigation Pane Automatically hides the navigation pane when users switch focus from the HTML Help viewer to a software program. The topic content remains visible, but the navigation pane is temporarily closed from view. The navigation pane is displayed again as soon as the HTML Help viewer is clicked.
 - Navigation Pane Width Enter the width of the navigation pane for the output window (in pixels). You can type a number or use the up and down arrows.
- 4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Specifying How the TOC Looks in HTML Help Output

You can specify the look and feel of your table of contents (TOC). This includes adding plus/minus squares next to entries, changing the book/folder icons, adding border around the TOC, and more.

How to Specify the Way the TOC Looks in HTML Help Output

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 3. Click the **TOC Options** button.
- 4. In the HTML Help TOC Options dialog, select the appropriate options. The "Preview" area changes as you make selections. Click the **OK** button when you are finished.
 - Lines between items Displays dotted lines, showing the connections between TOC books and entries.
 - Lines from root Displays lines connecting TOC books and entries starting at the root.
 - Plus/minus squares Displays plus and minus squares that open and close TOC books when clicked.
 - Single click to open books Formats TOC books to open with a single click. If this option is not selected, books open with a double-click.
 - Use folder icons for books Displays a folder icon instead of a book icon for TOC book entries.
 - Always show the selection Shows the selected entry even if the TOC tab is not the currently selected item (does not have focus).
 - Binary For large compiled Microsoft HTML Help projects, a binary TOC reduces the amount of time it takes to load a TOC by creating a binary contents file. This feature does not support custom TOC icons or other customizations such as displaying topics in custom windows.
 - No border Creates the TOC without adding a border around the TOC pane.
 - Simple border Adds a single line border around the TOC pane.
 - **3D border** Adds a border around the TOC pane that has a 3D appearance.
- 5. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Adding a Web Toolbar to HTML Help Output

If you incorporate MadCap Feedback into your Flare project and generate Microsoft HTML Help output, a web toolbar is automatically added to the top of each topic in the CHM file. However, this toolbar is not only for MadCap Feedback. Even if you are not using Feedback in your project, you can add the web toolbar to your Microsoft HTML Help output.

In addition to submitting topic ratings and comments, the default buttons in the web toolbar let users expand or collapse Dynamic HTML effects (e.g., drop-down text, expanding text), search, go to the next or previous topic, and more. You can change the buttons included in the web toolbar, removing ones you do not want and adding others. For more information see the Help system.

How to Add a Web Toolbar to HTML Help Output

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 3. Click Display toolbar in each topic.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

▶ NOTE You can also specify which buttons should be included in the navigation toolbar at the top of the CHM window. See "Specifying Buttons for HTML Help Output" on page 425.

NOTE As an alternative, you can add a web toolbar with the help of a topic toolbar proxy. This lets you add a toolbar in specific places within topics, as well as limit the topics that have the toolbar.

Web Toolbars in HTML Help Output

If you incorporate MadCap Feedback into your Flare project and generate Microsoft HTML Help output, a web toolbar is automatically added to the top of each topic in the CHM file. However, this toolbar is not only for MadCap Feedback. Even if you are not using Feedback in your project, you can add the web toolbar to your Microsoft HTML Help output. See "Adding a Web Toolbar to HTML Help Output" on the previous page.

In addition to submitting topic ratings and comments, the default buttons in the web toolbar let users expand or collapse Dynamic HTML effects (e.g., drop-down text, expanding text), search, go to the next or previous topic, and more. You can change the buttons included in the web toolbar, removing ones you do not want and adding others.

For more about web toolbars versus topic toolbars, see "Toolbars and Skins" on page 52.

How to Specify Custom Toolbar Settings for HTML Help Output

After adding the web toolbar for Microsoft HTML Help output, complete the following steps.

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the WebHelp Toolbar tab.
- Select options to include specific features (buttons) in the toolbar. Items that will be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Selected section on the right. Items that will not be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Available section on the left. You can use the right arrow button is to move items from the Available section to the Selected section.

Following are descriptions of the various items.

BACK

Lets users open the topic that was viewed previously.



COLLAPSE ALL

Lets users collapse all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are expanded).



CURRENT TOPIC INDEX

Lets users see the display for the current topic in the sequence. This is typically used in conjunction with the "Next Topic" and "Previous Topic" buttons when the topic in question exists in a browse sequence. Flare Desktop finds the current topic in a browse sequence and display its position in relation to the rest of the topics in that sequence. (The root node is used to determine the count; in other words, if there are "child" topics in the sequence structure under the current topic, they will be included in the count.)

Toolbar Items Current Topic Index							
		Border	General				
Glossary	🗽 📮 🔚 🔚 🌺 Quick search	🔄 🜮 💆 🖇 🖗 🕱 🔝 🗈 🖓 🚍 🗁 🗢 🗣 🦃 🦑 🖓 Page 2 of 4 🎄 👼 l mai	dcap				

EDIT USER PROFILE

Lets users edit their Pulse or Feedback registration profile settings.


EXPAND ALL

Lets users expand all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are not yet expanded).

Toolbar Items Expa	nd All				
Border		(General		
Glossary	😥 🖛 💷	Quick search		41 D	> 🗙

FORWARD

Lets users open the next topic in a previously viewed sequence.

Toolbar Items Forward		
	Border	General
Glossary 🔯 📮 🖥	🟗 🍓 Quick search 🤣 🖉 🐇 除	🔀 🕸 🛅 🖹 🔎 🗐 🗁 🔿 🚱 🖓 Page 2 of 4 🎄

HOME

Lets users open a designated home page (such as your company's website)

Toolbar Items Home													
					Border		 				_	Gene	eral
Glossary	🔯 🗖	1	1	Quick search	P	<u>¥</u> «	×	¢ 1	<u>ک</u>	₽ 📮			🦨 Page 2 of 4 🙀

NEXT TOPIC

Lets users open the next topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the next topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the next topic after it.

Toolbar Items Nex	opic
	Border General
Glossary	🔯 💵 🔚 🎍 Quick search 🖅 🖉 🐗 🖗 X 🔹 🏠 🔲 🖹 🖉 🛱 🖨 🖓 🖓 Age 2 of 4 🚳 👼 I madcap

PREVIOUS TOPIC

Lets users open the previous topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the previous topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the previous topic before it.

Toolbar Items Prev	vious Topic	
		Border General
Glossary	🔯 💷 🔚 🔛 🎃 Quick search	👥 🤧 🎽 🖇 🖗 🕱 📴 🖻 🖉 🖨 🖨 🖨 🖓 🤤 🖓 🦨 🖓 ன 🖓

PRINT

Lets users open the Print dialog so that they can send the open topic to the printer.

Toolbar Items Print				
Border		٦.		General
Glossary	🔀 🗖	• •	2	Ruick search 🤣 🖉 🖇 🖗 🎇

QUICK SEARCH

Lets users initiate a search in the active topic for the word or phrase that has been typed in the field next to the button.

Toolbar Items Quic	k Search		
Bord	der		General
Glossary	🔯 🗖 🖬 🗟	Quick search 🦃 🖉 🖇 🔅 🔋	🎄 🏠 🔲 🖻 🔎 🗔 🗁 🔿

REFRESH

Lets users update the content of the topic being viewed.

Γ	Toolbar Items Refr	esh													
					Border)—		۱_		 		-	G	enera	1
	Glossary	1		Quick search	\$	<u>¥</u> 4	1 🕪	×	¢.		P	5	∍ 🔿	s d	🦻 🦨 F

REMOVE HIGHLIGHT

After a user performs a quick search in a topic, the search text found in the topic is highlighted. This button lets users turn the highlights off.

Toolbar Items Remove	Highlight		
	Border		General
Glossary	🕻 💷 🔚 🕌 Quick search	\$P 👱 &	🏠 🔲 🖻 🔎 🖨 🖨 🖨

STOP

Lets users prevent a page from downloading file information.

Toolbar Items Stop															
				Border			۱_		_	 		Ger	neral		
Glossary	🔯 🗖	1	1	Quick search	-	¥	1	×	ţ,		3 /	6	> 🤿	. P	🦨 Page

TOPIC RATINGS

Lets users submit ratings for a topic (if you have incorporated your output with MadCap Pulse or Feedback).

Toolbar Items Topic	Ratings	
		General
Index	drakrakrak 🤽 🔯 💷 🔠	🟗 🍓 Quick search 🤣 🖉 🙀 🖗

4. (Optional) You can use the buttons at the bottom of the tab to perform additional tasks.

Option Description Opens the New Toolbar Button dialog, which lets you add a custom button to A the toolbar. After creating the custom button, select it and click 🖻 to move it to the Selected section. Unless you specify otherwise, in the output the new button will display the text for the name you gave it. However, you can change this by editing the control type for the new button. To do this, you can select the Styles tab in the Skin Editor, expand the Toolbar Item node, select one of the styles listed above, expand the Type property group, and from the Control Type field select Button. To choose an image for the button, expand the General property group on the Styles tab and select image files in the **lcon** fields. If you want to provide a command for the custom button (e.g., so that clicking the button opens a website), you can select the Styles tab in the Skin Editor, expand the **Toolbar Item** node, select one of the styles listed above, expand the **Type** property group, and enter a command in the **OnClick** field. For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button: window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com"); Alternatively, you can use the JavaScript area on the WebHelp Toolbar tab to enter a command for the button. See the next step. Removes the selected custom button from the Available section. ♠ Moves the selected item up in the order in the Selected section. In the output, buttons are displayed left to right according to the order in which they appear on this tab, with the item at the top being the first button shown on the left in the output.

Option	Description
f	Moves the selected item down in the order in the Selected section.
×	Removes the selected item(s) from the Selected section.
	Adds a separator to the Selected section. A separator is the divider between the toolbar buttons and the navigation pane.
5	Resets the toolbar to the default settings.

5. (Optional) If you want to include custom JavaScript in the toolbar, click **Edit** in the area to the right. This opens the Toolbar JavaScript dialog, which you can use to enter or load custom JavaScript for the toolbar.

For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

```
function MyFunction()
{
window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");
}
```

6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

NOTE You can also specify which buttons should be included in the navigation toolbar at the top of the CHM window. See "Specifying Buttons for HTML Help Output" on page 425.

NOTE You can also add a web toolbar that is displayed within topic content. This can be done with the help of a topic toolbar proxy.

Enabling User-defined Window Position and Size for HTML Help Output

You can let end users control the position and size of the output window by using an option on the HTML Help Setup tab of the Skin Editor. This option causes an HTML Help (CHM) file to save its window position and size after its first use. The next time, it will open at the same window position and size.

How to Enable User-Defined Window Position and Size for HTML Help Output

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the HTML Help Setup tab.
- 3. Click Save user defined window position after first use.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Other Activities—HTML5

You can perform the following additional tasks with HTML5 and skins.

Adding Favicons

Supported In:



Short for "favorite icons," favicons are supported in Flare Desktop for HTML5 output. A favicon is the image that you sometimes see in a browser tab, address bar, bookmark, Windows tiles, etc.



They can also be used on smart phones when a website is saved to the home screen.



There are several places in the output where a favicon image might display. Therefore, it is common to use different sizes of an image to satisfy each instance appropriately (e.g., small image used for bookmark but larger image used for Windows tile). Fortunately, Flare Desktop makes this easier by letting you select a large main favicon image; this image is then automatically resized for most of the different uses in the output.

To use custom favicons, you first need to add a new "Favicons" skin component to your project. Within this skin component, you can choose your image and other settings. The Favicons skin component is slightly different from the other kinds of skin components that can be added to a project in that it does not require a corresponding proxy. Instead, you simply create and edit the Favicons skin component and it will automatically be integrated with your HTML5 output.

How to Add a Favicons Skin Component to a Project

- 1. In the Project Organizer, right-click on the **Skins** folder and from the context menu select **Add Skin**.
- 2. In the File Type field at the top, make sure Skin is selected.
- 3. In the **Source** area select **New from template**.
- 4. Under Factory Templates, select HTML5 Component Favicons.

File Type:	
🚫 Skin	
Source	
New from template:	
✓ → Factory Templates	
😽 HTML5 - Side Navigation	
🛃 HTML5 - Top Navigation	
🛃 HTML5 - Tripane	
😽 HTML5 - Tripane Light	
HTML5 Component - Central Account	
HTML5 Component - eLearning Toolbar	
HTML5 Component - Favicons	
HTML5 Component - Menu	
HTML5 Component - Search Bar	
HIMLS Component - Search Results	
HIMLS Component - Test Results	
HIMLS Component - Topic Toolbar	
Webkiele Default	
WebHelp - Default	
WebHelp - Green	
O New from existing:	

- 5. (Optional) If you want to place the file into a subfolder previously created in the Content Explorer or Project Organizer, in the **Folder** field click and select the subfolder. Otherwise, keep the default location.
- 6. In the **File Name** field, type a new name for the skin component.

- 7. (Optional) If you want to apply condition tags to the file, expand the **Attributes** section at the bottom of the dialog. Next to the **Condition Tags** field, click in and select the conditions you want to apply.Click **OK**.
- 8. (Optional) If you want to apply file tags, expand the **Attributes** section at the bottom of the dialog. Next to the **File Tags** field, click **M** and select the file tags you want to apply. Click **OK**.
- 9. Click Add. The skin component is added to the Skins folder in the Project Organizer. The Favicon Skin Editor opens to the right. Continue with the steps for editing the skin component.

How to Edit a Favicons Skin Component

- 1. Open your skin component (if it is not already open).
- 2. In the **Main Favicon** field, click and select an image—PNG, JPG, or GIF. (ICO files cannot be selected for the main favicon, but you can select an ICO file to override the main favicon in certain fields below.)
 - ✓ TIP For best results, select a square image that is 558 pixels or larger. If you select a smaller image, it might not be automatically generated for some of the favicon uses shown in the Options sections of the Favicon Skin Editor.

In the sections below, you can see the image has been added to the previews.

• **Browser** This shows how the image will be shown when viewed in a standard web browser. The preview shows the image on a tab, but the image will appear in other places as well, such as next to bookmarked pages.



• **iOS/Android** This shows how the image will be shown on iPhone and Android smart phone screens when a user adds a web page from your output to the home screen.



• Windows This shows how the image will be shown in the tile format used in Windows 8 and Windows 10.



3. (Optional) Under the Browser, iOS/Android, and Windows sections, click Options.

Various fields are shown under each section. Notice that, depending on the size of the image that you added as the main favicon, "(generated)" is shown in many of the fields. This means that the main favicon image will be used for each of these fields and auto-sized as necessary.

Main Favicon			
favicon-558x558	8.png 🗸 🗾 🛈		
Browser		Windows	
	🗇 Browser Tab		
	← ⇒ C		
Options			Internet Explorer OneNote
Icon	(generated) V Size: 16 px		
Icon	(generated) v Size: 32 px		
Icon	(generated) V Size: 96 px		Windows Store
Shortcut Icon	(generated) 🗸 🛌	(Ontions	
iOS/Android		Small	(generated)
	11 12 1	Medium	(generated) V
		Wide	favicon-558x270.pn 🗸 藍
	Clock Mans	Large	(generated) 🗸 🛌
	CIOCK	Web URL	http://help.madcapsoftv
1		Tile Color	#F5F5F5 🥙 👻 🗸
<u>⊜</u> R	Reminders		
Options		1	
App Icon	(generated) V Size: 180 px		

- **NOTE** If you see a warning icon **A** next to a field, this means the main favicon was not auto-generated for that field. Hover over the warning icon to see the reason. You can then either select a main favicon of a different size, or you can select a different image for the field where the warning icon appears.
- 4. (Optional) In the **Browser** section, you can click sto override the main favicon image for any of the fields, although most users will likely keep the generated image. The different sizes shown (16, 32, and 96 pixels) are necessary to be compatible with various types and versions of browsers on the market.
- 5. (Optional) In the **iOS/Android** section, you can click **s** to override the main favicon image with a different icon image (180 pixels). This will be shown when a user adds a shortcut to your output on the home screen.
 - ▶ NOTE If you add an image that has a transparent background, iOS devices will replace the transparency with a black background. Also, images on iOS devices will have rounded borders. So keep this in mind when designing and choosing an image.
- 6. (Optional) In the **Windows** section, you can click show to the **Small**, **Medium**, **Wide**, or **Large** fields to choose a different image for the tile design in Windows 8 and Windows 10.

The **Wide** field will typically never be auto-generated from the main favicon, so you will need to choose a different image in this field if you want to provide a picture for that type of tile. That's because the main favicon is square, whereas the Wide field requires a rectangular image. The recommended size is 558 pixels wide by 270 pixels high.

▶ NOTE Windows 8 acts somewhat differently than Windows 10 in the way tiles are shown in the interface.



When you click the Start button in the lower-left corner of your screen, you see tiles for different kinds of shortcuts. If you scroll down to the bottom of the tiles, you will see the favicon for the HTML5 output that you pinned. Initially, you will see the medium-sized image.







 \bigstar If you select Wide, the favicon will look something like this:



And if you select Large, the favicon will look something like this:



7. In the Web URL field, enter the path where your output will be published (e.g., http://mycompany.com/help/product/). Completing this field is necessary because Windows tile images are relative to the root location of your output. You can also click it to insert a variable into the URL field.

Option	S
Small	(generated) 🗸 🛌
Medium	(generated) V
Wide	MadCap Logo2 Wide.png 🛛 🗸 📕
Large	(generated) V
Web URL	http://help.madcapsoftware.com/[
Tile Color	#000000

8. (Optional) In the **Tile Color** field, you can use the drop-down to the right to choose a background color for the tile displaying your favicon.

Windows		
	Internet Explorer	
(A) Options	Windows Store	In this example, we set the tile background color to off white.
Small	(generated) V	
Medium	(generated) V	
Wide	favicon-558x270.pn 🗸 藍	
Large	(generated) 🗸 🛌	
Web URL	http://help.madcapsoftv	0

9. Click 🔲 to save your work.

NOTE Microsoft Edge does not support favicons unless the output is published to a web server.

NOTE If you generate the target from a MadCap Flare Online license, any custom favicons that you have set will be overridden by the Flare Online favicons.

Setting a Fixed Header for Side or Top Navigation Output

Supported In:



When generating Side or Top Navigation output, you can fix the header portion of the topic so that it stays in place when users scroll down to see more content. For Top Navigation, you can do this for web, tablet, or mobile screens (or all of them). For Side Navigation, you can do this for web screens (or all–web, tablet, mobile).



\bigstar When a user scrolls down, the header disappears from view:

Image Positioned Left

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.



Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Positioned Images Image Positioned Left

Image Positioned Right

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is

But if you fix the header, it will continue to be visible when scrolling, like this:

place your company logo here	
Search	
Image Positioned Leit	
Here is some general text for a topic. Repl general text for a topic. Replace this with y	lace this with your own content. Here is some Image Positioned Left Image Positioned Right
Here is some general text for a topic. Repla	lace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with yo
own content. Here is some general text for	r a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Repla
this with your own content. Here is some g	general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for
topic. Replace this with your own content.	
	Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content H
	is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is
	some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is
FLARE	some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is
	some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is
	some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.
	Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. H

How to Set a Fixed Header

- 1. Open an HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skin.
- 2. Select the Setup tab.
- 3. In the Fixed Header field, select one of the options:
 - None The header will not be fixed in the output (Top Navigation only).
 - Web The header will be fixed on screens that are larger than tablet and mobile.
 - Tablet & Mobile The header will be fixed on tablet and mobile screens (Top Navigation only).
 - Mobile The header will be fixed on mobile screens (Top Navigation only).
 - All The header will be fixed on all screens—web, tablet, and mobile.

NTML5 - HTML5 Skin Edi Setup Community Styles UI Text	- Top Navigation × Start Page × itor Preview Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Right Slide-Out Menu Style: Drilldown Fixed Header: None Top Menu Levels to Show (Depth) None Top Menu Levels to Show (Depth) None Top Menu Levels to Show (Depth) None (default) Skin Settings Skin ID: HTML5_Top_Navigation
	TOC Options Automatically Synchronize TOC

4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Setting a Fixed Topic Menu

Supported In:



▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Side and Top Navigation outputs, but not in HTML5 Tripane output.

If you use a Menu skin component and proxy to include a topic menu in your HTML5 Top Navigation output, you can set that menu to be fixed in place. You can set a fixed menu for web, tablet, or mobile screens (or all of them). This feature can also be used in Side Navigation output, but it makes more sense in Top Navigation output.

How to Set a Fixed Menu

- 1. Open a Menu skin component.
- 2. Select the Setup tab.
- 3. In the Fixed Menu field, select one of the options:
 - None The menu will not be fixed in the output.
 - Web The menu will be fixed on screens that are larger than tablet and mobile.
 - Tablet & Mobile The menu will be fixed on tablet and mobile screens.
 - Mobile The menu will be fixed on mobile screens.
 - All The menu will be fixed on all screens—web, tablet, and mobile.

Menu Sk	cin Editor		
Styles	Skin Settings		
Setup	Fixed Menu:	All	✓ ⁽¹⁾
		None Web Tablet & Mobile Mobile	
		All	

4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

EXAMPLE You include a topic menu on the right side of your topics, but you do not choose to fix that menu. Initially, it might look something like this:

YOUR LOGO		Getting Started	Links and Lists	Images	Conditions, Notes,	Tables
Search						٩
You are here: <u>Conditions, Notes, Tab</u>	b <u>les</u> > Tables					ΘΞ
Tables				Conditions,	Notes, Tables	
Here is some general tex	xt for a topic. Replace this wit	th your own content		Notes, E	xamples, and Quota	tions
Here is some general tex general text for a topic. F a topic. Replace this with	xt for a topic. Replace this wit Replace this with your own co h your own content. Here is s	th your own content ontent. Here is some ome general text fo	. Here is some e general text for r a topic. Replace t	Tables	r own content.	
Simple Table—No Here is some general tex own content.	Header Row, Borders, xt for a topic. Replace this wit	or Background	; Custom Table . Here is some gen	e and Col eral text for	umn Sizes a topic. Replace this	with your
Row 1	Row 1 content Row 1 conte	nt				

If you scroll down in the topic, notice that the menu moves up with the rest of the topic content:



On the other hand, if you set the menu to be fixed, it will not move when you scroll down in the topic:

Row 1	I	Row 1 cont	ent Row 1 c	content			Condition	s, Notes, Tables ions	5	
Row 2	Row 2 c	content Rov	v 2 content f	Row 2 cont	ent		Notes,	Examples, and	Quotations	
Row 3	Row 3 cont	ent Row 3	content Row content	v 3 content	Row 3			1		
Standard	Table—He	ader Ro	w and Bo	orders, Au	utomatica	ally Sized	to Contents			
Here is som	o gonoral toxt	for a tania	Deplace this							
1010 10 0011	e general text	for a topic.	Replace th	is with your	own conte	nt.				
	e general text	1st Head	2nd Head	3rd Head	4th Head	ot. 5th Head				
General te	xt for a table	1st Head	2nd Head	3rd Head	4th Head	5th Head				
General te General te	xt for a table	1st Head	2nd Head	3rd Head	4th Head	5th Head				

TIP Sometimes you might have a topic open in the output where the side menu is quite long, extending beyond the bottom of the window. The issue with having a fixed menu is that end users may not be able to see the links at the bottom of the menu because they are cut off, and the menu will not scroll because it is fixed in place.

Here is a small image inline 🔙

Images

 \bigcirc

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here

Getting Started Links and Lists Images Thumbnail Image Positioned Images Image Positioned Left Image Positioned Right Image Within List Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Conditions, Notes, Tables Image Within List Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Image Within List Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations



tyles	Menu	
etup	▲ Menu	Root Item 1
	D Font	1st Level Item 1
	Background	2nd Level Item 1
	▷ Block	2nd Level Item 2
	b Border	1st Level Item 2
	Margin	2nd Level Item 1
	Padding	4th Level Item 1
	▷ Layout	
	▲ Size	
	Width: 100 🗣 perce 🗡	
	Height: 100 🌩 perce 🗡	
	Maximum Height: 700 🌩 px 🔻	
	▷ Menu Item	
	Menu Item (hover)	

If the maximum height is less than the height of the screen being used to view it, a scroll bar will be added within the menu, allowing end users to see all of the links.

Images

 \oslash

Here is a small image inline 🔙

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content. Here is some general text for a topic. Replace this with your own content.

Getting Started Links and Lists Images Thumbnail Image Positioned Images Image Positioned Left Image Positioned Right Image Within List Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotati Conditions, Notes, Tables Image Within List Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations Image Within List Tables Conditions Notes, Examples, and Quotations

Enabling and Disabling Partial-Word Search for Glossaries

Supported In:



NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

By default, partial-word searching is enabled for HTML5 Tripane glossaries in the output.

This means that as a user types a search phrases, results are automatically displayed and the matching text is highlighted, even if the search text is only part of the glossary term. However, you can disable this feature. You might do this to improve performance. If you do this, results are no longer highlighted as users enter search text.

How to Enable or Disable Partial-Word Search for Glossaries

- 1. Open an HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. On the **General** tab of the Skin Editor, under **Glossary Options**, select **Partial Word Search**. Removing the check mark disables the feature.

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview	
General	Caption:	
Size		¥
Setup	Features:	
Toolbar	TOC (default)	Make Default
Community	Glossary	
Styles	Browse Sequences Community	
UI Text	TOC Options:	
	Automatically Synchronize TOC	
	Index Options:	You can disable partial-word searching for
	Glossary Options:	glossaries.
	Unreferenced Images:	
	🖲 Кеер	
	Remove On Save ()	
	Unused Images: 0	

3. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Enabling and Disabling Partial-Word Search for Indexes

Supported In:



NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

By default, partial-word searching is enabled for HTML5 Tripane indexes in the output.

This means that as a user types a search phrases, results are automatically displayed and the matching text is highlighted, even if the search text is only part of the index term. However, you can disable this feature. You might do this to improve performance. If you do this, results are no longer highlighted as users enter search text.

How to Enable or Disable Partial-Word Search for Indexes

- 1. Open an HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. On the **General** tab of the Skin Editor, under **Index Options**, select **Partial Word Search**. Removing the check mark disables the feature.

3. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Setting a Skin ID

Supported In:



For HTML5 targets, you can assign IDs to skins.

One reason for setting a skin ID is to allow users to choose from multiple skins in order to change the display of the output. See "Enabling Runtime Skins" on page 473.

Another reason for setting a skin ID is to display output differently for context-sensitive Help (CSH), such as Dynamic Help. Your software developer can program the application behind the scenes to use the correct skin depending on the situation.

How to Set a Skin ID

- 1. From the Project Organizer, open an HTML5 skin.
- 2. Select the Setup tab.
- 3. Edit the **Skin ID** field. By default, this ID is based on the file name of the skin, but you can change it to something else.

Start Page ×	
HTML5 Skin Edit	tor Preview
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Right Slide-Out Menu Style: Drilldown Fixed Header: None Top Menu Levels to Show (Depth): 3 Logo Url: (default)
	Skin Settings Skin ID: Blue
	TOC Options

4. Click 🔲 to save your work.


We wanted to use this same output for the Dynamic Help window pane within Flare Desktop, but we did not want any page (except for the Home page) to display a header.

So in addition to our regular skin, we created another one and removed the header section from it. We also provided our developers with the IDs for each skin.

Therefore, if you have your cursor in the Content Explorer, the Dynamic Help will display the Content Explorer topic, without the page header.





 \bigstar ... the topic will look like this, with the header section at the top.



It's the same output file, just using two different skins.

NOTE For HTML5 Tripane output that is not enabled for responsive output, Flare Desktop does not support multiple skins in the output.

Enabling Runtime Skins

Supported In:



For HTML5 targets, you can enable runtime skins. Users can even choose from multiple skins to change the display of the output.

To help accomplish this, there is a Skin ID field on the Setup tab for HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, and Tripane skins. This ID is based on the file name of the skin, but you can change it if you want. See "Setting a Skin ID" on page 467.

🖉 🚫 Blue 🔿	× 💽 Start Page 🛛 ×	
HTML5 Skin Ed	ditor Preview	
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Slide-Out Menu Style: Fixed Header: Top Menu Levels to Show (Depth): Logo Url: (default)	Top Right Drilldown None : 3
	Skin Settings Skin ID: Blue	
	TOC Options	

★ EXAMPLE Your main Top Navigation skin has a black header background, but you want users to be able to select a skin with a green header background and a different logo, or even a third skin that does not have a header at all. Therefore, you create the additional skins and edit them to look the way you want. Then you add the Skins button in your Topic Toolbar skin component.

In the output, a user can click the button 🖭 in the topic toolbar and choose one of the options, which are based on the skin file name.



 \bigstar If the user selects Green, the output might look something like this:

YOUR LOGO place your company logo here	Getting Started	Links and Lists	Images	More Features
Search				٩
You are here: Getting Started				⊖ ≡ 0
Getting Started See the following to get started quickly:		Getting St Basic S What's	tarted Steps New	
» Do This Here is some general text for a list iten content. Here is some general text for a list iten content.	n. Replace this with your own n. Replace this with your own	Links and Images More Feat	Lists tures	
» Do That Here is some general text for a list iter	n. Replace this with your own (content.		
» Do The Other Thing Here is some general text list item. Replace this with your own content. H	t for a list item. Replace this wit ere is some general text for a l	th your own content list item. Replace th	. Here is so is with your	me general text for a own content.

And if the user selects NoHeader, the output might look something like this:



20Started/Getting%2	20Started.htm?skinName=No_Header 🏠 🗇 되 🔳
	Getting Started
	What's New
with your own	Links and Lists
with your own	Images More Features
with your own conte	ent.
Replace this with yo	our own content. Here is some general text for a
neral text for a list ite	em. Replace this with your own content.

How to Enable Runtime Skins

1. If you are creating Top Navigation output, you should have a Topic Toolbar skin component in your project . Open the skin component, and select the **Setup** tab.

If instead you are creating responsive Tripane output, open the regular skin and select the **Toolbar** tab. This lets you place the skin button in a web toolbar.

2. If necessary, move the SelectSkin button from the Available section to the Selected section.





- 3. Open the HTML5 target.
- 4. In the Target Editor, select the Advanced tab.
- 5. Select Generate all skins.

Target Editor 👰 Build 🥤	💱 View 👻 💁 Publish 🛛 🚉 Open Build Log
General	Output Options
Skin	✓ Insert Mark of the Web saved from url=(0016)http://localhost
J. C.	Do not use "Content" folder in output
Conditional Text	Generate resized copies of scaled images (1)
Variables	Generate "web-safe" images PNG (Portable Network Graphics Format)
Publishing	Replace reserved characters with underscores in filenames ()
Glossary	Use custom file extension for topics
Deletienshie Teble	Use lowercase filenames
Relationship Table	Generate all skins
Search	Exclude content not linked directly or indirectly from the target
Advanced	Include JavaScript for CSH
Performance	Use empty ALT text for images that do not have ALT text

6. Click 🖬 to save all files.

7. Build the HTML5 target.

Flare Desktop copies all of the project skins of the same type as the selected target (i.e., Tripane output will copy all project Tripane skins, Top Navigation output will copy all Top Navigation skins) and places them in the output folder.



In addition, the CSS styles of those skins will be copied and merged into the stylesheet as its own CSS class.

NOTE For HTML5 Tripane output that is not enabled for responsive output, Flare Desktop does not support multiple skins in the output.

Setting the Slide-Out Menu for Side or Top Navigation Output

Supported In:



▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Side and Top Navigation skins, but not in HTML5 Tripane skins.

You can choose the look of the slide-out menu for Side or Top Navigation output (i.e., the menu that opens when you click the "hamburger" icon in tablet or mobile view). Either a drilldown or a tree format can be selected.

How to Set the Style for Slide-Out Menus

- 1. Open an HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skin.
- 2. Select the Setup tab.
- 3. From the Slide-Out Menu Style field, select one of the following:
 - Drilldown With this format, any item containing sub-items has a double-arrow next to it. When you click on such an item, the entire menu changes, showing only that item and its sub-items.





• Tree With this format, any item containing sub-items has a down arrow next to it. When you click on that item, the sub-items are shown, but the rest of the menu remains in view as well.





4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

How to Edit the Look of the Tree View Arrows

In the Skin Editor, you can change the color and size for the arrows used for the tree format.

- 1. Open an HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skin.
- 2. Select the **Styles** tab.
- 3. At the top of the Skin Editor, select either Tablet Medium or Mobile Medium.

If you want the same style to be used for both tablet and mobile outputs, make your edits in the Tablet medium. Your changes will then be inherited by the Mobile medium.

If you want different styles for the two outputs. make your changes in one medium, then switch to the other medium and make different selections.



4. On the left side of the editor, expand Navigation > Panel > Item, and then select Expander Icon.



5. In the properties section, expand the available properties to edit.

Navigation > Panel > Item > Expander Icon		
Filt	er	ρ
4	Color	
	Color #25bcc3 🗸 🖄 💆	
4	Width	
	Width 6 🜩 px 🗸	

- 6. To change the color of the arrows, expand **Color**. Then use the fields to choose a color.
- 7. To change the size of the arrows, expand **Width**. Then use the fields to set the width. The height will be adjusted automatically.
- 8. Click 🔲 to save your work.

Changing Text Strings in HTML5 Skins

As an alternative to using language skins, you can use the UI Text tab in the Skin Editor to perform all of the localization tasks for HTML5 targets. This tab not only lets you enter text in other languages, but it lets you change the substance of text strings altogether, whether they are in your primary language or another.

How to Change Text Strings in an HTML5 Skin or Component

- 1. Open an HTML5 skin or a skin component.
- 2. Select the UI Text tab.
- 3. From the Language drop-down, select the language for the skin.
- 4. In the grid below, type text in the **Value** field for each relevant row. If you want to insert a variable in a field, you can click . The variable will appear as syntax in the field, but in the output the variable definition will be shown.
- 5. Click 🔙 to save your work.

NOTE You can also translate interface values in your stylesheet, language skin, or using a legacy language skin. When you set these values in multiple places, they are prioritized as follows:

- 1. Stylesheet
- 2. HTML5 skin
- 3. Language skin
- 4. Legacy language skin, still in your AppData\Roaming folder

As a best practice, you should try to translate each interface value in a single location to prevent conflicts.

▶ NOTE If you use the Language Skin Editor to edit an HTML5 skin value, your changes will be reflected in the HTML5 skin file (on the UI Text tab of the Skin Editor). However, changes made in the Skin Editor are not reflected in the Language Skin Editor.

Web Toolbars in HTML5 Output

Supported In:



NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Tripane skins, but not in HTML5 Side or Top Navigation skins.

You can specify web toolbar settings for some online outputs. This includes determining which buttons are displayed in the web toolbar. You can also add custom JavaScript for the toolbar.

For more about web toolbars versus topic toolbars, see "Toolbars and Skins" on page 52.

How to Specify Custom Toolbar Settings for HTML5 Output

- 1. Open an HTML5 Tripane skin.
- 2. Select the Toolbar tab.
- Select options to include specific features (buttons) in the toolbar. Items that will be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Selected section on the right. Items that will not be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Available section on the left. You can use the right arrow button items from the Available section to the Selected section.

Following are descriptions of the various items.

CURRENT TOPIC INDEX

Lets users see the display for the current topic in the sequence. This is typically used in conjunction with the "Next Topic" and "Previous Topic" buttons when the topic in question exists in a browse sequence. Flare Desktop finds the current topic in a browse sequence and display its position in relation to the rest of the topics in that sequence. (The root node is used to determine the count; in other words, if there are "child" topics in the sequence structure under the current topic, they will be included in the count.)



EDIT USER PROFILE

Lets users edit their Pulse or Feedback registration profile settings.

Toolbar Button Edit User Profile	Padding Border Background Positio	on
	Search All Files 🔻 🔎	
Contents Index Glossary Browse		
Book A Book B		
Chunk Chunk (link)	Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Donec a dictum dolor. Suspendisse potenti. Donec commodo, mi et pulvinar	

EXPAND ALL

Lets users expand all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are not yet expanded).



FILLER

Lets users add a filler item, which is used to specify where the empty space should go in the toolbar.



NEXT TOPIC

Lets users open the next topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the next topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the next topic after it.



PREVIOUS TOPIC

Lets users open the previous topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the previous topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the previous topic before it.



PRINT

Lets users open the Print dialog so that they can send the open topic to the printer.



REMOVE HIGHLIGHT

After a user performs a quick search in a topic, the search text found in the topic is highlighted. This button lets users turn the highlights off.

TOPIC RATINGS

Lets users submit ratings for a topic (if you have incorporated your output with MadCap Pulse or Feedback).



4. (Optional) You can use the buttons at the bottom of the tab to perform additional tasks.

Option	Description
×	Opens the New Toolbar Button dialog, which lets you add a custom button to the toolbar. After creating the custom button, select it and click 📄 to move it to the Selected section.
	If you want to provide a command for the custom button (e.g., so that clicking the button opens a website), you can select the Styles tab in the Skin Editor, select one of the styles listed above, expand the Event property group, and enter a command in the Click field. For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:
	<pre>window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");</pre>
	Alternatively, you can use the JavaScript area on the Toolbar tab to enter a command for the button. See the next step.
×	Removes the selected custom button from the Available section.
	Moves the selected item up in the order in the Selected section. In the output, buttons are displayed left to right according to the order in which they appear on this tab, with the item at the top being the first button shown on the left in the output.
Ŷ	Moves the selected item down in the order in the Selected section.
×	Removes the selected item(s) from the Selected section.
	Adds a separator to the Selected section. A separator is the divider between the toolbar buttons and the navigation pane.



5. (Optional) If you want to include custom JavaScript in the toolbar, click **Edit** in the area to the right. This opens the Toolbar JavaScript dialog, which you can use to enter or load custom JavaScript for the toolbar.

For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

```
function MyFunction()
{
window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");
}
```

6. Click 🖬 to save your work.

NOTE You can also add a web toolbar that is displayed within topic content. This can be done with the help of a topic toolbar proxy.

Other Activities—Images

You can perform the following additional tasks with images and skins.

Selecting an Image for the About Box

Supported In:



You can select an image to be used for the "About box" in the output window. You can use this About box for any purpose you like. When users click the icon...



... your image is displayed. When users click the image, it disappears.

How to Select an Image for the About Box

- 1. Open a Standard or Mobile skin.
- 2. Select the About tab.
- 3. Click Include About in output.
- 4. Click the **Browse** button.
- 5. In the Open dialog, find and select the image file that you want to use for the About box. A preview of the image is shown at the bottom of the tab.
- 6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

NOTE If you want to remove the image, click the **Reset** button.

▶ NOTE This feature is available for Microsoft HTML Help only if you add a web toolbar to the skin being used for that target. See "Adding a Web Toolbar to HTML Help Output" on page 430.

How to Select a Different Image for the Icon

What if you want to use an image other than the default MadCap icon (the image that users click to open the "About" box image")?

🌐 🛛 madcap

Use the following steps to accomplish this.

- 1. In the skin select the **Styles** tab.
- 2. In the Styles section, expand the **Toolbar Item** node.
- 3. Under it, click Logo.
- 4. Select the **Property Groups** option.
- 5. In the **Properties** section, click in the cell to the right of **Icon**.
- 6. Select Browse for Image.
- 7. In the dialog that opens, find and double-click the image that you want to use.
- 8. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Removing Unreferenced Embedded Images From Skins

Supported In:



When you add an image in a skin (e.,g., your company logo), that image becomes embedded in the skin file using binary code. If you later replace that image, it remains embedded in the skin, even though it is no longer being used (i.e., it is unreferenced). When you click the field to select an image, you can still see the old image listed with others. This adds unnecessary size to your skin file. However, you can select an option on the General tab of the Skin Editor to automatically remove unreferenced images from the skin when you save the skin.

How to Remove Unreferenced Embedded Images From a Skin

- 1. Open a skin.
- 2. On the General tab of the Skin Editor, select Remove On Save.
- 3. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Skin Editor Preview	v as WebHelp Window Preview as H	TML He	Ip Window 🕆 Add Class D)elete Class	
General	Styles	S	how	Preview	
Size	- Toolbar Item	0	Property Groups	(no preview availab	e for current selection)
About	- Accordion Title	0) Alphabetical List	(,
WebHelp Setup	Add Topic To Favorites	- 0	roperties		
WebHelp Toolbar	···· Collapse All	lapse All			
Topic Toolbar	Current Topic Index				(not oct)
Community	Expand All	About Box Alternate Text	(not set)	(not set)	
Community	Forward				
HTML Help Setup	IP Logo Next Topic		OnClick		(not set)
Styles		=	onener		(not bet)
	····Previous Topic				
	Quick Search		We added an	n image	
	Retresh		lcon fiel		



Therefore, you open the General tab in the Skin Editor and select the option to remove unreferenced images the next time you save.

Skin Editor Previe	w as WebHelp Window Preview as HTML	Help Window
General	Caption:	
Size		~
About	Features:	
WebHelp Setup	TOC (default)	Make Default
WebHelp Toolbar	Search	
Topic Toolbar	Glossary Browse Sequences	
Community	Favorites	
HTML Help Setup	TOC Options:	
Styles	Automatically Synchronize TOC	Select this
	Unreferenced Images	option.
	○ Keep	
	Remove On Save	
	Unused Images: 1	

Then you save the skin. Now when you try to select an image in the skin, you will no longer see the original image listed, because it's been removed from the skin.

General	Styles	Show	review		
Size About	- Toolbar Item - Accordion Title - Add Topic To Favorites	Property Groups Alphabetical List	(no preview available for current selection)		
WebHelp Setup	-Back Properties				
WebHelp Toolbar					
Topic Toolbar	Edit User Profile	Icon	resources:WebHelp/Default.flwht/Images/AddTopicToFav		
Community	Forward	Pressed Icon	resources:WebHelp/Default.flwht/Images/AddTopicToFav		
HTML Help Setup	Home Logo	Hove	(default)		
Styles	Next Topic Previous Topic Print	Text Text Tool	S [Browse for Image] (none) Newlogo.jpeg		
	Refresh	Font	-		
	Remove Highlight	± Borders			

What's Noteworthy?

NOTE Removing unreferenced embedded images from skins is an action that cannot be undone.

NOTE This option is not available in HTML Top Navigation skins. It is available only in HTML5 Tripane skins.

Other Activities—Tables of Contents

You can perform the following additional tasks with tables of contents and skins.

Reducing Flicker in Frameless TOC Navigation

Supported In:



▶ NOTE This feature is supported in HTML5 Side and Top Navigation skins, but not in HTML5 Tripane skins.

For frameless output (HTML5 Side or Top Navigation) you can reduce "flicker" effects that users might see when clicking in the main table of contents (TOC) navigation. This can be done by selecting the "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option on the Setup tab of the Skin Editor. When this option is enabled, the top-level (i.e., parent) TOC items are preloaded (i.e., embedded) into the output topics. Because of this, the movement (or "flicker") when opening topics is less significant.
How to Embed Visible TOC Entries

- 1. Open an HTML5 skin.
- 2. Select the Setup tab.
- 3. Select the check box next to Embed Visible TOC Entries.

Setup Navigation Pane Community Main Menu Position: Left Styles Slide-Out Position: Right UI Text Slide-Out Menu Style: Tree Fixed Header: All Image: Community Logo Url: Image: Community Image: Community Skin Settings Skin ID: Flare_Side_Navigation TOC Options Automatically Synchronize TOC Image: Embed Visible TOC Entries Micro Content Options Featured Snippets View Mode: Truncated Knowledge Panel View Mode: Truncated	

4. Click 🔙 to save your work.

What Happens?

When this option is enabled, the top-level (i.e., parent) TOC items are preloaded (i.e., embedded) into the output topics. Because of this, the movement (or "flicker") when opening topics is less significant.



<pre><div class="sidenay-container"></div></pre>	If you view the page source for that topic, you'll notice that all of those parent-level TOC items are preloaded.	
<pre> </pre> class="off-canvas-accordion vertice_nmenu sidenav" data-accordion-menu="" data-mc-css-tree- class="tree-node tree-node-prel_sided">Get Started 	node-expand accordion-submenu-parent" data-mc-css-tree-node-collap	
class="tree-node tree-node preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="</li"> 	' <u>/Whats-New/Whats-New.htm</u> ">W <mark>hat's</mark> New? <span class="submenu-toggle-cort</td></tr><tr><td><pre><li class=" has-children="" is-accordion-submenu-parent"="" preloaded="" tree-node=""><a href="</li"> 	"#">Key Concepts and Features <span class="submenu-toggle-container" role<="" td="">
<pre><li class="tree-node tree-node preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br"></pre>	" <mark>//Tutorials/Tutorials.htm</mark> ">Tutorials <span class="submenu-toggle-con</td></tr><tr><td><pre><li class=" has-children="" is-accordion-submenu-parent"="" preloaded="" tree-node=""><a href="<br">	" <mark>//Interface/Interface-Files/Interface-Files.htm</mark> ">Interface and File
<pre><li class="tree-node tree-node-preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br"></pre>	" <u>//Architecture/Architecture.htm</u> ">Architecture <span class="submenu-t</td></tr><tr><td><pre><li class=" has-children="" is-accordion-submenu-parent"="" preloaded="" tree-node=""><a href="<br">	" <u>//Step1-Starting-Projects/Start-Project.htm</u> ">Step 1: Starting Proje
class="tree-node tree-node-preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br">	"//Step2-Add-Content-Features/Add-Content-Features.htm">Step 2: Addi	
class="tree-node tree-node-preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="</li">	" <u>//Step3-Design/Design.htm</u> ">Step 3: Designing <span class="submenu-to</td></tr><tr><td><pre><li class=" has-children="" is-accordion-submenu-parent"="" preloaded="" tree-node=""><a href="<br">	" <u>//Step4-Developing-Targets/Develop-Targets.htm</u> ">Step 4: Developing
<pre><li class="tree-node tree-node-preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br"></pre>	//Step5-Building-Publishing-Output/Building-Publishing-Output.htm">	
<pre><li class="tree-node tree-node preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br"></pre>	" <u>//LMS/LMS.htm</u> ">Learning and Development <span class="submenu-toggle-</td></tr><tr><td><pre><li class=" has-children="" is-accordion-submenu-parent"="" preloaded="" tree-node=""><a href="<br">	" <u>//Printed-Output/Creating-Printed-Output.htm</u> ">Print-Based Output <sp< td=""></sp<>
<pre><li class="tree-node tree-node preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br"></pre>	" <u>Project-Management.htm</u> ">Project Management <span <u="" class="submenu-toggle-c</td></tr><tr><td><pre></r> </r> </r> </r> </r> </r> </r> </r></td><td>">//Piug-in-API/Piugin-API.htm">Piug-in API<span class="submenu-toggl</td></tr><tr><td><pre></li class= tree-node tree-node preloaded has-children is-accordion-submenu-parent"><a href="<br">	<mark> /Kesources.ntm</mark> ">Resources <span_class="submenu-toggle-container" role="</td"></span_class="submenu-toggle-container">

▶ NOTE The "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option does not remove flicker effects altogether, but it does reduce them. Also, it affects the primary navigation (Side Navigation or Top Navigation) produced by the TOC; it does not affect minor navigation, such as that created from menu proxies.

► NOTE Certain circumstances (such as embedding a particular font) can still result in flicker effects in the topic output as a whole. The "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option does not reduce that type of flicker. It only affects the flicker in the TOC navigation.

Pros and Cons of Embedding Visible TOC Entries

The "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option might be the best situation for some users, but not necessarily for everyone. To determine if it's best for you, consider the pros and cons.

Pros	Cons
Reduces flickering in the main TOC navigation	 Increases the time to generate the output ★ EXAMPLE Sample from a large Flare project: Option disabled = 42 minutes Option enabled = 49 minutes
Less distracting for users	Increases the output size ★ EXAMPLE Sample from a large Flare project: Option disabled = 519 MB Option enabled = 560 MB

Related Synchronization Options

The "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option is related to two other existing options (one in the Skin Editor and another in the Target Editor). These options are used to synchronize open topics with the TOC and other navigation elements.

Automatically Synchronize TOC

This susting		and the a Catur	- + - +	
I DIS ODUOD	is available.	on the Setti	i ian ol ine	Skin Fallor
				UNIT LUILUI.

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Right Slide-Out Menu Style: Tree Fixed Header: All Logo Url: (default) Inter_Side_Navigation Skin Settings Skin ID: Flare_Side_Navigation TOC Options Image: Automatically Synchronize TOC Embed Visible TOC Entries
	Micro Content Options Featured Snippets View Mode: Knowledge Panel View Mode: Truncated

With this option enabled, the TOC automatically changes to highlight the entry that is related to whatever topic is opened. This way, users can always see where the current topic belongs in the TOC, even if they did not access the topic via the TOC.

YOUR LOGO		
Welcome	•	You are here: Procedures > Pro
Features	•	Procedure 2
Procedures	•	Here is some general text for a t
Procedure 1		
Procedure 2		The navigation
Procedure 3		highlights the current topic.



If both the "Automatically Synchronize TOC" and the "Embed Visible TOC Entries" options are enabled, all visible nodes (parent and children) in the TOC are preloaded in the output. This is different than the situation where only the "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option is enabled, in which case only the parent-level TOC nodes are preloaded.

HTML5 Skin E	ditor Preview
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Right Slide-Out Menu Style: Tree Fixed Header: All Logo Url: (default) Skin Settings Skin ID: Flare_Side_Navigation
	TOC Options Automatically Synchronize TOC





Synchronize Navigation Elements With TOC Entries

Farget Editor 👰 Build 【	🂱 View 👻 🧟 Publish 🛛 🙀 Open Build Log
General	Output Options
Skin	Insert Mark of the Web saved from url=(0016)http://localhost
JKIII	Do not use "Content" folder in output
eLearning	Generate resized copies of scaled images ()
Conditional Text	Generate "web-safe" images
Variables	Replace reserved characters with underscores in filenames
Publishing	$\hfill Use custom file extension for topics \hfile value \hfile \hfil$
	Use lowercase filenames
Glossary	Generate all skins
Relationship Table	Include JavaScript for CSH
Search	Use empty ALT text for images that do not have ALT text
Meta Tags	Auto-size Capture objects to fit text
Advanced	Prevent external URLs from frames
Advanced	Synchronize navigation elements with TOC entries
Performance	Powered by MadCap Software
Build Events	Remove MadCap styles

This option is available on the Advanced tab of the Target Editor.

If you generate HTML5 output, links to the TOC (e.g., menu items, breadcrumbs, mini-TOCs) are dynamically generated when a particular topic is opened. This lets you keep these navigation elements in sync with your TOC. This is particularly important if the same topic is linked to multiple entries in your TOC; otherwise, menu items and other navigation elements might display for one instance of that topic in the TOC when another instance is preferred.

There are a couple of items to note regarding this option:

- Even when you enable the "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option in the skin, the flicker effect is not reduced when clicking a duplicate TOC entry (other than the first instance). This might be more obvious when you have a Side Navigation configuration.
- The first duplicate entry is selected when the option is disabled.





The topic opens, and initially everything seems fine. But if you look at a couple of navigation elements—the breadcrumbs and side menu—you will notice that the topic was opened in the first TOC location (under "Getting Started"). This is the default behavior; the first instance of the topic in the TOC will be shown, not necessarily the one you selected.



rget Editor 👰 Build	👰 View 👻 🗣 Publish 📑 Open Build Log		
Constal	Output Options		
General	☐ Insert Mark of the Web saved from url=(0016)http://localhost		
Skin	Do not use "Content" folder in output		
eLearning	Generate resized copies of scaled images ()		
Conditional Text	Generate "web-safe" images		
Variables	Replace reserved characters with underscores in filenames		
Publishing	$\hfill \Box$ Use custom file extension for topics $\hfill \lor$		
<u></u>	Use lowercase filenames		
Glossary	Generate all skins		
Relationship Table	☑ Include JavaScript for CSH		
Search	Use empty ALT text for images that do not have ALT text		
Meta Tags	Auto-size Capture objects to fit text		
	Prevent external URLs from frames		
Advanced	Synchronize navigation elements with TOC entries (1)		
Performance	Powered by MadCap Software		
Build Events	Remove MadCap styles		

After generating the target once more, you open the output and select the More Information topic in the same way (in the Procedures menu). When you do this, notice that both the breadcrumbs and side menu are in sync with that location.



Selecting a Skin for a TOC Entry

Supported In:



You can add skins to your project to help create a look and feel for online output that you generate. After you create a TOC, you can associate a TOC with a particular skin.

How to Select a Skin for a TOC Entry

- 1. Open the table of contents.
- 2. Select a TOC entry.
- 3. In the local toolbar, click \blacksquare . The Properties dialog opens.
- 4. Select the Advanced tab.
- 5. In the Open in Skin field, select a skin from your project.
- 6. In the Properties dialog, click OK.
- 7. Click 🔙 to save your work.

Synchronizing the TOC With Open Topics

Supported In:



You can customize your output so that users can always see where the current topic belongs in the table of contents (TOC), even if they did not access the topic via the TOC. This can be done by selecting the "Automatically Synchronize TOC" option on the Setup tab of the Skin Editor. When users navigate from topic to topic in the output, the TOC automatically changes accordingly, highlighting the topic that is open.

YOUR LOGO		
Welcome	•	You are here: Procedures > Pro
Features	•	Procedure 2
Procedures	•	Here is some general text for a t
Procedure 1		
Procedure 2		The navigation
Procedure 3		highlights the current topic.



How to Synchronize the TOC With Open Topics

- 1. Open an HTML5 or Standard skin.
- 2. Select the appropriate tab:
 - Setup Select this tab in HTML5 Top Navigation or Side Navigation skins.
 - General Select this tab in HTML5 Tripane or Standard skins.
- 3. Select the check box next to Automatically Synchronize TOC.

HTML5 Skin Edi	tor Preview		
Setup Community Styles UI Text	Navigation Pane Main Menu Position: Slide-Out Position: Slide-Out Menu Style: Fixed Header: Logo Url: (default) Skin Settings Skin ID: Flare_Side_Na	Left Right Tree All	
	TOC Options Automatically Synchronize Embed Visible TOC Entries	e TOC	
	Micro Content Options Featured Snippets View Mode Knowledge Panel View Mode:	Truncate	ated \checkmark

4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Embedding Visible TOC Entries

This TOC synchronization field is related to the "Embed Visible TOC Entries" option under it, which can affect its behavior. See "Reducing Flicker in Frameless TOC Navigation" on page 504.

Other Activities—WebHelp

You can perform the following additional tasks with WebHelp and skins.

() **IMPORTANT** WebHelp and WebHelp Plus are deprecated in Flare Desktop, which means that they are slated to be removed in a future version.

Excluding Accordion Titles From WebHelp Output

Supported In:



() **IMPORTANT** WebHelp and WebHelp Plus are deprecated in Flare Desktop, which means that they are slated to be removed in a future version.

If you generate output using WebHelp or WebHelp Plus, the title of the active accordion bar displays by default in the output, like this:



You have the option of excluding this accordion title from the output. This shifts the navigation buttons for the output to the left, like this:



How to Exclude Accordion Titles From WebHelp Output

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the WebHelp Setup tab.
- 3. Select Exclude Accordion Title.
- 4. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Topic Toolbars in WebHelp Outputs

Supported In:



() **IMPORTANT** WebHelp and WebHelp Plus are deprecated in Flare Desktop, which means that they are slated to be removed in a future version.

In addition to the regular web toolbars that can be included in all most online outputs, you have another option for including toolbars. This option lets you insert toolbars anywhere in any topics.

For more about web toolbars versus topic toolbars, see "Toolbars and Skins" on page 52.

Basics of Using Topic Toolbars

The generation of topic toolbars is based on two elements—(1) the topic toolbar proxy and (2) settings in the Skin Editor.

Topic Toolbar Proxy

The Topic Toolbar proxy is used to tell Flare Desktop where you want the topic toolbar to be displayed in the output. If you want the toolbar to be shown at the top of only a few topics, you can insert the proxy at the top of each of those topics. If you want the toolbar to be shown at the bottom of all topics in your output, you can insert the proxy into a template page to be used for that target. You can even insert the proxy in the middle of text in a topic if you want certain toolbar buttons to be displayed there. When inserting a topic toolbar, you can select a skin if you are generating HTML5 output. You can also select an optional style class if you want to use it to control the look of the toolbar. Finally, you can choose which buttons to include in the toolbar. However, buttons can also be selected in your skin. If you are generating HTML5 output, keep in mind that the selection of the skin in the Topic Toolbar Proxy dialog overrides both the style class and button settings in the lower portion of the dialog.

Skin Editor Settings

For standard skins, there is a tab in the Skin Editor called "Topic Toolbar." The fields in that tab mirror those in the WebHelp Toolbar tab (for standard skins). As an alternative to specifying buttons in the Topic Toolbar proxy, you can specify them here in the skin. However, with standard skins, the settings in the proxy take precedence over those in the skin.

You can control the look of the items in the topic toolbar, and the background of the topic toolbar, by opening the Styles tab of the Skin Editor and modifying the appropriate styles. By default, the background is transparent so it will show whatever is behind it in the body of the topic. When you change any of these styles, they affect settings for items in both regular web toolbars and in topic toolbars. See "Standard Skin Styles" on page 288.

You can also use the Madcap|topicToolbarProxy style to change the look of the container holding the generated toolbar.

NOTE Although you can insert Topic Toolbar proxies in most of the online outputs, choosing the buttons for the toolbar can be done *in the skin* for only some outputs. For Microsoft HTML Help output, you can select buttons in the Topic Toolbar proxy only.

The Previous and Next buttons in HTML5 output using Side or Top Navigation skins (or no skin) differ from those in other WebHelp and other output types (including HTML5 outputs using a Tripane skin). In WebHelp and other output types, the Previous and Next buttons navigate between topics in a browse sequence (if one is available); otherwise they navigate between topics in the table of contents.

☆ EXAMPLE – WebHelp (Browse Sequence)

Let's say you want to add Next and Previous buttons, as well as the Home button, at the bottom of each topic in your WebHelp output. The buttons will use a browse sequence that you've added to your output.

Therefore, you open your skin and select the **Topic Toolbar** tab. The default settings already include the Next Topic, Current Topic Index, and Previous Topic items.



☆ In the Selected section, you select CurrentTopicIndex and click ≥ at the bottom of the tab. This moves that item back to the Available section on the left.

General	Vext Topic Items.	
Size	Available	Selected
About	AddTopicToFavorites	PreviousTopic
WebHeln Setun	Back	NextTopic
	CollapseAll	
WebHelp Toolbar	CurrentTopicIndex	
Topic Toolbar	ExpandAll	The Current Tonic Index
Community	Forward	item is now over here.
Community	Home	
HTML Help Setup	Print	
Styles	QuickSearch	
	Refresh	
	RemoveHighlight	
	SelectBrowseSequence	
	SelectCommunity	
	SelectFavorites	
	SelectGlossary	J
	SelectIndex	
	SelectSearch	

Next, in the Available section, you select the Home item and click it to move it to the Selected section.

General	in t	this order.				
Size		Available	_		Selected	
About		AddTopicToFavorites			Home	
WebHelp Setup		Back			PreviousTopic	
		CollapseAll			NextTopic	
WebHelp Toolbar		CurrentTopicIndex				
Topic Toolbar		ExpandAll				
Community		Forward				
communicy		Print				
HTML Help Setup		QuickSearch	E			
Styles		Refresh				
		RemoveHighlight				
		SelectBrowseSequence				
		SelectCommunity				
		SelectFavorites				
		SelectGlossary				
		SelectIndex				
		SelectSearch		1		
		SelectTOC	-			
					1 🛃 💌 📭	_

Now that the settings in the Skin Editor are completed, you can save your changes and insert the Topic Toolbar proxy (alternatively, you could have inserted the proxy before editing the skin). If you had wanted the custom toolbar to display in only a few topics, you would probably insert the proxy directly into those topics. However, because you want the toolbar to display at the bottom of every topic, the best way to accomplish this is to insert the proxy into a template page.

W	topic body proxy		
d			
eM	topic toolbar proxy		
		In this example, a Topic T	oolbar proxy
		template page, below a B	readcrumbs
		proxy and a Body	proxy.

After making sure both the skin and the template page are associated with the WebHelp target, you can generate the output.



Suppose you have created your own arrow images and want to use them instead of the images provided by Flare Desktop. You can simply select your image files in the Styles tab of the Skin Editor.



Quick search	🛿 🖗 💥 💁 🔲 🖹 🔎 (<) 💦 🕞 i madcap
You are here: Welcome	
Welcome	
Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consectettr a accumsan `ccumsan. Nullam nepue velit sagittis elemensum arcu, at gravida puan aliqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. Suspendisse purus maurir, ornare tincidunt qutrum eu, volutpat enil finibus non. Aliqu`m erat volu	dipiscing elit. Eusce blandit sapidn a dolor , ornare vek orci vel, mollis frhngilla mauris. Dondc n mollis id. Suspdndisse lectus augte, auctor in e bhbendum imperdiet korem ac placerat. Akiquam gravida qtis nisi. Integer pukvinar lacus libern, eget utpat. Ph`sellus finibus telpus nisl.
1. Lorem ipsum dolor rit amet, consec	tettr adipiscing elit.
2. Eusce blandit sapidn a dolor accum	nsan `ccumsan.
3. Nullam nepue velit, ornare vek orci	vel, mollis frhngilla mauris.
4. Dondc sagittis elemensum arcu, at	gravida puam mollis id.
5. Suspdndisse bhbendum in qutrum en non. Ann arrow buttons.	liqual nec, fringilla id dnlor. Suspendisse at. Akiquam purus maurir, ornare tincidunt ukvinar lacus libern, eget volutpat enil finibus inibus telpus nisl.

Г

How to Specify Topic Toolbar Settings in a Standard Skin

Following are steps for specifying toolbar settings in a Standard skin. You can select the buttons either in these steps or when you insert the topic toolbar proxy.

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the Topic Toolbar tab.
- Select options to include specific features (buttons) in the toolbar. Items that will be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Selected section on the right. Items that will not be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Available section on the left. You can use the right arrow button items from the Available section to the Selected section.



Following are descriptions of the various items.

ADD TOPIC TO FAVORITES

Lets users add the active topic to the Favorites pane so that they can quickly access the topic in the future.

Toolbar Items Add	Topic To Favorit	es	
Border		General	
Glossary		Quick search] 🕫 💆 🖇 除

BACK

Lets users open the topic that was viewed previously.

Toolbar Items Back															
					Border			_			 -	G	eneral		
Glossary	1	1	1	3	Quick search	1 9	*	>	×	¢,		۹ ۵	9 🗀	4	9 ¢

COLLAPSE ALL

Lets users collapse all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are expanded).

Toolbar Items Collap	se All			
Border				General
Glossary	🔯 🗖	8 8	Quick search	

CURRENT TOPIC INDEX

Lets users see the display for the current topic in the sequence. This is typically used in conjunction with the "Next Topic" and "Previous Topic" buttons when the topic in question exists in a browse sequence. Flare Desktop finds the current topic in a browse sequence and display its position in relation to the rest of the topics in that sequence. (The root node is used to determine the count; in other words, if there are "child" topics in the sequence structure under the current topic, they will be included in the count.)

Toolbar Items Cur	rent Topic Index		
		Border	General
Glossary	🔯 💷 🔚 😫 🍛 Quick search		Page 2 of 4 🐞 🎳 I madcap

EXPAND ALL

Lets users expand all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are not yet expanded).

Toolbar Items Expa	nd All				
Border			General		
Glossary	😥 💶 💷	Quick search	P 🖉	📢 🚯	×

FORWARD

Lets users open the next topic in a previously viewed sequence.

Toolbar Items Forward							
		Border			_	 General	
Glossary 🔯		Quick search	_ :P 🖉 🤘	K 🗭	× 🕸 🏠	□ 🗐 🗀 🔿 🗣 d	🦻 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🔹

HOME

Lets users open a designated home page (such as your company's website)

Т	oolbar Items Home									
						Border				General
	Glossary	😥 🗖	8	1	Quick search	P 🖉	» 🗙	🤹 🏠	🔎 🗐 🗀 🔿 🦷	🔉 🧬 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🙀

NEXT TOPIC

Lets users open the next topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the next topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the next topic after it.

Toolbar Items N	lext Topic	
		Border General
Glossary	🔯 🗊 🔚 🖬 🍪 Quick search	デン 🖉 🍕 豚 🕱 🏠 📃 🖹 🔎 日 🗁 🗢 🖗 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🏭 😽 I modcop

PREVIOUS TOPIC

Lets users open the previous topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the previous topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the previous topic before it.

Toolbar Items Prev	ious Topic	
		Border General
Glossary	🔯 💷 🔚 🕌 🍛 Quick search	💷 🕫 🎽 🖓 🖗 🗶 🔹 🗗 🖪 🖻 🔎 🗉 🗁 🗢 🖗 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🕵 👼 I madcap

PRINT

Lets users open the Print dialog so that they can send the open topic to the printer.



QUICK SEARCH

Lets users initiate a search in the active topic for the word or phrase that has been typed in the field next to the button.

Т	Toolbar Items Quick Search										
	Border			٦.	[General	
	Glossary	汉 🗖	8		Quick search	2	4	> 🗙	s 🏠	0 6 /) 🗐 🗀 🌩

REFRESH

Lets users update the content of the topic being viewed.

Toolbar Items Refresh							
		Border	General				
	Glossary 🔯 📮 🖬	🛯 🎍 Quick search 🧈 🌮 🎽 🖇 🖗 🔹	1 🗈 🔎 🗔 🗀 🔿 🧔 🦨				

REMOVE HIGHLIGHT

After a user performs a quick search in a topic, the search text found in the topic is highlighted. This button lets users turn the highlights off.

Toolbar Items Remove Highlight								
	Border		General					
Glossary 🏷	💶 🗈 🗟 Quick search	💷 🤃 🖗 🎽 🖗 🖗 🖉	🎄 🏠 🔲 🖻 🔎 🗔 🗁 🖨					
SELECT BROWSE SEQUENCE

Lets users open the Browse Sequence feature.



SELECT COMMUNITY

Lets users access their Pulse community features, if the are using MadCap Pulse.

Toolbar Items Select Commu	inity	Border	General
тос	🗙 🔆 🛠 🛠 🖾 📮 🗄 🗟 Quick search		🛓 🗿 🐞 🛛 👼 I madcap

SELECT FAVORITES

Lets users open the Favorites feature.

Toolbar Items Select Favorites									
		Border		General					
Glossary	🔯 💷 🔚 🔚 🍪 Quick search	🦈 🖉 🦇 🖗 🕨	₽₽₽₽₽₽\$	👂 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🐞 👼 MOG					

SELECT GLOSSARY

Lets users open the Glossary feature.

Toolbar Items Select Glossary									
	Border General								
Glossary 🔯 💷 🔚 🎃 Quick search	💷 🖅 🖉 🦇 ≽ 🧏 🏠 🔲 🖹 🔎 🗐 🏷 🤤 🖉 🦑 Page 2 of 4 🕵 👼 i n								

SELECT INDEX

Lets users open the Index feature.

Toolbar Items Select	Index								
				Border]	_		General
Glossary	🔀 🗖	•	Quick search	P 🖉 4	1 🕪 🖇	K 🕸 🏠	₽ 🛛 🕻) 🔿 🗣 🛛	🦻 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🐞

SELECT SEARCH

Lets users open the Search feature.

Toolbar Items Select Search		
	Border	General
Glossary 🔯 📮 📴 🎃 🖂	ck search 🤣 🥬 🎽 🕼 🔲	🗄 🔎 🅄 🗀 🔿 🤍 🧬 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🎉 👼 I

SELECT TOC

Lets users open the TOC feature.

Toolbar Items Select T	oc															
					Bor	der								e	ieneral	
Glossary	🔀 🗖	3	3	Quick search		<u>¥</u>	4	» 🗙	\$) 🔎	9 (⊇ 📫	Ģ	P	🦨 Page 2	of 4

STOP

Lets users prevent a page from downloading file information.

Toolbar Items Stop													
				Border	_ ٦					G	enera	1)	
Glossary	i	5	1	🗟 Quick search 🦆 💆 🤞	N 🔛 :	🗙 💈		F	P 🗉		 	ə 🖗	🖓 Page

TOGGLE NAVIGATION PANE

Lets users toggle between hiding and showing the navigation pane in the output window.



to the Selected section.

4. (Optional) You can use the buttons at the bottom of the tab to perform additional tasks.

Option	Description
14	Opens the New Toolbar Button dialog, which lets you add a custom button to the toolbar. After creating the custom button, select it and click 📄 to move it

Unless you specify otherwise, in the output the new button will display the text for the name you gave it. However, you can change this by editing the control type for the new button. To do this, you can select the **Styles** tab in the Skin Editor, expand the **Toolbar Item** node, select one of the styles listed above, expand the **Type** property group, and from the **Control Type** field select **Button**. To choose an image for the button, expand the **General**

property group on the Styles tab and select image files in the **Icon** fields.

If you want to provide a command for the custom button (e.g., so that clicking the button opens a website), you can select the **Styles** tab in the Skin Editor, expand the **Toolbar Item** node, select one of the styles listed above, expand the **Type** property group, and enter a command in the **OnClick** field. For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");

Alternatively, you can use the JavaScript area on the Topic Toolbar tab to enter a command for the button. See the next step.

Option	Description
1	Removes the selected custom button from the Available section.
1	Moves the selected item up in the order in the Selected section. In the output, buttons are displayed left to right according to the order in which they appear on this tab, with the item at the top being the first button shown on the left in the output.
Ŧ	Moves the selected item down in the order in the Selected section.
×	Removes the selected item(s) from the Selected section.
lo	Adds a separator to the Selected section. A separator is the divider between the toolbar buttons and the navigation pane.
5	Resets the toolbar to the default settings.

5. (Optional) If you want to include custom JavaScript in the toolbar, click **Edit** in the area to the right. This opens the Toolbar JavaScript dialog, which you can use to enter or load custom JavaScript for the toolbar.

For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

```
function MyFunction()
{
window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");
}
```

6. Click 🖬 to save your work.

Topic Toolbar Buttons Supported

Although topic toolbars can be added in all online outputs, only certain buttons are supported in some outputs. The following table provides an overview.

	HTML Help	HTML5	WebHelp	WebHelp Plus
Add Topic to Favorites	×	×	×	~
Back	×	×	×	~
Collapse All	~	✓1	~	~
Current Topic Index	~	√ ²	~	~
Expand All	~	✓1	~	~
Forward	~	×	~	~
Home	~	×	~	~
Next Topic	~	 ✓³ 	~	~
Previous Topic	~	✓3	~	~
Print	~	~	~	~
Quick Search	~	×	~	~

	HTML Help	HTML5	WebHelp	WebHelp Plus
Refresh	×	×	× .	~
Remove Search Highlight	~	~	×	~
Select Browse Sequence	×	×	× .	~
Select Community	×	~	×	~
Select Favorite	×	×	~	~
Select Glossary	×	×	× .	~
Select Index	×	×	× .	~
Select Language	×	~	×	×
Select Search	×	×	~	~
Select Skin	×	~	×	×
Select TOC	×	×	~	~
Separator	~	×	×	~

	HTML Help	HTML5	WebHelp	WebHelp Plus
Stop	× .	×	×	×
Hide Navigation	×	×	~	~

¹Collapse All and Expand All are the same button for HTML5.

²This button is supported only for HTML5 output that is using a Tripane skin. It is not supported for HTML5 output using a Top Navigation skin, or no skin.

³If you are using a Tripane skin, this button lets you navigate browse sequences. If you are using a Top Navigation skin or no skin (or if you are using a Tripane skin without a browse sequence), this button lets you browse table of contents entries.

What's Next?

Make sure that you associate the skin with the target. See "Associating Skins With Targets" on page 71.

You can also use a skin styles to change the look of toolbars. See "Standard Skin Styles" on page 288.

Web Toolbars in WebHelp Outputs

() **IMPORTANT** WebHelp and WebHelp Plus are deprecated in Flare Desktop, which means that they are slated to be removed in a future version.

Supported In:



You can specify web toolbar settings for some online outputs. This includes determining which buttons are displayed in the web toolbar. You can also add custom JavaScript for the toolbar.

For more about web toolbars versus topic toolbars, see "Toolbars and Skins" on page 52.

How to Specify Custom Toolbar Settings for WebHelp Outputs

- 1. Open a Standard skin.
- 2. Select the WebHelp Toolbar tab.
- Select options to include specific features (buttons) in the toolbar. Items that will be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Selected section on the right. Items that will not be included in the toolbar are displayed in the Available section on the left. You can use the right arrow button is to move items from the Available section to the Selected section.



Following are descriptions of the various items.

ADD TOPIC TO FAVORITES

Lets users add the active topic to the Favorites pane so that they can quickly access the topic in the future.

Toolbar Items Add	Topic To Favorit	es	
Border		General	
Glossary		Quick search] 🕫 💆 🖇 除

BACK

Lets users open the topic that was viewed previously.

Toolbar Items Back															
					Border			_			 -	G	eneral		
Glossary	1	1	1	3	Quick search	1 9	*	>	×	¢,		۹ ۵	9 🗀	4	9 ¢

COLLAPSE ALL

Lets users collapse all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are expanded).

Toolbar Items Collap	se All			
Border				General
Glossary	1	8	Quick search	======================================

CURRENT TOPIC INDEX

Lets users see the display for the current topic in the sequence. This is typically used in conjunction with the "Next Topic" and "Previous Topic" buttons when the topic in question exists in a browse sequence. Flare Desktop finds the current topic in a browse sequence and display its position in relation to the rest of the topics in that sequence. (The root node is used to determine the count; in other words, if there are "child" topics in the sequence structure under the current topic, they will be included in the count.)

Toolbar Items Cu	rrent Topic Index		
		Border	General
Glossary	🗽 💷 🔚 🔚 🎃 Quick search		🖓 Page 2 of 4 🙀 👼 I madcap

EDIT USER PROFILE

Lets users edit their Pulse or Feedback registration profile settings.

Toolbar Items Edit U	ser Profile		
Border		General	
Index	***** 🏝 🕅 🖬	🔹 📓 Quick search	

EXPAND ALL

Lets users expand all elements such as togglers, drop-down effects, and expanding text effects in a topic (if they are not yet expanded).

Toolbar Items Expa	nd All			
Border		(General	
Glossary	😥 📮 🚺	🗈 🍓 Quick search		N 🕪 💥

FORWARD

Lets users open the next topic in a previously viewed sequence.

Тоо	lbar Items Forwa	rd							
				Border				General	
	Glossary	🔀 🗖	5 5	Quick search	_ 🕫 🗶 🐇	₩ 🕺	s 🏠 🔲	∄ / □ □ 🚔 🗣 🧟	🍄 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🐝

HOME

Lets users open a designated home page (such as your company's website)

Toolbar Items Home																		
						Border					 				Ge	eneral	1	
Glossary	🔀 🗖	8	1	3	Quick search	4) 🎽		×	s 🏠	F	<i>,</i>) G) 🗀) 🔿	٦ (9	🗿 Page	2 of 4 🐝

NEXT TOPIC

Lets users open the next topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the next topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the next topic after it.

Toolbar Items Nex	t Topic	
		Border General
Glossary	🔯 💷 🔚 🔚 🍰 Quick search	デン 💆 🍕 🐌 💥 🍪 🛄 🖹 🔎 🗐 🗁 🌳 🕸 🔣 🖓 Page 2 of 4 3 🌡 👼 I madcap

PREVIOUS TOPIC

Lets users open the previous topic in the output. If you are using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop attempts to find the current topic in a browse sequence and navigate to the previous topic from there. If you are using HTML5 Side Navigation, Top Navigation, or skinless output, or if you are not using a browse sequence, Flare Desktop looks at the position of the current topic in your table of contents (TOC) and opens the previous topic before it.



PRINT

Lets users open the Print dialog so that they can send the open topic to the printer.

Т	oolbar Items Print								
	Border					General			
	Glossary	1	:	-	2	Ruick search 🦆 🖉 🎸	🇭	×	¢

QUICK SEARCH

Lets users initiate a search in the active topic for the word or phrase that has been typed in the field next to the button.

Toolbar Items Quid	ck Search	
Bor	der	General
Glossary	🔯 📮 🔚 🔮 Quick search	;?) <mark>⊻</mark> 4 1> × \$ 12 10 10 10 00 00 00

REFRESH

Lets users update the content of the topic being viewed.

Toolbar It	ems Refresi	ו													
					Border							-	6	enera	al
	Glossary	😥 🗖		Quick search	ip <u>¥</u>	41 🕅	*	Ş	<u>ک</u> ا) 🖻	1 🔎) چ	•	9 (🖗 🦨 F

REMOVE HIGHLIGHT

After a user performs a quick search in a topic, the search text found in the topic is highlighted. This button lets users turn the highlights off.

Toolbar Items Remove Highl	ght		
	Border		General
Glossary 🔯 🗖	🔚 🍓 Quick search] 🕫 🚩 🖇 🕪 💥 🤋	\$ 🏠 🔲 🖻 🔎 🛱 🖨 🔿

SELECT BROWSE SEQUENCE

Lets users open the Browse Sequence feature.

Foolbar Items Sele	ct Browse Sequence									
				Borde	7					General
Glossary	🔀 💵 🔚 🎃 Quick search] 🕫 🎽	≪ ⊮	🗙 🛱 🕻) 🛛 🗈	P 🖯 🖨	-	🖗 🦨 F	Page 2 of 4 🐝	👼 I madca

SELECT FAVORITES

Lets users open the Favorites feature.

Toolbar Items Select F	avor	ite	s														
							Bord	er				_			Ger	ieral	
Glossary	👿 🗖	5		Quick search	P 💆	-	×	\$ {	F	ρ	. 🗅	->	ବ 🎸	2	Page 2 of 4 🚯	۲	- I maa

SELECT GLOSSARY

Lets users open the Glossary feature.

Toolbar Items Select Glossary	
	Border General
Glossary 🔯 📮 🖬 🕌 Quick search	📰 🜮 🎽 🖇 🖗 🔹 😭 🖪 🖻 🕫 🖘 🖘 🕫 🚱 🖨 Page 2 of 4 🎄 👼 l 1

SELECT INDEX

Lets users open the Index feature.

Toolbar Items Select Ir	ndex					
			Border]		General
Glossary	🔄 💷 🗄	Quick search	\$P 🚩 🖇 🕪 :	🗙 🕸 🙀	┋ ┣ ┍ ╤ ╤ ╤	🖗 🧳 Page 2 of 4 🙀

SELECT SEARCH

Lets users open the Search feature.

Toolbar Items Select Search	
	Border General
Glossary 🔯 📮 🟗 🎃 Quick s	arch 🚽 🌮 🎽 🖇 🖗 🐒 🏠 🔲 🗄 🔎 🗟 🗁 🗢 🗣 🦃 🦨 Page 2 of 4 🎄 👼 I

SELECT TOC

Lets users open the TOC feature.

Toolbar Items Select T	ос																	
						Bor	der)-			_		 			G	ieneral	
Glossary	🔀 🗖	1	1	۵	Quick search	Þ	<u>¥</u>		×	\$\$ {		1		⇒	ą	Ş	🦨 Pag	ge 2 of 4

STOP

Lets users prevent a page from downloading file information.

Toolbar Items Stop														
			Border			٦.		_	 	_	Ge	eneral		
Glossary	🍢 💵		Quick search	- P 🎽	4	P	×	Ş,) 🖻	<i>p</i> e	0	-) 🇬	🦨 Page

TOGGLE NAVIGATION PANE

Lets users toggle between hiding and showing the navigation pane in the output window.

Toolbar Items Toggle Border	Navi	gati	on I	Pane	General			
Glossary	5		•	Quick sea	arch] #2	<u>¥</u>	X

TOPIC RATINGS

Lets users submit ratings for a topic (if you have incorporated your output with MadCap Pulse or Feedback).

Toolbar Items Topic Ratings							
		General					
Index	drakrakrak 🤽 😥 💷 🔠	Quick search] 🕫 🎽 🖇 🖗				

4. (Optional) You can use the buttons at the bottom of the tab to perform additional tasks.

Option Description Opens the New Toolbar Button dialog, which lets you add a custom button to A the toolbar. After creating the custom button, select it and click 🖻 to move it to the Selected section. Unless you specify otherwise, in the output the new button will display the text for the name you gave it. However, you can change this by editing the control type for the new button. To do this, you can select the Styles tab in the Skin Editor, expand the Toolbar Item node, select one of the styles listed above, expand the Type property group, and from the Control Type field select Button. To choose an image for the button, expand the General property group on the Styles tab and select image files in the **lcon** fields. If you want to provide a command for the custom button (e.g., so that clicking the button opens a website), you can select the Styles tab in the Skin Editor, expand the **Toolbar Item** node, select one of the styles listed above, expand the **Type** property group, and enter a command in the **OnClick** field. For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button: window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com"); Alternatively, you can use the JavaScript area on the WebHelp toolbar tab to enter a command for the button. See the next step. Removes the selected custom button from the Available section. ♠ Moves the selected item up in the order in the Selected section. In the output, buttons are displayed left to right according to the order in which they appear on this tab, with the item at the top being the first button shown on the left in the output.

Option	Description
f	Moves the selected item down in the order in the Selected section.
×	Removes the selected item(s) from the Selected section.
	Adds a separator to the Selected section. A separator is the divider between the toolbar buttons and the navigation pane.
5	Resets the toolbar to the default settings.

5. (Optional) If you want to include custom JavaScript in the toolbar, click **Edit** in the area to the right. This opens the Toolbar JavaScript dialog, which you can use to enter or load custom JavaScript for the toolbar.

For example, the following command opens the MadCap Software website when a user clicks the button:

```
function MyFunction()
{
window.open("http://www.madcapsoftware.com");
}
```

6. Click 🔙 to save your work.

NOTE You can also add a web toolbar that is displayed within topic content. This can be done with the help of a topic toolbar proxy.

NOTE You can also specify custom toolbar settings for HTML5 output.

NOTE The Section 508 standard states, "Documents shall be organized so they are readable without requiring an associated stylesheet." This means that some users need to

view output with styles disabled in the browser. However, if styles are disabled, the frame containing the toolbar in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus output may not be fully visible, and no scroll bar is provided because it was explicitly set not to display. To be in compliance with Section 508, you can use an option in a Standard skin to set scrolling values for the toolbar and navigation frames in WebHelp and WebHelp Plus output.

APPENDIX

PDFs

The following PDFs are available for download from the Help system.

I Tutorials

Autonumbers Tutorial Back-to-Top Button Tutorial Context-Sensitive Help Tutorial Custom Toolbar Tutorial eLearning Tutorial—Basic eLearning Tutorial—Advanced Getting Started Tutorial Image Tooltips Tutorial Lists Tutorial

Meta Tags Tutorial

Micro Content Tutorial—Basic Micro Content Tutorial—Advanced Responsive Output Tutorial Single-Sourcing Tutorial Snippet Conditions Tutorial Styles Tutorials Tables Tutorial Word Import Tutorial

Cheat Sheets

Context-Sensitive Help Cheat Sheet Folders and Files Cheat Sheet Learning & Development Cheat Sheet Lists Cheat Sheet Micro Content Cheat Sheet Print-Based Output Cheat Sheet Search Cheat Sheet Shortcuts Cheat Sheet Structure Bars Cheat Sheet Styles Cheat Sheet

User Guides

Accessibility Guide	Meta Tags Guide	Source Control Guide: Team
Analysis and Reports Guide	Micro Content Guide	Foundation Server
Architecture Guide	Navigation Links Guide	Styles Guide
Autonumbers Guide	Plug-In API Guide	Tables Guide
Branding Guide	Print-Based Output Guide	Tables of Contents Guide
Condition Tage Cuide	Project Creation Cuide	Targets Guide
		Template Pages Guide
Context-Sensitive Help Guide	QR Codes Guide	Templates Guide
Eclipse Help Guide	Reviews & Contributions With Contributor Guide	Topics Guide
eLearning Guide	Scrinting Guide	Touring the Workspace Guide
Getting Started Guide		
Global Project Linking Guide	Search Guide	Guide
HTML5 Guide	SharePoint Guide	Translation and Localization
Images Guide	Skins Guide	Guide
Import Guide	Snippets Guide	Variables Guide
Indexing Guide	Source Control Guide: Git	Videos Guide
Key Features Guide	Source Control Guide: Perforce Helix Core	What's New Guide
Lists Guide	Source Control Guide:	
MadCap Flare Online Integration Guide	Subversion	